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Report on Compliance and on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Lucas County Board of Commissioners
Toledo, Ohio

We have audited the financial statements of Lucas County, Ohio (the County) as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2002, and have issued our report thereon dated May 9, 2003. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards. However, we noted certain immaterial instances of noncompliance,
which we have reported to management of the County in a separate letter dated May 9, 2003.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County’s internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting.
Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all
matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material
weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control
components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would
be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a
timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no
matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, we noted other matters involving the internal control over financial
reporting that we have reported to management of the County in a separate letter dated May 9, 2003.
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Commissioners, management,
federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used

by anyone other than these specified parties. .
é/m’f £ MLLP

May 9, 2003
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Report on Compliance and Internal Control Over Compliance
in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133
and Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Lucas County Board of Commissioners
Toledo, Ohio

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Lucas County, Ohio (the County) with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U. S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs
for the year ended December 31, 2002. The County’s major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned
Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to
each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the County’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the County’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular
A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and
OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the County’s compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination on the County’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the County complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to
above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31,
2002.

01030167270 A Member Practice of Ernst & Young Global
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Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable
to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County’s internal
control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance
with OMB Circular A-133.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all
matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a
condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components
does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would be material in relation to a
major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by
employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters
involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the financial statements of Lucas County, Ohio as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2002 and have issued our report thereon dated May 9, 2003. Our audit was
performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole.
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for the purpose of
additional analysis as required by U. S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of
the financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the procedures applied in the
audit of the financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Commissioners,
management, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

é/mwz‘: ¥ MLL?
May 9, 2003
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Lucas County, Ohio

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year ended December 31, 2002

Pass-Through

Federal Grant Entity
Pass Through Grantor CFDA Identifying Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Agriculture - Food and Nutrition
Passed through Ohio Department of Education:
Juvenile Court:
Food Distribution Program 10.550 IRN: 083097 . $ 3,789

Child Nutrition Cluster:
Passed through Ohio Department of Education:
Juvenile Court:
National School Lunch Program 10.555  IRN: 083097 58,275
National School Breakfast Program 10.553  IRN: 083097 36,785
Board of County Commissioners:
Community Development Center:

Summer Food Service Program 10.559  IRN: 089243 199,211
Child Nutrition Cluster 294,271
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 298,060

Federal Highway Administration, Department of
Transportation
Passed through Ohio Department of Transportation:
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 )] 387,465

Federal Emergency Management Agency

Passed through Ohio Emergency Management Agency:
Participating Partnership Agreement 83.552 €)) 72,000
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Lucas County, Ohio

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (continued)

Pass-Through

Federal Grant Entity
Pass Through Grantor CFDA Identifying Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Passed through Ohio Department of Development:
Board of County Commissioners:
Community Development Block Grant/States Program:

Formula Grant 14.228 )} 789,395
Community Development Block Grant/Small Cities
Program:
Revolving Loan Fund 14.219 ) 456,873
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 1,246,268

U.S. Department of Education
Passed through Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug
Addiction Services:
Alcohol and Drug Addiction Services Board:
Drug Free Schools and Communities 84.186 ¢)) 374,920

Passed through Ohio Department of Job and Family Services:
Individuals with Disabilities Educational Act 84.181 ¢)) 357,826

Total U.S. Department of Education 732,746

U.S. Department of Justice
Passed through Ohio Office of Criminal Justice Services:
Criminal Justice Coordinating Council:

Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention - Title V 16.548 ¢)) 105,501

Juvenile Court:
Title V Reaching Out Project 16.548 1) 77,753
183,254

03030410749



Lucas County, Ohio

‘Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (continued)

Pass-Through

Federal Grant Entity
Pass Through Grantor CFDA Identifying Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures
Passed through Ohio Attorney General Victim
Witness Assistance Program:
Notification Advocate 16.579 ¢)) 28,602
Safe Kids/Safe Street 16.541 1) 7,620
SCS Information Project 16.575 €)) 2,795
SCS VOCA 16.575 1) 90,213
VOCA V/W 16.575 ) 126,243
SVAA Hispanic V/IW 16.575 ¢)) 81,400
VOCA-X Felony Crises 16.575 @))] 39,193
VAWA 16.575 (1) 33,919
373,763
Passed through Ohio Office of the Governor:
Criminal Justice Coordinating Council:
Juvenile Court:
Byrne Grant C.I.T.E 16.579 @) 77,591
Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Grant (1) 16.523 ) 216,307
Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Grant (2) 16.523 )] 193,448
Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Grant (3) 16.523 1) 14,134
423,889
Passed through Ohio Office of Criminal Justice Services:
Passed through Criminal Justice Coordinating Council:
Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Grant 16.523 ) 466,281
Byrne Memorial Law Enforcement:
Narcotics Control Block 16.579 ) 569,939
Passed through Ohio Emergency Management Agency:
State Domestic Preparedness Equipment Program 16.007 Y 40,161
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Lucas County, Ohio

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (continued)

Pass-Through

Federal Grant Entity
Pass Through Grantor CFDA Identifying Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures

Passed through Ohio Office of Criminal Justice Services:
Passed through Criminal Justice Coordinating Council:
Violence Against Women:

VAWA Block 16.588 ¢)) 175,497
Directly received:
Sheriff:
Violence Against Women 16.588 ) 33,809
209,306
Total U.S. Department of Justice 2,380,406

U.S. Department of Labor
Workforce Investment Act (WIA) Cluster:
Passed through Ohio Department of Job and Family

Services:
Workforce Investment Act - Aduit 17.258 @9 1,339,357
Workforce Investment Act - Youth 17.259 ¢y 3,829,722
Workforce Investment Act - Dislocated Workers 17.260 ¢)) 1,026,202
Workforce Investment Act - Rapid Response 17.258 ¢)) 300,622
Workforce Investment Act - One Stop Shop 17.258 1) 72,865
Workforce Investment Act -Administration 17.258 1) 1,039,571
Total U.S. Department of Labor 7,608,339

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Passed through Ohio Office of the Governor:
Criminal Justice Coordinating Council:
Juvenile Court:
Family Treatment Drug Court: Expansion and
Enhancement 93.243 @) 2,955

Passed through Ohio Department of Mental Retardation
and Development Disabilities:
Board of Mental Retardation and Developmental
Disabilities:
Social Services Block Grants (Title XX) 93.667 1) 441,305
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Lucas County, Ohio

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (continued)

Pass-Through

Federal Grant Entity
Pass Through Grantor CFDA Identifying Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures

Passed through Ohio Department of Mental Health
Community Mental Health Services:
Social Services Block Grants (Title XX) 93.667 ¢)) 424,288
Medicaid Title XIX 93.778 €)) 11,797,867

Community Mental Health Services Block Grants:

Child Adolescent/CORE 93.958 1) 95,576
Community Plan 93.958 ) 276,244
Program Development 93.958 ) 4,000
JIF 93.958 ) 34,517
508R HAP 93.958 (1) 170,000

580,337
PATH Grant 2002 93.150 €)) 112,085
PATH Administration Grant 2002 93.150 €)) 800

112,885

Passed through Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug
Addiction Services:
Alcohol and Drug Addiction Services Board:
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of
Substance Abuse:

Alcohol and Drug Abuse and MH Services 93.959 @) 2,771,872
TASC/Drug Court 2001 Medical Assistance Program 93.778 1) 1,016,409
Targeted Capacity Expansion Grant 93.230 1) 591,872
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Lucas County, Ohio

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (continued)

Pass-Through

Federal Grant Entity
Pass Through Grantor CFDA Identifying Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures
Passed through Ohio Department of Job and Family Services:
Children Services Board:

Child Welfare Service Grant - Title IV-B 93.645 ) 278,914
ESAA Family Preservation 93.645 €)) 282,562
Non-recurring Adoption Expenses 93.645 @)) 92,724
PASSS 93.645 ¢)) 165,534
Chaffee Federal Allocation 93.674 1) 90,514
Child Abuse & Neglect 93.669 1) 2,000
912,248
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 18,652,038

Total Federal Awards

(1) No pass-through entity identifying number is available for this program.

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

0303-0410749
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Lucas County, Ohio
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

December 31, 2002

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity
of Lucas County and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting, which is described
in Note A to Lucas County, Ohio’s (the County) basic financial statements. The information in
this schedule is presented in accordance with requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented
in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic
financial statements.

2. Subrecipients

Of the federal expenditures presented in the Schedule, the County provided federal awards to
subrecipients as follows:

Amount
CFDA Provided to
Program Title Number Subrecipient

Drug Free Schools and Communities 84.186 $ 374,920
Juvenile Justice Delinquency

Prevention - Title V Block Grant 16.548 105,501
Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block

Grant 16.548 466,281
Narcotics Block Grant 16.579 569,939
Violence Against Women 16.588 175,497
Targeted Capacity Expansion Grant 93.230 523,044
Social Services Block Grants 93.667 424,288
Community Mental Health Services

Block Grants 93.958 452,215
Workforce Investment Act Cluster 17.258,17.259,17.260 4,832,481
Medicaid Title XIX 93.778 11,797,867
PATH Grant 93.150 106,305
Victim Witness Assistance Grant 16.575 373,763
Safe Kids/Safe Streets 16.541 7,620
Medical Assistance Program 93.778 1,016,409
Alcohol and Drug Abuse and MH Services 93.959 2,384,087

0303-0410749 1 1



Lucas County, Ohio

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (continued)

3. Loans Outstanding

The County had the following loan balances outstanding at December 31, 2002. These loan
balances outstanding are also included in the federal expenditures presented in the schedule.

CFDA Amount
Program Title Number Outstanding
Community Development Block Grant -
Revolving Loan Fund 14.219 $ 456,873
0303-0410749 1 2



Lucas County, Ohio
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year ended December 31, 2002

Part I - Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statement Section

@) Type of auditor’s report issued: Unqualified
(ii) Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no

Reportable condition(s) identified not considered to be

material weaknesses? yes X_ none

reported

(iii) Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X no
Federal Awards Section
(viii)  Dollar threshold used to determine Type A programs: $941,320
(ix) Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X yes no
) Type of auditor’s report on compliance for major

programs? Unqualified
(iv) Internal control over compliance:

Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X no

Were reportable condition(s) identified not considered to

be material weakness(es)? Yes X_none

reported

(vi) Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be

reported in accordance with Circular A-133 (Section

.510(a))? : Yes X no
(vii) Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
93.778 Medical Assistance Program
16.575 Crime Victim Assistance Program

17.258, 17.259, 17.260  Workforce Investment Act Cluster
0303-0410749 1 3



None

None
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Lucas County, Ohio

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (continued)

Part II - Schedule of Financial Statement Findings

Part III - Schedule of Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs
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One Government Center

Fax (419) 218-4399

Larry A. Kaczala

Lucas County Auditor

Suite 600 Toledo, Ohio 43604-2255

(419) 213-4340

May 9, 2003

Lucas County Board of Commissioners
and Citizens of Lucas County,

As Auditor of Lucas County, | am pleased to present
the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.

This report contains basic financial statements,
management’s discussion and analysis, supplemental
financial statements, and other financial and statistical
information which provide a complete and full disclosure of
all material financial aspects of Lucas County. This CAFR
conforms to generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) as set forth by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB).

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data pre-
sented and the completeness and fairness of the presenta-
tion, including all disclosures, lies with the management of
the County, and in particular the office of the Lucas County
Auditor. In fulfilling this responsibility, the Lucas County
Auditor’s Office has prepared the accompanying financial
statements, schedules and tables. We believe this data
fairly reflects the financial position of the County and the
results of its operations.

The CAFR is presented in three (3) sections: the
Introductory Section, the Financial Section and the
Statistical Section. The Infroductory Section contains a
table of contents, this letter of transmittal, a list of elected
officials, an organization chart and a copy of the Certificate
of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting
awarded for the 2001 Lucas County CAFR. The Financial
Section contains our independent auditor’s, Ernst & Young
LLP, report of independent auditors, Management's
Discussion and Analysis, the basic financial statements,
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and relevant supplemental financial statements and
schedules for 2002. The Statistical Section presents
historical, financial, analytical, economic and demographic
information that may be useful for further analysis and com-
parisons.

This transmittal letter should be read in conjunction
with the Management’s Discussion and Analysis, which
provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of
the basic financial statements.

THE COUNTY

The County was formed by an Act of the Ohio General
Assembly on June 20, 1835, in honor of Robert Lucas, then
Governor of Ohio. The elected three-member Board of
County Commissioners function as both the legislative and
executive branch of the County. Each Commissioner
serves a term of four years. In addition to the County Audi-
tor, who serves as chief fiscal officer, there are seven
elected administrative officials, each of whom operate
independently as set forth by Ohio law. These officials are:
Clerk of Courts, Coroner, Engineer, Prosecuting Attorney,
Recorder, Sheriff, and Treasurer. All of these officials
serve four-year terms. The following judges are elected on
a county-wide basis to oversee the County’s judicial
system: Common Pleas Court Judges, Domestic Relations
Court Judges, Juvenile Court Judges, Probate Court
Judge, and Court of Appeals Judges. Judges are elected
to six-year terms.



REPORTING ENTITY AND SERVICES

In conformity with Governmental Accounting Standards
Board Statement No. 14, all governmental departments,
agencies, institutions, commissions, public authorities, and
other governmental organizations, for which the County has
significant financial accountability, are included in this
CAFR for financial reporting purposes. Financial account-
ability is determined by the County’s ability to appoint a
voting majority of the Board or financial interdependence.

The County provides general governmental services to
its citizens which include: public assistance, health assis-
tance, community related services, civil and criminal justice
systems, road and bridge maintenance, sewer and water-
line construction and maintenance and other general legis-
lative and administrative support services. The County also
operates and maintains the water supply and wastewater
treatment systems. A further discussion of the reporting
entity and its services may be found in Note A of the Notes
to the Financial Statements.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND
OUTLOOK

The County is in the center of a trade area comprised
of 14 counties in northwestern Ohio and southeastern
Michigan with a total population of approximately 1.25
million people. The County lies in the central portion of a
triangle formed by the cities of Chicago, Detroit and
Cleveland. The County is in the Toledo Metropolitan
Statistical Area (MSA) and approximately one-third of the
population of the United States resides within 500 miles of
the County.

The County’s economy, historically associated with the
glass and automotive industries, has become increasingly
diversified. While the County remains the home of four of
the nation’s largest glass companies, DaimlerChrysler AG,
General Motors Corporation and Dana Corporation also
continue to be major private employers in the County.
However, in recent years, private service industries and
governmental employers have provided more than three-
fourths of the total employment in the Toledo MSA and
approximately 70% of total payrolls in the County

The County’s unemployment rate for 2002 was 6.9%,
which is 1.2% higher than the statewide rate of 5.7%, and
1.1% higher than the national rate of 5.8%.

Three of the 2002 Fortune 500 corporations have their
headquarters in the County. These are Dana Corporation,

Owens-lllinois, Inc., and Owens-Corning Fiberglass
Corporation. The County is also one of the larger oil
refining centers between Chicago and the eastern sea-
board with BP Oil Co. and Sun Refining and Marketing
Company, Inc.

BP Oil Co. has constructed an approximately $235
million upgrade to its Toledo area refinery, which will be
one of its two remaining refineries in the United States.
The improvements will concentrate on improving BP Oil’s
ability to process heavy, sour crude oil.

DaimlerChrysler AG completed a $1.2 billion invest-
ment to construct a 1.1 million square-foot Jeep assembly
plant on Stickney Avenue in Toledo. Construction began
in 1998. The new Jeep Liberty began rolling off the
assembly line in 2001. The project will retain nearly 4,900
jobs.  Daimler Chrysler AG has also constructed a $30
million combination crossdock and parts sequencing facility
in the County to serve its plants in the Midwest

MAJOR COUNTY INITIATIVES

Current Year Projects

Lucas County continues to promote economic develop-
ment throughout the area. Lucas County officials and
management continue to work closely with state and local
governments, corporations, companies, small businesses,
labor unions and charitable organizations to improve and
expand business opportunities and the standard of living.
The following are highlights of some of the activities Lucas
County is concerned with:

«  Construction on a new building to house the 6th district
court of Appeals began in the spring. At a cost of
approximately $7 million, the structure located at the
northwest corner of the Civic Center Mall in Toledo is
a partnership between Lucas County and 7 regional
counties that lie within the jurisdiction of the 6th District
Court of Appeals. Lucas County is responsible for
50% of the project cost. The County has issued bond
anticipation notes to cover construction cost and
anticipates converting these notes to long-term bonds
in fall of 2003.

« Construction of the Lucas County Ballpark was com-
pleted. The Ballpark is the home for minor league
baseball’s Toledo Mud Hens. The team relocated to
the new facility in 2002 from their previous. facility at
the Lucas County Recreation Center. The County
issued $20 million in economic development revenue



bonds and $6 million in economic development reve-
nue bond anticipation notes in March, 2001. The
County retired the notes in March 2002 after receiving
revenue for the naming rights (5/3 Field) and the lease
of the luxury suites. In April, the Toledo Mud Hens
opened in its new home, 5/3rd Field, before a sold out
crowd. This new $39 million ball park constructed by
Lucas County through a combination of Public and
private funding was rated as the best minor league
ballpark in America by Newsweek magazine. The new
balipark is the catalytic for further private development
in the City of Toledo’s Warehouse District. Attendance
at 5/3rd Field was in excess of 400,000.

« Implementation of the first phase of the County’s
integrated new Human Resources/Payroll Procure-
ment/Accounts Payable, and General Ledger Account-
ing System began. The Human Resources/Payroll
system is expected to go live in early 2003 to be
followed by General Ledger/Accounting system in
2004. The county has initiated workflow studies to take
advantage of the automated features of the software.

* The County will be constructing and equipping a
business continuation center (emergency backup
computer system). The cost is estimated to be $1
million.

* Lucas County joined with the Toledo/Lucas County
Port Authority, the Regional Growth Partnership, the
City of Toledo and Manitowoc to construct a “High Bay
Facility” at the Toledo shipyard. This proposed ship
building facility would be used by Manitowoc to con-
struct ships for the US Coast Guard starting in 2004.

Future Projects

The County will continue to provide a variety of ser-
vices required to meet the needs of its citizens and actively
support economic development in the area. We look
forward to the following significant activities made possible
by the citizens of Lucas County and its government;

+  The Board of County Commissioners and the judges of
the Common Pleas Court are looking into the needs of
the court over the next fifteen years. Alternatives to
meeting the anticipated space needs of the court and
how best to meet those needs while preserving the
historic Lucas County Courthouse will be examined.
The County has received a program and planning
report with 5 alternatives to meet the space needs of
the Common Pleas Court. The alternatives called for

construction ranging from $30 million to $50 million.

» The County will implement the first phase of a multi-
departmental document-imaging project. Using digital
document imagining the county expects to improve the
storage and retrieval of public records. The costs of
this system will be spread among various internal
operating funds.

» The County is developing partnerships with the private
sector to open a Career Opportunity Center to imple-
ment federal Workforce Investment Act. In this center,
community partners will be located to provide career
services to assist employers in finding qualified individ-
uals for employment. The center will ailso assist
individuals in obtaining training to meet demand
occupation skills.

+ The Board of Elections will be working closely with the
State of Ohio to implement the federal Help America
Vote Act. The new electronic election system will
replace and the current lever system. The new system
at estimated cost of $7 million is expected to be in
place for the 2004 Presidential Election with significant
portion of the cost to come from federal funds. The
County has set aside $1.5 million in the Capital Im-
provement fund for the County’s match.

+ A feasibility study for the programming and construc-
tion of a new correction center will be initiated. An
initial study concluded that a total replacement of the
County jail would result in operational savings that
would cover the cost of construction.

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM

The County’s day-to-day accounting records are
maintained on a basis other than GAAP. For financial
reporting purposes, the accounting records for all Govern-
mental and Fiduciary Funds are converted to the modified
accrual basis, whereby revenues are recognized when
measurable and available within the business cycle (within
60 days after year end) and expenditures are recognized
when the related fund liability is incurred. The accounting

-records for the Proprietary Funds are converted to the

accrual basis, whereby revenues are recognized when
measurable and earned, and expenses are recognized as
incurred.

A further discussion of the three methods of account-
ing (non-GAAP, modified accrual and accrual) and a
reconciliation of budget basis to GAAP basis of accounting



may be found in Note B and Note L , respectively, of the
Notes to the Financial Statements.

BUDGETARY CONTROLS

Under Ohio law, the Lucas County Board of Commis-
sioners must adopt an appropriations budget by January 1
of a given year, or adopt a temporary appropriation mea-
sure with final passage of a permanent budget by April
1st. No expenditure can be made from any budgetary
account without the Certificate of the County Auditor
certifying that funds are available or in the process of
collection. When a purchase order is issued or a contract
is entered into by any County department or agency, the
County Auditor encumbers the necessary funds to pay for
the expenditure. Contracts or purchase orders are
rejected and are invalid under Ohio law if sufficient
funds are not available to permit the County Auditor to
certify the transaction. A further discussion of the budget-
ary accounting system and its controls may be found in
Note B of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

The County Auditor issues a monthly budget report to
the Board of Commissioners and to all departments and
agencies showing the monthly and year-to-date expendi-
tures, encumbrances, and the cash balances, as well as
the unencumbered balance by fund and account. On a
quarterly basis, these reports are made public and are
available to the news media.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The management of the County is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal control designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the
assets of the County are protected from loss, theft or
misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data is
compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.
The design of the internal control also recognizes that: (1)
the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to
be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits
requires estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance,
the County is responsible for ensuring that adequate
internal control is in place to ensure compliance with
applicable laws and regulations related to those programs.
This internal control is subject to periodic evaluation by
management.

CASH MANAGEMENT

The County Treasurer utilizes cash management and
forecasting techniques and procedures to provide for
efficient and optimum use of the County’s cash resources
as permitted by applicable State of Ohio law.

Among the County’s many investments, the County
participates in the State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio
(STAR OHIO) Investment pool. The statewide investment
pool is administered by the Treasurer of the State of Ohio.

Certain deposits are collateralized with securities held
by the pledging financial institution, or by its trust depart-
ment or agent but not in the County’s name. The pool of
securities so pledged must have a current market value at
least equal to 110% of all public monies on deposit with the
depository including the amount covered by federal insur-
ance.

Cash resources of all funds with the exception of
Water, Sewer, and certain Fiduciary Funds are pooled for
investment purposes. Currently, interest income derived
from these pooled resources is credited to the County’s
General Fund with the exception of the equitable share
distributed to the Self-Funded Health Insurance fund and
the Motor Vehicle and Gas Tax fund.

INVESTMENT HIGHLIGHTS
(Amounts in 000's)
Investments and Earnings 2002 001
Total investments and
Deposits at year-end $ 268,165 $ 263,490
interest revenue 9,339 12,468
RISK MANAGEMENT

The County Risk Manager monitors and directs the
entire insurance program of Lucas County. The County is
self-insured for a portion of its general business insurance
and insurance coverage after $500 thousand per occur-
rence.



The County participates in the State of Ohio Retro-
spective Rated Workers’” Compensation program with a
maximum liability of $300 thousand per accident.

Both programs, along with the self-funded health
program for dental benefits, provide savings with proper
risk management and loss control.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

Included in this report on pages 14 and 15 is an
unqualified report of independent auditors rendered by
Ernst & Young LLP with respect to the basic financial
statements of the County as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2002. As part of the annual preparation of
a CAFR, the County subjects all the financial statements to
an annual independent audit. This annual audit arrange-
ment serves to strengthen the County’s accounting,
budgetary and internal control of financial and operational
systems.

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT FOR
EXCELLENCE IN FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The County prepared its first CAFR in 1984 in accor-
dance with the program guidelines for the Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting (Certifi-
cate) awarded by the Government Finance Officers Associ-
ation of the United States and Canada (GFOA). Each
annual report must also satisfy generally accepted account-
ing principles and disclose applicable legal compliance
requirements. The County was awarded the Certificate for
the fiscal years ended December 31, 1984 - 2001.

The Certificate is valid for a period of one year. We
believe that our current report continues to conform to the
guidelines and requirements of the program and will be
submitted to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for
another Certificate.
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Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

Lucas County,
Ohio

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, 2001

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.

President

B £

Executive Director
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Financial Section

Pictured above are two new attractions at the Zoo. 1)
Siegfried and Roy’s white lions of Timbavati. The three
lions which there are fewer than 50 found worldwide
celebrated their second birthday Aprit 1st. Wisdom,
Courage and Legend are part of a litter of four born at the
Cincinnati Zoo. Their coloration is the result of a
recessive gene the same type that causes spotted
leopards to sometimes produce solid black cubs. They

opened to public viewing in April of 2003. 2) Located in
the African Savanna, the world’s first and only custom
designed African Animal Carousel opened in May
2003. The 42 hand carved, hand painted animals
represent 24 species, which took one year to build.
Wheelchair accessible the cost will be $1.50 per ride.
The carousel will be part of the “Africal” display which is
scheduled to open in 2004. The Zoo is supported by 2
county-wide property tax levies.
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i’l ERNST& YOUNG & Ernst & Young up & Phone: (419) 244-8000
One SeaGate Fax: (419) 244-4440
Toledo, Ohio 43604 WWW.€ey.com

Report of Independent Auditors

Lucas County Board of Commissioners
Toledo, Ohio

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of Lucas County, Ohio as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2002, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed
in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the County’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the discretely presented component units.
Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to
us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the discretely presented
component units, is based on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. The financial statements of the discretely presented
component units were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Lucas
County, Ohio, as of December 31, 2002, and the respective changes in financial position and the
cash flows, where appropriate, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the General,
Job and Family Services, Board of Mental Retardation, and Children Services Board Funds for
the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States.

0305-0427720 A Member Practice of Ernst & Young Global
—_ 14 —



iIIERNST& YOUNG & Ernst & Young LLP

Page 2

The management’s discussion and analysis on pages 16 through 22 is not a required part of the
basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted
principally of inquiries to management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation
of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and
express no opinion on it.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 9,
2003 on our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests
of compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and
should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The introductory section,
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules, and statistical
tables and schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part
of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial
statements and schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section and statistical
tables and schedules have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Ennit ¥ MLL?

May 9, 2003

0305-0427720
- 15 —



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

The discussion and analysis of Lucas County’s financial
performance provides an overall review of the County’s
financial activities for the year ended December 31, 2002.
The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the
County’s financial performance as a whole. Readers
should also review the transmittal letter, and the basic
financial statements to enhance their understanding of the
County’s financial performance.

Financial Highlights
Key financial highlights for 2002 are as follows:

. The assets of the County exceeded its liabilities at the
close of the year ended December 31, 2002, by
$559,415 (net assets). Of this amount, $313,961 may
be used to meet the County’s ongoing obligations to
citizens and creditors.

. The County’s total net assets increased by $43,840,
which is 8.5% of the net assets at the beginning of the
year 2002.

. At the end of the current fiscal year, the County’s
governmental funds reported a combined ending fund
balance of $156,008, a decrease of $8.7 million from
the prior year. Of this amount, $117,598 is available
for spending (unreserved fund balance) on behalf of its
citizens.

. At the end of the current year, unreserved fund
balance for the general fund was $35,985, which
represents a 6.7% increase over the prior year, and
represents 34% of total general fund expenditures.

. Lucas County's total debt decreased by $6,380 during
the current year. The key factor for this decrease was
the retirement of $6 million in notes for a new baseball
stadium.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual report consists of a series of financial
statements and notes to those statements. These
statements are organized so the reader can understand
Lucas County as a financial whole or as an entire
operating entity. The statements then proceed to provide
an increasingly detailed look at specific financial
conditions.

— 16 —

The County’s basic financial statements comprise three
components: 1) County-wide financial statements, 2) fund
financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial
statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic
financial statements themselves.

County - Wide Financial Statements

The County-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the County’s
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities.

The statement of net assets presents information on all
of the County’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net assets. The statement
of activites presents information showing how the
County’s net assets changed during the current year.
These statements include all assets and liabilities using
the accrual basis of accounting similar to the accounting
used by the private sector companies. This basis of
accounting takes into account all of the current year's
revenues and expenses regardless of when the cash is
received or paid.

These two statements report the County’s net assets
and the change in those assets. This change in net
assets is important because it tells the reader whether, for
the County as a whole, the financial position of the County
has improved or diminished. However, in evaluating the
overall position of the County, nonfinancial information
such as changes in the County’s tax base and the
condition of County capital assets will also need to be
evaluated.

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities, the County is divided into three kinds of
activities:

¢ Governmental Activities-Most of the County’s services
are reported here including public safety, social
services programs, administration, and all
departments with the exception of our Water and
Sewer funds and Wastewater Treatment.



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

L4 Business-Type Activities- These services have a
charge based upon the amount of usage. The County
charges fees to recoup the cost of the entire operation
of our Water and Sewer and Wastewater Treatment
Plants as well as all capital expenses associated with
these facilities.

¢ Component Units- The County includes financial data
of the Toledo MudHens Baseball Club, Inc., Lott
Industries, Inc., Preferred Properties, Inc., and
Community Living Options, Inc. These component
units are described in Note A of the Notes to the
Financial Statements. The component units are
separate and may buy, sell lease and mortgage
property in their own name and can sue or be sued in
their own name.

The County-wide Financial Statements can be found on
pages 23 - 25 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to
maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objects. The County,
like other state and local governments, uses fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the
County can be divided into three categories: governmental
funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. Fund
financial reports provide detailed information about the
County’s major funds. Based on restriction on the use of
monies, the County has established many funds which
account for the multitude of services provided to our
residents. However, these fund financial statements focus
on the County’s most significant funds. In the case of
Lucas County, our major funds are the General, Children
Services Board, Board of Mental Retardation, Job and
Family Services, Capital Projects, Debt Service, Water
Supply System, Sewer System, and Wastewater
Treatment.

Governmental Funds: Governmental funds are used to
account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. However, unlike the Government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on current sources and uses of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable
resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such

information may be useful in evaluating government’s
near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower
than the government-wide financial statements, it is useful
to compare the information presented for governmental
funds with similar information presented for governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term
impact of the County’s near-term financial decisions. Both
the governmental fund balance sheet and the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds
and governmental activities.

The County maintains several individual governmental
funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances for the major funds, which were identified earlier.
Data from the other governmental funds are combined
into a single, aggregated presentation. Individua! fund
data for each of these non-major governmental funds is
provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere
in this report. The governmental fund financial statements
can be found on pages 26 - 36 of this report.

The County adopts and annual appropriated budget for
its general fund. A budgetary comparison statement has
been provided for the general fund to demonstrate
compliance with this budget.

Proprietary Funds: The County maintains two different
types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to
report the same functions presented as business-type
activities in the government-wide financial statements.
The County uses enterprise funds to account for its Water
and Sewer and Wastewater Treatment operations.
Internal Service funds are an accounting device used to
accumulate and allocate costs internally among the
County’s various functions. The County uses internal
service funds to account for its self-insurance programs,
vehicle maintenance, telephone system, central supplies,
and worker’s compensation programs. Because these
services predominantly benefit governmental rather than
business-type functions, they have been included with
governmental activities in the County-wide financial
statements. The proprietary fund financial statements can
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

be found on pages 38 - 45 of this report.

Fiduciary Funds: Are used to account for resources held
for the benefit of parties outside the government.
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide
financial statements because the resources of those funds
are not available to support the County’s own programs.
The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that
of the proprietary funds. The fiduciary fund financial
statement can be found on page 46 of this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements: The notes provide
additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the County-wide and
fund financial statements. The notes to the financial
statements can be found on pages 50 - 77 of this report.

Other Information: In addition to the basic financial
statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents combining and individual fund statements and
schedules which can be found on pages 80 - 173 of this
report.

County-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a
usefu! indicator of a County’s financial position. In the
case of the County, assets exceeded liabilities by
$559,415 ($472,133 in governmental activities and
$87,282 in business type activities) as of December 31,
2002. This is an increase of $38,913 (9.0%) for
governmental activities, and $4,927 (6.0%) for business
type activities. By far, the largest portion of the County’s
net assets (66%) reflects its investment in capital assets
(e.g., land, buildings, machinery and equipment,
infrastructure), less any related debt used to acquire those
assets that is still outstanding. The County uses these
capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending. Although the County’s investment in its capital
assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted
that the resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

— 18 —

Table 1
Net Assets
Governmental Business-
Activities Type Activities Total
Assets 2001 2002 2001 2002 _2001 2002
Currentand otherassets. . . ............ ... $362,557 $375,062 $14,552 $17,095 $377,109 $392,15
Capitalassets,net . . ...................t. 265,867 278,844 89,907 91.095 355,774 369,939
Total Assets . ... ovvree i 628,424 653,906 104,459 108,19 732,883 762,096

Liabilities
Current and other liabilities . . ........... ... (73,962) (70,410) (1,047) (1,308) (75,009) (71,718)
Long-term liabilities due within one year. . .. .. (12,562) (12,870) (715) (646) (13,277) (13,516)
Long-term liabilities due in more than one year . (108,680) (98.493) (20,342) (18,954) (129.,022) (117.,447)

Total liabilities . . ........... .o (195,204) (181.773) (22,104) (20,908) {217.308) (202,681)
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, netofdebt ..... .. 144,625 160,498 68,850 71,495 213,475 231,993
Restricted:

Capitalprojects . . . ...t 19,672 554 - - 19,672 554

Debtservice .......... .. cvviiiian cunn 10,542 12,907 - - 10,542 12,907

Other . oo e e s 101 - - - 101 -
Unrestricted . . ... ... 258,280 298,174 13,505 15,787 271,785 313,961

Total NetAssets. .. ........ocoinveen.. $433,220 $472,133 $82,355 $87,282 $515575 559,41



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

An additional portion of the County’s net assets (2.4%)
represents resources that are subject to restrictions on
how they can be used. The remaining balance of
unrestricted assets ($313,961) may be used to meet the
County’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

As of December 31, 2002, the County is able to report
positive balances in both the governmental and business -
type activities of $472,133 and $87,282 respectively.
Table 2 (on following page) provides a summary of the
changes in net assets for the year ended December 31,
2002. The County first implemented GASB Statement
No.34, Basic Financial Statements-and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local
Governments, in 2001. Due to adjustments made in 2001
for deferred revenue items, and the expensing of long-
term wages and benefits, the revenue and expenditure
line items are not comparative.

Governmental Activities

Human Services accounts for $111,321 of the $411,628
total expenses for governmental activities, or 27% of total
expenses. The next largest program is health, accounting
for $92,265 which represents 22% of total governmental
expenses

Tax revenue accounts for $199,688 of the $450,446
total revenue for governmental activity, or 44% of total
revenue. Operating grants was the largest program
revenue accounting for $176,357, or 39% of total
governmental revenue. The major recipients of
intergovernmental revenue were Job and Family Services,
receiving $60,183, and Children Services Board, receiving
$15,577.

The County’s direct charges to users of governmental
services made up $25,137 or 5.6% of total governmental
revenue. These charges are for fees for real estate
transfers, fees associated with the collection of property
taxes, fines and forfeitures related to judicial activity, and
licences and permits associated with building inspectors.

Business- type Activities

The net assets for the business - type activities for the
County increased by $4,927 during the year 2002. Major
revenue sources were charges for service of $12,534 and
capital contributions of $1,785 that resulted from
assessment on construction projects.

Financial Analysis of the County’s Funds

As noted earlier, the County uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements.

Governmental funds: The focus of the County’s
governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources.
Such information is useful in assessing the County’s
financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund
balance may serve as a useful measure of the County’s
net resources available for spending at the end of the
fiscal years.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the
County. At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved
fund balance of the general fund was $35,985, while total
fund balance reached $37,564. This is an increase of
6.7% and 4.3%, respectively. As a measure of the
general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both
unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total
fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents
34.5 percent to total general fund expenditures, while total
fund balance represents 35.9 percent of that same
amount.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Revenues
Program Revenues:

Charges forservices . . .............
Operating grants and contributions . . . .

Capital grants and contributions . . . ...

General Revenues:

Investmentincome. . ...............

Change in fair value of investments . . .

Grants, contributions,and charges

not restricted to specific programs. . . ..

Program Expenses
General Government:

Legislative and executive .. .........

Judical system .. ...... ...
Publicsafety. . ................. ...
Publicworks .............. .. .....
Health ......... ... ... it
Humanservices . ..................
Conservation and recreation . .........
Miscellaneous ... ........ ..ot
Interest and fiscal charges ... ........
Sanitaryengineer . ........... ... ..
Watersupply system . ..............
Wastewater treatment . .. ....... ... ..
Sewersystem.....................
Soldwaste . ................ ...,
Parking facilities . .. ................

Total Expenses .. ................
Increase in Net Assets before Transfers .
Transfers . ...,
IncreaseinNetAssets .. ............
Net Assets-beginning . . .............

Net Assets-ending . . ...............

DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000’s)

Table 2
Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Business-
Activities Type Activities Total

2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002
$ 25,022 $25,137 $ 10,183 $12,534 $ 35,205 $37,671
187,560 176,357 3,014 1,785 190,574 178,142
5,467 734 - - 5,467 734
283,308 199,688 - - 283,308 199,688
12,468 9,339 - - 12,468 9,339
1,346 871) - - 1,346 (871)
2,012 1,482 5,790 4,728 7,802 6,210
43,382 38,580 - - 43,382 38,580
560,565 450,446 18,987 19,047 579,552 469,493
45,568 40,040 - - 45,568 40,040
56,599 54,451 - - 56,599 54,451
61,840 57,112 - - 61,840 57,112
29,134 27,746 - - 29,134 27,746
91,586 92,265 - - 91,586 92,265
123,391 111,321 - - 123,391 111,321
7,794 6,052 - - 7,794 6,052
13,858 15,831 - - 13,858 15,831
6,975 6,810 - - 6,975 6,810
- - 3,600 3,751 3,600 3,751
- - 2,565 2,369 2,565 2,369
- - 3,360 3,869 3,360 3,869
- - 2,847 2,182 2,847 2,182
- - 1,551 1,754 1,551 1,754
- - 76 100 76 100
436,745 411,628 13,999 14,025 450,744 425,653
123,820 38,818 4,988 5,022 128,808 43,840
__(47) — 95 47 _(95) - -
128,773 38,913 5,035 4,927 128,808 43,840
309,447 433,220 77.320 82,355 386,767 515,575
$433,220 $472,133 $82,355 87,282 $515.575 $559.415
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

The fund balance of the County’s general fund increased
by $1,552 during the current fiscal year. Key factors in
this growth are as follows:

. An increase in the local real-estate tax of $1.3 million
and intergovernmental revenue of $2.5 million offset
the decrease in investment income of $3 million and a
decrease in the change in fair value of investments of
$2.2 million.

. A decrease of $5.5 million in transfers from the general
fund to other funds compensated for an increase in
total expenditures of $5.0 million.

The debt service fund has a total fund balance of $12.9
million, all of which is reserved for the payment of debt
service. The net increase in fund balance during the
current year in the debt service fund was $2.4 million.
This is primarily due to additional transfers from the
general fund.

The other major governmental funds of the County are:
Children Services Board, Board of Mental Retardation and
Developmental Disabilities, and Job and Family Services.

The fund balance of the Children Services Board
increased $2,836 to $32,638. The increase is due to an
increase in intergovernmental revenue of $3,529 primarily
from the State of Ohio.

The fund balance of the Board of Mental Retardation
increased $5,198 to $7,629. The increase is due to a new
tax levy that was collected in 2002.

The fund balance of Job and Family Services decreased
by $8,396 to $9,296. The decrease is due to a reduction
in state revenue due to the timing of the grantor agency
whose fiscal year does not coincide with the County’s
calendar year

Enterprise funds. The County’'s enterprise funds
provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the Water Supply System at
the end of the year amounted to $2.6 million, those for the
Wastewater Treatment Plant amounted to $4.1 million,
and for the Sewer System was $3.4 million. The total
growth in net assets for these were $0.3 million, $0.3
million and $0.6 million respectively. Other factors
concerning the finances of these two funds have already

been addressed in the discussion of the County’s
business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights.

Differences between the original budget and the final
amended budgets were $286 thousand. This was due to
decrease in operating transfers out to other funds for debt
service and capital projects, and miscellaneous
expenditures.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The County’s investment in capital
assets for its governmental and business type activities as
of December 31, 2002, amounts to $369.9 million (net of
accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital
asset includes land, buildings structures and
improvements, furniture, fixtures equipment, and
infrastructure. The total increase in the County’s
investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was
4.0 percent (a 4.9 percent increase for governmental
activities and a 1.3 percent increase for business-type
activities.)

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year
included the following:

. Continued construction of a $7 million Court of
Appeals building.

. Completed construction of a new $44.4 million
Baseball stadium.

. Completed $7.0 million in infrastructure projects, with
$5.2 mitlion remaining in construction in progress

. invested $5.1 million in a new Payroll/Human resource
system.

Additional information on the County’s capital assets can
be found in Note F.

Long-term debt. Atthe end of the current fiscal year,
the County had total bonded debt outstanding of $85.8
million. Of this amount, $53.2 million comprises debt
backed by the fulf faith and credit of the government and
$13.1 million is special assessment debt for which the
government is liable in the event of default by the property
owners subject to the assessment. The remaining $19.5
million is non-tax revenue bonds. The County also had
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outstanding $21.8 million of Ohio Water Development
Authority (OWDA) loans and $3.0 million Ohio Public
Works Commission (OPWC) loans.

The County’s total debt decreased by $11.7 million
during the current fiscal year. This was due to required
debt service payments and only a relatively minor bond
issue of $1 million for special assessment.

The County currently refunded and redeemed the 1992
General Obligation Bonds for the regional jail. This
refunding reduces debt service payments over the next
five years by $141, and the economic gain is $128.

The County maintains an “A+” rating from Standard &
Poor's and Fitch and an “A1" rating from Moody’s for
general obligation debt. The bonds for the baseball
stadium have been rated “A2" by Moody’s, “A” by
Standard and Poor’s, and “A+” by Fitch.

State statutes limit the amount of unvoted general
obligation debt the County may issue to one percent of its
total assessed valuation. The current debt limitation for
Lucas County is $40.2, which is significantly in excess of
the County’s outstanding unvoted general obligation debt.

Additional information on the County’s long-term debt
can be found in Note H.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

. The unemployment rate for the County is
currently 6.9 percent, which is a increase from the
rate of 5.0 percent a year ago. The state average
unemployment rate was 5.7, and the national
average was 5.8.

. Inflationary trends in the region compare
favorably to national indices.

These factors were considered in preparing the County’s
budget for the 2003 fiscal year.

During the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance
in the general fund increased to $35,985. The County
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has prepared a budget for 2003 appropriating only $3
million of the unreserved balance. The County prepared
a balanced budget for 2003 without an increase in taxes
or an increase in rates in the enterprise funds.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general
overview of Lucas County’s finances for all those with an
interest in the governments’ finances.  Questions
concerning any of the information provided in this report,
or requests for additional financial information should be
addressed to:

Larry A. Kaczala, Lucas County Auditor
One Government Center

Suite 600

Toledo, OH 43604-2255



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Primary Government
Governmental  Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
Assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents ...................... $ 27319  § 1,034 § 28,353 § 4,366
Pooled investments ...........c.ccociviniinniiiiini, 187,403 11,920 199,323 5,918
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectables) ..... 140,223 4,134 144,357 4,266
Due fromotherfunds ........c...cccoiiiiiniiin . 10 (10) -
Due from other governments .............c.covvviiiinnnnn. 19,558 19,558
Prepaid expenses ........ccoveeiiiiiiiiiiiie - 232
Inventory of materials and supplies ...................... 549 17 566 341
Capital assets not being depreciated ....................... 32,930 402 33,332 1,141
Capital assets being depreciated (net) ..................... 245,914 90,693 336,607 14,383
Totalassets ..........oooviiiiiiiiiiien 653,906 108,190 762,096 30,647
Liabilities:
Accounts payable ...............c 14,580 630 15,210 3,915
Accrued wages and benefits ................cooei 30,411 678 31,089 418
Due to other governments .........c...ccooiiiiiiiini. 2,601 2,601
Matured bonds payable ... 16 16
Matured interest payable .................coocoinnn, 18 18
Accrued interest payable ... 62 62
Deferredrevenue ............cooooviiiiiiiiiiiiieei, - - 1,181
Claims payable ... 7,022 7,022
Notes payable .........ccoiiviiiiiiiiiii e 15,700 15,700 36
Long-term liabilities
Due withinoneyear ...........c..cccoviiicnniinnenn, 12,324 646 12,970 254
Due in more thanoneyear ............cc..coeeeeenn. 99,039 18,954 117,993 7,021
Total liabilities ..........cc.ccooecin v 181,773 20,908 202,681 12,825
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt ... 160,498 71,495 231,993
Restricted for:
Capital projects ........ccoovviiiiiiiiiiiiien, 554 554
Debtservice ..........cooooiii 12,907 12,907
Unrestricted .........coocoeiiiiiiniiii e 298,174 15,787 313,961 17,822
Total Net @SSets ......ocoveieieeieeiieianeienn, $ 472,133  § 87282 § 559,415 § 17,822

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
- 23 —~



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary Government:
Governmental activities:
General government -
Legislative and executive.................... $ 40,040 $ 18,822 $ 5547 $ -
Judicial........oveeviiie 54,451 3,437 15,053
Public safety......cccoooeeveniii 57,112 690 12,977
Public Works......cccoovveiieiiinin 27,746 148 14,118
Health......oooiivie e 92,265 1,473 45,241
Human services.........coccovvviiiiiniicnnnn, 111,321 83,239
Conservation and recreation................... 6,052 567 182 734
Miscellaneous.........ccocovvvivviiiiniinenn. 15,832
Interest and fiscal charges..................... 6,809
Total governmental activities................ 411,628 25137 176,357 734
Business-type activities:
Sanitary engineer.............ooooiviiiienn. 3,751 4,216 62
Water supply ......coooiviiiinii 2,369 930 580
Wastewater treatment...................el. 3,869 4,501 -
SBWET ... it 2,182 572 1,143
Solidwaste.......cocvvviiin 1,754 1,942 -
Parking facilities............ccocceoin 100 373 -

Total business-type activities............... 14,025 12,534 1,785 -
Total primary government..............cc.oocceeenn $ 425653 § 37671 $ 178,142 & 734
Component Units:

Lott INAUSERES. ...cevvvvneeeiiiiee e ee e $ 6,266 $ 5672 $ 1,213 § -
Preferred Properties..........co.coeviiiieiinn 913 320 576
Community Living Options....................c... 3,880 4,539 299
Toledo Mud Hens.............cons 9,050 3,854
Total component UnitS........ccoceevvveiciiiiinn $ 20,109 § 14,385  § 2,088 $ -
General Revenues:
Property TaX......couueuueieie it
SIS TaAX. . euititieit et et
1011 1= gt = T O P ORI
Charges for services not restricted to specific programs.............
intergovernmental revenue not restricted to specific programs.....
Investment INCOME. .. ..coviiiiie e
Net change in fair value of investments.....................o,
MISCEIIANEBOUS. . ..ovv ittt et e
Capital contributions not restricted to specific programs..............
=110 (£ T OO PR PPN
Total general revenues and transfers....................cooo.
Changesinnetassets............c.ocovviviiiiiii i
Net assets - beginning..........ccooiiiiiiiiiiii s
Net assets - ending........co.vvveieiiiiiii

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Assets
Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
$ (15,671) § - (15,671) § -
(35,961) (35,961)
(43,445) (43,445)
(13,480) (13,480)
(45,551) (45,551)
(28,082) (28,082)
(4,569) (4,569)
(15,832) (15,832)
(6,809) (6,809)
(209,400) - (209,400) -
527 527
(859) (859)
632 632
(467) (467)
188 188
273 273
- 294 294 -
(209,400) 294 (209,106) -
619
(17)
958
(5,196)
- - - (3,636)
106,090 106,090
..... 75,328 75,328
..... 18,270 18,270
..... 228 228
...... 1,254 1,254
..... 9,339 9,339
..... 871) 871)
38,580 38,580 6,304
..... - 4,728 4,728
..... 95 (95) -
...... 248,313 4,633 252,946 6,304
38,913 4,927 43,840 2,668
..... 433,220 82,355 515,575 15,154
..... $ 472133  $ 87,282 559,415 § 17,822

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Children Board of
Services Mental
General Board Retardation
Assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents ............................ $ 2,965 $ 3510 § 2,109
Pooled investments ............c.ccooiiiiiiiiiei 28,752 30,757 8,053
Receivables (net of allowance for
uncoliectables)
TAXES oo 33,430 19,509 33,200
ACCOUNES L.eeiiii e 710 62 -
Special assessments ...........ooeeeiiiiiiiiiiiieen 1 - -
Accruedinterest .............ooiiiiiii 1,324 - -
LOaNSs ..o - - -
Due from other governments .............c.ccoeiiiiiininn, 4,644 1,341 2,357
Inventory: materials and supplies .......................eils - - -
Total @SSeLS ..uvviiveeiii e $ 71,826 % 55,179 % 45,719
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable ..............cocoeiin $ 519 % 378§ 644
Accrued wages and benefits ..............coeviiiin, 5,208 1,326 2,093
Duetootherfunds ............cooooviiiiiii 95 19 -
Due to other governments .....................oevviiinnnnn 2,601 - -
Deferred revenue ...........cocoeiiiiviiiiiniieieineieiie 25,839 20,818 35,353
DEPOSIS ..evreeiieiiiie et - - -
Matured bonds payable ..................cooon - - -
Matured interest payable ..............co.cooiiiiil, - - -
Accrued interest payable ..............coccoeiiiiiin - - -
Notes payable .............coooiiiiiiii - - -
Total liabilities ...........ccocoiiiiii 34,262 22,541 38,090
Fund balances: .
Reserved for:
Encumbrances ...........ococeiiiiiiiei 1,679 1,047 2,234
INVENTOTY ..eniiniiiii e - - -
Loans receivable ..............cocoviiiiii - - -
Debt Service ........coeiiiiiiii - - -
Unreserved (deficit), reported in:
General fund ..........ccooiiiiii 35,985 - -
Special revenue funds ...........coocoi - 31,591 5,395
Capital projects funds ...........coociiiiiiniiin, - - -
Total fund balances ..............cocevviviiiiiiii e 37,564 32,638 7,629
Total liabilities and fund balances ............................ $ 71826 $ 55,179 § 45,719

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



Job and Nonmajor Total
Family Capital Debt Governmental Governmental
Services Improvements Service Funds Funds

$ 1,129  § 2,037 § 1,016 $ 11,733 § 24,499

13,024 23,483 11,714 39,110 154,893
- - - 29,555 115,694

- 675 - 627 2,074

- - 20,832 - 20,833

- - - - 1,324

- - - 286 286
1,196 737 116 9,167 19,558
432 432

$ 15349  § 26,932 % 33678 $ 90,910 § 339,593

$ 4505 § 2884 § - $ 5,360 $ 14,290
1,523 - - 2,260 12,410
25 - - 38 177

- - - - 2,601

- - 20,737 35,564 138,311

- - 16 - 16

- - 18 - 18

- 62 - - 62

- 15,700 - - 15,700
6,053 18,646 20,771 43,222 183,585
668 7,931 - 11,326 24,785

- - - 432 432

- - - 286 286

- - 12,907 - 12,907

- - - - 35,985
8,628 - - 35,445 81,0589
- 355 - 199 554
9,296 8,286 12,907 47,688 156,008

$ 15349 § 26932 § 33678 § 90,910 § 339,593

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES
TO NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
DECEMBER 31,2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Total governmental fund balances $ 156,008

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 278,844

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the cost
of insurance and other services to individual funds. The assets and
liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental
activities in the statement of net assets. (less 200 net capital assets
included above as capital assets used in governmental activities.) 27,780

Long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures
and therefore deferred in the funds. 138,311

Long term liabilities, including bonds payable, OWDA loans,
OPWC loans, capital leases, compensated absences, and landfill obligation
are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are

not reported on the funds. (128,810)
Net assets of governmental activities $ 472,138

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

(Amounts in 000's)

Children Board of Job and
Services Mental Family
General Board Retardation Services
Revenues:
TAXES evviiteit it ieieeie e $ 87,424 $ 19,094 § 32245 $ -
Charges for services .............cooovenvenn 12,707 62 - -
Licenses and permits ................coceven 37 - - -
Fines and forfeits ...........c.c..cceniiiinnn, 458 - - -
Special assessments .................oeeee 27 - - -
Inergovernmental revenue .................... 21,025 16,577 3,931 60,183
Investmentincome ... 9,130 - - -
Net change in fair value of investments .... (871) - - -
Miscellaneous revenue ........................ 2,982 3,937 8,308 -
Total revenues .........cocveeivnnncinnn. 132,919 38,670 44 484 60,183
Expenditures:
Current:
General government:
Legislative and executive ................ 25,442 - - -
Judicial. oo 38,956 - - -
Public safety...........cooviiiiin 35,640 - - -
Publicworks......ccooviiiinic 255 - - -
Health. ... 749 - 39,286 -
HUMmMan ServiCes..........ccoveiiiiiiiiiiiennene 1,488 35,834 - 71,421
Conservation and recreation................... 1,465 - - -
Miscellaneous............coeveieieneenniinnnnnnns, 459 - - -
Capital outlay........ccoeeveviiiiii, - - - -
Debt service:
Principal retirement....................co - - - -
Interest and fiscal charges...................... - - - -
Total expenditures............c.cooeviiiiinnene 104,454 35,834 39,286 71,421
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures.................... 28,465 2,836 5,198 (11,238)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
OPWC loan proceeds...........ccovvvnen.n - - - -
Payment to currently refund bonds.............. - - - -
Proceeds of bonds.........ccooveiiiiiiiiinn - - - -
Proceeds of refunding bonds.................... - - - -
Transfers in........ccooooviiiiiiiin - - - 2,847
Transfers out......c.cooviveiiiiiiiiiicnnnn, (26,913) - - (5)
Total other financing sources (uses)..... (26,913) - - 2,842
Net change in fund balances.................. 1,552 2,836 5,198 (8,396)
Fund balance at beginning of year
as restated (Note Q)...........coociiiiiiiiie 36,012 29,802 2,431 17,692
Fund balance atend of year.................... $ 37564 $ 32638 $ 7,629 $ 9,296

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Nonmajor Total
Capital Debt Governmental Governmental
Improvements Service Funds Funds

$ - 5259 § 31,833 § 175,855
- - 11,958 24,727

- - - 37

- - 143 601

433 1,843 - 2,303

734 - 76,895 178,345

62 - - 9,192
- - - (871)

2,872 4,390 15,942 38,431
4,101 11,492 136,771 428,620

- - 10,857 36,299

- - 14,935 53,891

- - 22,561 58,201

- - 13,082 13,337

- - 52,413 92,448

- - 3,363 112,106

- - 4,537 6,002

- - 15,488 15,947

26,168 - 5,854 32,022

- 11,980 - ‘ 11,980

204 6,605 - 6,809

26,372 18,585 143,090 439,042
(22,271) (7,093) (6,319) (10,422)

- - 920 920
- (2,015) - (2,015)

1,050 - - 1,050

- 1,790 - 1,790

4,148 9,683 10,857 27,535
(342) - (369) (27,629)

4,856 9,458 11,408 1,651
(17,415) 2,365 5,089 (8,771)
25,701 10,542 42,599 164,779

$ 8286 § 12,907  § 47,688 $ 156,008

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ (8,771)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated
over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeds depreciation

in the current period. 12,948
Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial

resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. 21,980
The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to

governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term

debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.

Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. This

amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt. 10,235
Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require

the use of financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as

expenditures in governmental funds. (653)
The net revenue of certain activities of internal service funds is reported

with governmental activities. 3,174

Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 38,913
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF REVEI@UES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Budgeted Amount
Variance
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
TAXES.cceeneeieriaeeeeeeeerest et $ 87,098 $ 87,098 $ 88,032 $ 934
Charges for Services..........ccoonvviviineeniinns 12,285 12,285 12,663 378
Licenses and permits... 52 52 36 (16)
Fines and forfeits.........ccviiiiiniiiiineinnnns 565 565 488 (77)
Special assessments........ocovvvieiniennnies 22 22 27 5
Intergovernmental revenue. 19,723 19,723 18,666 (1,057)
Investment iNCome..........ccocovviiviimvannnnnnn. 11,595 11,595 10,124 (1,471)
Miscellaneous revenue...........cccocovenvinnnnns 1,984 1,984 3,046 1,062
Total rFeVENUES...c..ooeeeeeiiieceie e 133,324 133,324 133,082 (242)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government:
Legislative and executive..........ceeeeeien 29,462 29,431 27,783 1,648
JudiCial..ouveeeeeeecrie 40,357 40,095 39,286 809
Public safety.......ccceeerveciriiniiiiniienn 35,620 36,556 35,849 707
Public works. 310 312 262 50
Health. ..o 1,023 1,099 780 319
Human services........cccoiviiiniininvennnn 1,496 1,642 1,572 70
Conservation and recreation... 1,867 1,845 1,561 284
Miscellaneous.........cccvvivciniiiiinniencinns 1,792 850 478 372
Total expenditures............coeveeriiecienenn 111,927 111,830 107,571 4,259
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures 21,397 21,494 25,511 4,017
Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in...........ccceee 1,000 1,000 (1,000)
Operating transfers (out) (25,446) (25,257) (24,734) 523
Total other financing sources (uses)........ (24,446) (24,257) (24,734) (477)
Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and other uses (Note N) (3,049) (2,763) 777 3,540
Fund balance at beginning of year............... 21,190 21,190 21,190 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated......... 3,073 3,073 3,073 -
Fund balance at end of year..........cccccccoue... $ 21,214 $ 21,500 $ 25,040 $ 3,540

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
CHILDREN SERVICES BOARD - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
TAXES. e evevneeeeveieee e e et ete e er e aas $ 19,135 $ 19,135 $ 19,129 $ (6)
Intergovernmental revenue...........ooevevneeneeniiinnns. 14,807 14,807 16,004 1,197
Miscellaneous revenue..........cccovvvveviiiiiniinininien 3,381 3,381 4,011 630
Total revenue...........cccoeveeieiiiiiiiiiie e 37,323 37,323 39,144 1,821
Expenditures:
Current:
Human services
Personal ServiCes ......c.ovvvvevviiiiiiiiiiiniia, 20,247 20,247 19,296 951
Materials and supplies ......cccccocoviiniiiiiiiiinnn 1,193 1,193 988 205
Charges and ServiCes ..........covvveiiiiiiiiiniinannn 17,206 17,206 16,230 976
Capital outlay and equipment .....................ee. 847 847 263 584
Total expenditures....................coocivviiiiiniiannn, 39,493 39,493 36,777 2,716
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures...... (2,170) (2,170) 2,367 4,537
Fund balance at beginning of year...................... 28,532 28,532 28,532 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................ 1,312 1,312 1,312 -
Fund balance atend of year.........ccoooevvinienieennn. $ 27674 $ 27,674 $ 32,211 $ 4,537

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

BOARD OF MENTAL RETARDATION - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

(Amounts in 000's)

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget-

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
TAXES . eeuneieeiii et $ 32,395 $ 32,395 $ 32,305 $ (90)
Charges for serviCes..........ooceeivvviiiiiiineiiniinn, 65 65 - (65)
Intergovernmental revenue..............cooeevviieiiniin 7,510 7,510 3,696 (3,814)
Miscellaneous revenue...........coeveevveniiviiinenennnn.. 6,089 6,089 8,483 2,394
Total revenue.............co.covviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniiininnn, 46,059 46,059 44,484 (1,575)
Expenditures:
Current:
Health
Personal Services .........ovvvviiiiiiciiiiiivinii s 32,732 32,101 31,027 1,074
Materials and supplies ..........covveeeviiiniiiiinnnn... 1,086 1,561 1,104 457
Charges and Services ......cccovvvvveiiiniiniiiiniininnns 13,024 13,180 11,026 2,154
Capital outlay and equipment .........c.cccoeeenainnl. 1,343 1,343 888 455
Total expenditures............cccoovviiiiiiiiiiiniininnn, 48,185 48,185 44,045 4,140
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures...... (2,126) (2,126) 439 2,565
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 1,049 1,049 1,049 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................. 4,239 4,239 4,239 -
Fund balance atend of year...................coveneenes $ 3,162 $ 3,162 $ 5,727 $ 2,565

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
JOB AND FAMILY SERVICES - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue...........cooveevveeeennennnnn. $ 72,300 $ 72,300 $ 58,988 $ (13,312)
Total revenuUe.............coccveiiineeiniiiiiiaeiennns 72,300 72,300 58,988 (13,312)
Expenditures:
Current:
Human services
Personal services........ coooviiiiiiiiini 28,481 28,691 25,460 3,231
Materials and supplies............cccoovninnn 474 534 470 64
Charges and ServiCes............ccvieiiirniiiinncanae 51,303 50,657 46,118 4,539
Capital outlay and equipment.................coooeene 858 1,233 861 372
Total expenditures...........c.ccvveviviivuneneniiniiane. 81,116 81,115 72,909 8,206
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... (8,816) (8,815) (13,921) (5,106)
Other financing sources:

Operating transfers in...............ccocon . 3,675 3,675 2,847 (828)
Total other financing SOUrces. .............cc..c........ 3,675 3,675 2,847 (828)
Excess of revenues and other financing sources

over (under) expenditures...................co.cco.oo.. (5,141) (5,140) (11,074) (5,934)

Fund balance at beginning of year.............c......... 23,868 23,868 23,868 -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated.................. 597 597 597 -

Fund balance atend of year................ccooeenen. $ 19,324 $ 19,325 $ 13,391 $ (5,934)

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Business-type Activities - Enterprise

Water
Supply Wastewater Sewer
System Treatment System
Assets:
Current assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents................... $ 168 § 257 § 247
Pooled investments..................ocovinn 1,935 2,958 2,850
Receivables (net of allowances for
uncollectables) 545 1,387 494
Due from other funds......................coo. - - -
Inventory: materials and supplies................... - 17 -
Total current assets............ccovveeivviiiiinnni. 2,648 4,619 3,591
Noncurrent assets - capital assets:
Land......ooovrii 200 39 10
Land improvements...................oc 55,756 - 59,085
Buildings, structures, and improvements......... 2,839 17,442 -
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment................. 1,641 9,286 -
Less accumulated depreciation..................... (22,464) (12,954) (22,622)
Total noncurrent assets......................... 37,972 13,813 36,473
Total @ssets......oovvvveiiiiiiee, $ 40,620 $ 18,432  § 40,064
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable.............cccooeeiiiiiine $ 63 § 281 % 162
Accrued wages and benefits.......................... - 184 -
Duetootherfunds.....................oin - - -
Claims payable - current...............coooceeiiien - - -
Current portion of long-termdebt.................... 120 388 108
Total current liabilities................................ 183 853 270
Noncurrent liabilities:
Obligations under capital leases...................... - - -
OWDA loans payable..........c.....cccoveenenienn. 4,721 10,066 2,610
Claims payable - noncurrent.......................... - - -
OPWC loans payable...................cocooeneen, - 192 31
Total noncurrent liabilities........................... 4,721 10,258 2,641
Total liabilities..................... 4,904 11,111 2,911
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt....... 33,131 3,166 33,725
Unrestricted.............ccooiiii 2,585 4,155 3,428
Totalnetassets...............ccoviiiiieiinnnnns 35,716 7,321 37,153
Total liabilities and net assets........................ $ 40,620 $ 18,432  §$ 40,064

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Funds Governmental

Nonmajor Activities -
Enterprise Internal Service
Funds Total Funds

$ 362 $ 1,034 $ 2,820
4,177 11,920 32,510

1,708 4,134 12

- - 189

- 17 117

6,247 17,105 35,648

153 402 83

- 114,841 -

3,006 23,287 30

2,195 13,122 1,203
(2,517) (60,557) (1,116)

2,837 91,095 200

$ 9,084 $ 108,200 $ 35,848
$ 124§ 630 § 652
494 678 180

10 10 2

- - 3,541

30 646 -

658 1,964 4,375

- - 12

1,334 18,731 -

- - 3,481

- 223 -

1,334 18,954 3,493

1,992 20,918 7,868

1,473 71,495 187

5,619 15,787 27,793

7,092 87,282 27,980

$ 9,084 $ 108,200 $ 35,848

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Business-type Activities - Enterprise

Water
Supply Wastewater Sewer
System Treatment System
Operating revenues:
Charges for Services.........c.ccovmniiinneeeninienneces $ 930 $ 4501 $ 572
Miscellan@ous.........c..evvevvricrereriiinin e 580 - 1,143
Total operating revenues.................... 1,510 4,501 1,715
Operating expenses:
Personal Services...........oocvvuiviinencenne. - 1,080 -
Contract Services........cccevevvvevrcrnrnniennns 262 817 431
Materials and supplies........cooeeeciniinen 11 319 4
Heat, light and power............ccccoeiivienenn, 332 539 83
Depreciation.........cccocviiriieiinniniiieeninien 1,452 457 1,460
MisCellanous........ccccvivieeirieeee et - - -
Employee medical benefit..............c..cooien. - - -
Total operating expenses.................... 2,057 3,212 1,978
Operating income (108S).......cocvrerinnenne. (547) 1,289 (263)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest iNCOME.......ccovevieieriiiiian
Interest and fiscal charges..........cc.ooees (312) (657) (204)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)......... (312) (657) {204)
Income (loss) before contributions and
operating transfers.................c.ocel (859) 632 (467)
Capital contributions...............ccvvieininiiiiinens 2,779 - 1,949
Transfer iN. e
Transfer OUb.....cccuuereir e (95) - -
Change in net assets..........ccceeviviniveeinns 1,825 632 1,482
Net assets at beginning of year......................... 33,891 6,689 35,671
Net assets atend of year............cooeereiininnn, $ 35716 $ 7,321 $ 37,153

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Funds Governmental
Nonmajor Activities -
Enterprise Internal Service

Funds Total Funds

$ 6,531 $ 12,534 § 31,607
62 1,785 100

6,593 14,319 31,707
3,362 4,442 1,315
1,508 3,018 2,530

344 678 1,071

19 973 -

283 3,652 125

6 6 14

- - 23,813

5,522 12,769 28,868
1,071 1,550 2,839

- 147
(83) (1,256) (1)

(83) (1,256) 146

988 294 2,985

- 4,728 -

- 189

- (95) -

988 4,927 3,174
6,104 82,355 24,806

$ 7,092 $ 87282 § 27,980

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water Waste-
Supply Water Sewer
System Treatment System
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers.......c.ccccveeveeeeeireeveenennn. $ 1,407 $ 4,506 $ 1,775
Cash paid to SUppliers.........ccecereeriereece e (599) (1,465) (425)
Cash paid 10 employees.........cocovervinieniicninic e - (1,079) -
Net cash provided by
operating activities........cccccvveviiinin i 808 1,962 1,350
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers OUL........oovcvveeeviiiieeeen e e (95) - -
Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital
financing activities..........ccccvccriercicr e, (95) - -
Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities:
Proceeds of loan.........cccoovvcivvine i - - -
Principal payments - OWDA loans.................... ) (229) (732) (392)
Principal payments - OPWC loans.........c.c........ - (14) (31)
Purchase of capital assets...........ccccoeevecvvinnnnes - (16) -
Interest Paid......c.ccooiveineereniirorinneeeeernnine (312) (657) (204)
Principal payments - capital lease........c...c...... - - -
Net cash used in capital and
related financing activities............ccoeveveneen. (541) (1,419) (627)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales of investments............... 998 1,098 753
Payments for investments...........cccccoveennnns (1519) (2,099) (1,864)
Interest received..........ccoceriienenne. - - -
Net cash used in investing activities............ (521) (1,001) (1,111)
Net decrease in cash......ccoovveccivevceniieinnnnn, (349) (458) (388)
Cash and cash equivalents, January 1.............. 517 715 635
Cash and cash equivalents, December 31........ $ 168 $ 257 $ 247

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Governmental

Nonmajor Activities
Enterprise Internal Service
Funds Total Funds

$ 6,518 $ 14,206 $ 32,050
(1,908) (4,397) (27,721)
(3,365) (4,444) {1,290)

1,245 5,365 3,039

- (95) 189

- (95) 189

(59) (1,412) -

- (45) -
(95) (111) (152)
(83) (1,256) (1)
- - (6)
(237) (2,824) (159)

1,184 4,033 16,467
(2,774) (8,256) (25,453)

- - 147
(1,590) (4,223) (8,839)
(582) (1,777) (5,770)

944 2,811 8,590

$ 362 $ 1,034 $ 2,820

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided
by Operating Activities

Business-Type Activities

Water Waste-
Supply Water
System Treatment
Operating iNCome (I0SS)...c..cvvveerreerreverecrecreeirie e e $ (547) $ 1,289
Adjustments to reconcile operating
income (loss) to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation exXpense.......cc.ococevvvverircniicieeseveenennn, 1,452 457
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Accounts receivable...........cocceevecvviiinee i, (103) 5
Due from other funds .......cccccveeeinveiviicci i
INVENEOTY ot e - 7
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable .........cccocveriiin i e 6 203
Accrued wages and benefits.........cccoeveeceiiininL, - 1
Due to other funds........cocceveeerien v - -
Total adjustments.........ccceiiiiriieeerre v e 1,355 673
Net cash provided by
operating activities..........cccvccvniirii i e $ 808 $ 1,962

Noncash capital and related
financing activities:

Enterprise funds received approximately $4.7 million of contributed fixed assets, approximately $2.8
million to the Water Supply System, and $1.9 million to the Sewer System.

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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- Enterprise Funds Governmental

Nonmajor Activities -
Sewer Enterprise Internal Service
System Funds Total Funds

$ (263) $ 1,071 $ 1,550 $ 2,839
1,460 283 3,652 125

60 (75) (113) (8)

350
- - 7 20
93 (38) 264 44

- 3) (2) (358)
- 7 7 27

1,613 174 3,815 200

$ 1,350 $§ 1,245 $ 5,365 $ 3,039

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUND
DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Agency
Funds
Assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents................ $ 24,011
Segregated cash accounts............cceevveveene. 6,729
Due from other governments................... 15,902
Total assets.......veevvenvnniernieieiieneeens $ 46,642
Liabilities:
Unapportioned monies..........ccccovvveiienennen $ 26,974
Deposits held due to others...........ccooeenenen. 7,724
Payroll withholdings...........ccccviiiininnin 4
Accounts payable..........ccoevvviiii 419
Accured wages & benefits...................... 23
Due to other governments...................... 11,498
Total liabilities........coeveervreenrcreennees $ 46,642

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Assets:
Current assets-
Pooled cash and cash equivalents

Receivables (net of allowances for
uncollectables) accounts
Prepaid expenses.........................

LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

Inventory: materials and supplies.......c.........................

Total current assets.................

Noncurrent assets-
Property, plant and equipment-

Buildings, structures and
improvements.........................

Furniture, fixtures and equipment...

Construction in progress......
Less: accumulated depreciation..
Total noncurrent assets.............

Total @ssets...........cocoooevviviioiie

Liabilities:
Current liabilities-
Accounts Payable......................
Accrued wages and benefits
Deferred revenue....................

Current portion of long-term debt............................

Total current liabilities..............

Noncurrent kiabilities-
Notes Payable.............................
Bonds Payable....

Other long term obligations....................c.....cocovvveen .

Total noncurrent liabilities-.......

Total liabilities...............cooooiviiiiiiiiiie e,

Net Assets:
Unrestricted....................

DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Toledo
Mud Hens Lott Preferred Community
Basebalt Industries Properties Livings
Club, Inc. Inc. Inc. _Options, Inc. Total
$ 3,718 $ 428 $ 148 $ 72 4,366
97 5,697 - 124 5918
755 914 34 2,563 4,266
98 78 56 - 232
242 99 - - 341
4,910 7,216 238 2,759 15,123
- 188 750 - 938
- 8,548 5,781 - 14,329
1,309 3,933 148 43 5,433
- - 203 - 203
(176) (4,083) (1,083) (37) (5,379)
1,133 8,586 5,799 6 15,524
$ 6,043 $ 15,802 $ 6,037 $ 2,765 30,647
$ 3,233 $ 301 $ 42 $ 339 3,915
184 184 - 50 418
1,181 . - 1,181
- 135 119 - 254
4,598 620 161 389 5,768
- - 36 - 36
- 4,050 - - 4,050
- - 2,971 - 2,971
- 4,050 3,007 - 7,057
4,598 4,670 3,168 389 12,825
1,445 11,132 2,869 2,376 17,822
$ 1,445 $ 11,132 $ 2,869 $ 2,376 17,822

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Program Revenues

Toledo Mud Hens

Charges for Grants and Baseball
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Club inc.
Toledo Mud Hens Basebali Club
Recreation $ 9,060 $ 3854 § - 8 (5,196)
Lott Industries
Health 6,266 5,672 1,213 -
Preferred Properties Inc.
Health 913 320 576 -
Community Livings Options,Inc.
Health 3,880 4,539 299
Total component Units................. $ 20,109 $ 14385 § 2088 $ (5,196)
General Revenues:
MiISCellan@ouUS .....cvvvvviiiiiiii i s 5,496
Total general revenues .........cc..ceveviinenennn 5,496
Changes innetassets ........................ 300
Net assets - beginning ... 1,145
Net assets - ending ......cccooovviiiiiiirnenincn $ 1,445

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Assets

Lott Preferred Community
Industries Properties Livings
Inc. Inc. Options, Inc. Total
$ - $ - $ - $ (5,196)
619 - - 619
- (17) - (17)
958 958
$ 619 § 17y $ 958 §$ (3,636)
420 27 361 6,304
420 27 361 6,304
1,039 10 1,319 2,668
10,093 2,859 1,057 15,154
$ 11,132 § 2,869 § 2,376 § 17,822

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2002

'Note A - Description of Lucas County and Basis of
Presentation

The County: Lucas County is a political subdivision of
the State of Ohio. The County was formed by an act of
the Ohio General Assembly in 1835. The three member
Board of County Commissioners is the legislative
and executive body of the County. The County Auditor
is the chief fiscal officer. In addition, there are seven other
elected administrative officials, each of whom are
independent as set forth by Ohio law. These officials are:
Clerk of Courts, Coroner, Engineer, Prosecutor,
Recorder, Sheriff, and Treasurer. There are also ten
Common Pleas Court Judges, two Domestic Relations
Court Judges, two Juvenile Court Judges, one Probate
Court Judge and five Court of Appeals Judges elected
on a County-wide basis to oversee the County’s judicial
system.

The accompanying financial statements present the
County (Primary Government) and its component units,
which are legally separate organizations which the elected
officials of the primary government are financially
accountable. The financial data of the component
units are included in the County’s reporting entity because
of the significance of their operational or financial
relationships with the County. Blended component units,
although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part
of the government operations.

A discretely presented component unit is an entity
that is legally separate from the County but for which the
County is financially accountable, or its relationship with
the County is such that exclusion would cause the
County’s financial statements to be misleading or
incomplete.

The discretely presented component unit column in the
combined financial statements include the County’s
component units. They are reported in a separate column
to emphasize that they are legally separate from the
county. A brief description of each component unit, and
its relationships to the County follows:

Toledo Mud Hens Baseball Club, Inc. is organized to
own, manage, and operate a professional baseball club.
Upon dissolution, any remaining net assets become
property of the Board of County Commissioners, and new
appointments to the board of directors requires
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concurrence of the Commissioners. The county receives
rent from the Med Hens to retire non-tax revenue bonds
issued to finance the construction of the baseball stadium.
The Mud Hens are reported on a fiscal year ending
October 31. Complete financial statements of the
component unit can be obtained from its administrative
office at Fifth Third Field, 406 Washington St., Toledo, OH
43604.

Lott Industries, Inc., is a nonprofit organization affiliated
with the Lucas County Board of Mental Retardation and
Developmental Disabilities (LCBMR/DD), a special
revenue fund of the County. It provides employment for
individuals with mental retardation and developmental
disabilities by obtaining work competitively from the private
and public sectors. A majority of the board of the
component unit is appointed by the LCBMR/DD. The
LCBMR/DD pays the salaries of the administrative staff,
which is a financial obligation of the County, and the
component unit exists solely to provide service to the
LCBMR/DD. Complete financial statements of the
component unit can be obtained from its administrative
office at 2001 Collingwood, Toledo, Ohio 43620.

Preferred Properties, Inc. and Affiliates is a not-for-profit
corporation organized to provide affordable and
accessible housing to persons with disabilities. One third
of the board of the component unit is appointed by the
LCBMR/DD. Funds for the purchase of housing are
received from the LCBMR/DD which come from board
funds and pass through of funds from Community
Assistance Projects administered by the Ohio Department
of Mental Retardation and Developmental Disabilities.
This imposes a financial obligation on the County, and the
component unit is fiscally dependent on the primary
government. Preferred Properties, Inc. is reported on a
fiscal year ending June 30. Complete financial statements
of the component unit can be obtained from its
administrative office at 2001 Collingwood, Toledo, Ohio
43620.

Community Living Options, Inc. is a non-profit
corporation that provides residential assistance and
support services to individuals with mental retardation and



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2002

Note A - Description of Lucas County and Basis of
Presentation (continued)

developmental disabilities. The board of the component
unit is appointed by the LCBMR/DD. The component unit
receives the majority of its funding from the State of Ohio,
passed through the LCBMR/DD. The LCBMR/DD has
agreed to fund any losses of the component unit which
imposes a financial obligation on the County. Complete
financial statements of the component unit can be
obtained from its administrative office at 2001
Collingwood, Toledo, Ohio 43620.

In determining its reporting entity and component units,
the County considered all potential component units,
including the Lucas County Board of Health, Metropolitan
Park District, Lucas County Soif and Water Conservation
District, Lucas County Port Authority, Lucas County
improvement Corporation, Toledo Zoological Society,
Toledo Area Sanitary District, Toledo Lucas County Public
Library, Lucas County Board of Education and Toledo-
Lucas County Convention and Visitors Bureau and
concluded that such were neither component units nor
related organizations of the County and that it would not
be misieading to exclude their activities from the County’s
reporting entity.

Basis of Presentation: The County's basic financial
statements consist of government-wide statements,
including a statement of net assets and a statement of
activities, and fund financial statements which provide a
more detailed level of financial information.

Government-wide Financial Statements: The state-
ment of net assets and the statement of activities
display information about the County as a whole. These
statements include the financial activities of the primary
government, except for fiduciary funds. The activity of the
internal service funds is eliminated to avoid “doubling up”
revenues and expenses. The statements distinguish
between those activities of the County that are
governmental and those that are considered business-
type activities.

The statement of net assets presents the financial
condition of the governmental and business-type activities
for the County at year-end. The statement of activities
presents a comparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for each program or function of the

County’s governmental activities and for the business-type
activities of the County. Direct expenses are those that
are specifically associated with a service, program or
department and therefore clearly identifiable to a particular
function. Program revenues include charges paid by the
recipient for the goods or services offered by the program,
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular program
and interest earned on grants that is required to be used
to support a particular program. Revenues which are not
classified as program revenues are presented as general
revenues of the County, with certain limited exceptions.
The comparison of direct expenses with program
revenues identifies the extent to which each business
segment or governmental function is self-financing or
draws from the general revenues of the County.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been
eliminated from the government-wide financial statements.
Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of
taxes and other charges between the County’s water and
sewer function and various other functions of the County.
Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs
and program revenues reported for the various functions
concerned.

Fund Financial Statements: During the year, the
County segregates transactions related to certain County
functions or activities in separate funds in order to aid
financial management and to demonstrate legal
compliance. Fund financial statements are designed to
present financial information of the County at this more
detailed level. The focus of governmental and enterprise
fund financial statements is on major funds. Each major
fund is presented in a separate column. Nonmajor funds
are aggregated and presented in a single column. Internal
service funds are combined and the totals are presented
in a single column on the face of the proprietary fund
statements. Fiduciary funds are reported by type.

Fund Accounting: The County uses funds to maintain
its financial records during the year. A fund is defined as
a fiscal and accounting entity with a self balancing set of
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2002

Note A- Description of Lucas County and Basis of
Presentation (continued)

accounts. There are three categories of funds:
governmental, proprietary and fiduciary.

Governmental Funds: Governmental funds are those
through which most governmental functions of the County
are financed. Governmental fund reporting focuses on the
sources, use and balances of current financial resources.
Expendable assets are assigned to the various
governmental funds according to the purposes for which
they may or must be used. Current liabilities are assigned
to the fund from which they will be paid. The difference
between governmental funds assets and liabilities is
reported as fund balance. The following are the County’s
major governmental funds.

« General Fund: This fund accounts for the general operating
revenues and expenditures of the County not recorded
elsewhere. The primary revenue sources are sales and use
taxes, property taxes, state and local government fund
receipts, investment earnings and charges for services.

« Children Services Board Special Revenue Fund: This fund
accounts for County-wide property tax levy, state grants and
reimbursements used for County child care programs.

« Board of Mental Retardation Special Revenue Fund: This
fund accounts for a County-wide property tax levy, state
grants and reimbursements used for care and services for the
mentally handicapped and retarded.

« Public Assistance Special Revenue Fund: This fund accounts
for various federal and state grants and reimbursements as
well as transfers from the General Fund used for human
service programs.

« Capital Improvements Capital Projects Fund: This fund
accounts for renovation and construction of County owned
buildings and facilies, and construction of special
assessment projects.

« Debt Service Fund: This fund accounts for revenues received
and used to pay principal and interest on debt.

Proprietary Fund

- Proprietary fund reporting focuses on the determination of
operating income, changes in net assets, financial position
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and cash flows. These funds are used to account for operations
that provide services which are financed primarily by user
charges, or activities where periodic measurement of income is
appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management
control or other purposes. The County reports the following
major proprietary funds.

« Water Supply System Enterprise Fund: This fund accounts for
the distribution of treated water to individuals and commercial
users of Lucas County.

« Sewer System Enterprise Fund: This fund accounts for
sanitary sewer services provided to individuals and
commercial users in Lucas County and portions of Wood
County.

« Wastewater Treatment Enterprise Fund: This fund accounts
for wastewater treatment services provided to the Sanitary
Engineer, cities of Maumee and Sylvania, Village of
Waterville, Sylvania Township and other portions of Lucas
County and portions of Wood County.

Additionally the County reports which Internal Service
Funds account for the goods or services provided by
certain County departments to other County funds,
departments and other governmental units, on a cost
reimbursement basis. The County also reports agency
funds that account for and maintain assets held by the
County or as an agent for individuals, private
organizations, and other governmental units and other
funds. These assets include: property and other taxes, as
well as other intergovernmental resources that have been
coliected and which will be distributed to other taxing
districts located in Lucas County.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and
expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the Water Supply System,
Wastewater Treatment Plant, and Sewer System, and of
the County’s internal service funds are charges to
customers for sales and services. The County also
recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap fees
intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers
to the system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2002

Note A- Description of Lucas County and Basis of
Presentation (continued)

and internal service funds include the cost of sales and
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting
this definition are reported as non operating revenues and
expenses.

Note B - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying financial statements of the County
are prepared in conformity with GAAP for local
government units as prescribed in statements and
interpretations issued by the GASB and other recognized
authoritative sources. The County has elected not to
apply FASB Statements and interpretations issued after
November 30, 1989, to its proprietary activities.

Government-wide Financial Statements: The
government-wide financial statements are prepared using
the economic resources measurements focus. All assets
and liabilities associated with the operation of the County
are included on the Statement of Net Assets.

Fund Financial Statements: All governmental funds are
accounted for using a flow of current financial resources
measurement focus. With this measurements focus, only
current assets and current liabilities generally are included
on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances reports on the
sources (i.e.,revenues and other financing sources) and
uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of
current financial resources. This approach differs from the
manner in which the governmental activities of the
government-wide financial statements are prepared.
Governmental fund financial statements therefore include
a reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the
refationship between the government-wide statements and
the statements for governmental funds.

Like the governmental-wide statements, all proprietary
fund types are accounted for on a flow of economic
resources measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities
associated with the operation of these funds are included
on the statement of net assets. The statement of changes
in fund net asséts presents increases (i.e., revenues) and
decreases (i.e., expenses) in net total assets. The

statement of cash flows provides information about how
the County finances and meets the cash flow needs of its
proprietary activities.

Fiduciary funds are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus.

Basis of Accounting: Basis of accounting determines
when transactions are recorded in the financial records
and reported on the financial statements. Government-
wide financial statements are prepared using the accrual
basis accounting. Governmental Funds use the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Proprietary and fiduciary
funds also use the accrual basis of accounting.
Differences in the accrual and the modified accrual basis
of accounting arise in the recognition of revenue, the
recording of deferred revenue, and in the presentation of
expenses versus expenditures.

Revenues - Exchange and Non-Exchange Tran-
sactions: Revenue resulting from exchange transactions,
in which each party gives and receives essentially equal
value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the
exchange takes place. On a modified accrual basis,
revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the
resources are measurable and become available.
Available means that the resources will be collected within
the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected
soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the
current fiscal year. For the County, available means
expected to be received within thirty days of fiscal year-
end.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the County
receives value without directly giving equal value in return,
inciude property taxes, grants, entitement and donations.
On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is
recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.
(See Note K). Revenue from grants, entitiement and
donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all
eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility
requirements include timing requirements, which specify
the year when the resources are required to be used or
the year when use is first permitted, matching
requirements, in which the County must provide local
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Note B - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

resources to be used for a specified purpose, and
expenditure requirements, in which the resources are
provided to the County on a reimbursement basis. On
modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange
transactions must also be available before it can be
recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue
sources are considered to be both measurable and
available at year-end: delinquent taxes, sales tax, grants,
interest, fees and charges for services.

Deferred Revenue: Deferred revenue arises when
assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria
have been satisfied.

Property taxes for which there is an enforceable legal
claim as of December 31, 2002 but which were levied to
finance fiscal year 2003 operations, have been recorded
as deferred revenue. Grants and entitlements received
before the eligibility requirements are met are also
recorded as deferred revenue.

On governmentai fund financial statements, receivables
that will not be collected within the available period have
also been reported as deferred revenue.

Expenses/Expenditures: On the accrual basis of
accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are
incurred. The measurement focus of governmental fund
accounting is on decreases in net financial resources
(expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are
generally recognized in the accounting period in which the
related fund liability is incurred, if measurable. Allocations
of cost, such as depreciation and amortization, are not
recognized in the governmental funds.

Budgetary Information: Under Ohio law, the Board of
County Commissioners must adopt an appropriations
budget by January 1st of a given year, or adopt a
temporary appropriation measure with final passage of a
permanent budget by Aprit 1st, for all funds except Agency
Funds. Budgets are legally required for each
organizational unit by object (personal services, materials
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and supplies, charges for services, and capital outlays and
equipment).

Each County department prepares a budget that is
approved by the Board of County Commissioners.
Modifications to the original budget within expenditure
objects can be made by the budget manager in the
Auditor’s Office. The County maintains budgetary control
within an organizational unit and fund by not permitting
expenditures and encumbrances to exceed appropriations
at the object level (the legal level of control).
Unencumbered and unexpended appropriations lapse at
year-end. Encumbered and unpaid appropriations
(reserved for encumbrances) are carried forward to the
next year as authority for expenditures.

The County’s budgetary process accounts for certain
transactions on a basis other than GAAP. The major
difference between the budget basis and the GAAP basis
are:

(1) Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budget) as
opposed to when susceptible to accrual (GAAP).

(2) Expenditures are recorded when encumbered, or paid in
cash (budget), as opposed to when susceptible to accrual
(GAAP).

The actual results of operations, compared to the final
appropriation, which include amendments to the original
appropriation, for each fund type by expenditure function
and revenue source are presented in the Combined
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances-Budget and Actual (non-GAAP Budgetary
Basis)- All Governmental Fund Types. The difference
between the accrual and cash basis statements was not
significant. The reserve for encumbrances is carried
forward as part of the budgetary authority for the next year
and is included in the revised budget amounts shown in
the budget to actual comparisons.

Cash Equivalents: investments of the cash
management pool, and investments with original
maturities of three months or less at the time they are
purchased by the County are considered to be cash
equivalents. Investments with an initial maturity of more
than three months are considered to be investments.
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Inventory of Materials and Supplies: Inventory is
valued at cost using the first-in, first-out method.
Inventory is recorded as an expenditure/expense when
consumed.

Capital Assets: Capital assets, which include property,
plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns in the government-wide financial statements.
Capital assets are defined by the government as assets
with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 (amount
not rounded) and an estimated useful life in excess of two
years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.

Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair
market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do
not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
assets lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital
assets and improvements are capitalized, as projects are
constructed. Interest incurred during the construction
phase of proprietary capital assets is included as part of
the capitalized value of the assets constructed.

All reported capital assets are depreciated using the
straight line method over the following extimated useful
lives: '

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 - 20 years
Buildings, structures, improvements 20 - 40 years
Land improvements (water and sewer lines) 40 years
Infrastructure 20 - 40 years

Use of Estimates: The preparation of the basic financial
statements in conformity with GAAP requires manage-
ment to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disciosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Grants and Other Intergovernmental Revenues:
Local Government fund revenues are recorded as
receivables and revenues when measurable and avail-
able. Assistance awards made on the basis of entitlement
are recorded as intergovernmental receivables and
revenues when entittement occurs. Federal and State
reimbursement type grants for the acquisition or
construction of capital assets are recorded as receivables
and contributed capital when the related expenses are
incurred. All other Federal and State reimbursement type
grants are recorded as receivables and revenues when
the related expenditures/expenses are incurred.

Interfund Transactions: During the normal course of
operations, the County has numerous fransactions
between funds. These transactions include charges for
services provided by an Internal Service fund to other
funds and operating transfers. Transfers represent
transfers of resources from a fund receiving revenue to
a fund through which those resources will be expended
and are recorded as other financing sources (uses) in
Governmental Fund Types and as transfers in Proprietary
funds.

The Internal Service funds record charges for services
to all County funds, departments and other governmental
units as operating revenue. Both Governmental and
Proprietary funds record these payments to the Internal
Service funds as operating expenditures/expenses.

Compensated Absences: The County records
accumulated unpaid vacation, overtime pay, and vested
sick time benefits as accrued wages and benefits payable
when earned by employees. The entire compensated
absences liability is reported on the governmental-wide
financial statements.

For governmental funds, the current portion of unpaid
compensated absences is the amount expected to be paid
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Note B - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
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using expendable available resources. These amounts
are recorded in the account “compensated absences
payable” in the fund from which the employees who have
accumulated unpaid leave are paid. The non-current
portion of the liability is not reported.

Ohio law requires that vacation time not be accumulated
for more than three years. Normally, all vacation time is
to be taken in the year available unless administrative
written approval for carryover is obtained. Unused
vacation is payable upon termination of employment.
Unused sick time may be accumulated until retirement.
Employees with a minimum of ten years of service are
paid one third of accumulated sick time upon retirement
with a maximum of 40 days. In general, employees are
eligible to be paid for unused compensatory time upon
termination of employment. All sick, vacation and
compensatory payments are made at employees’ current
wage rates.

Self-Funded Insurance: The County is self-funded for
dental and health benefits. The dental program is
administered by Health Care Payer’s Coalition, which
provides claims review and processing services. Each
County fund is charged for its proportionate share of the
cost for covered employees. Payment of these benefits is
accounted for in an internal service fund. The County
records a liability for incurred but unreported claims at
year end based upon an actuarial estimate provided by
Benefits Comprehensive, Inc. The County also maintains
a Self-Funded Workers’ Compensation fund and a Risk
Retention fund to manage liability insurance County-wide.
There have been no significant reductions in coverage
from the prior year and settled claims have not exceeded
commercial coverage in any of the last three years.

The County’s Self-funded Workers’ Compensation fund
(an internal service fund) accounts for and finances its
uninsured risks of loss for workers’ compensation claims.
Under this program, the Self-funded Workers’
Compensation fund provides coverage for up to a
maximum of $300 thousand for each workers’
compensation claim. The County will pay premiums to the
State of Ohio Bureau of Workers’ Compensation for
claims in excess of coverage provided by the fund. In
addition, the fund will pay assessments to the Bureau of

Workers’ Compensation for administration and payment of
claims.

All funds of the County participate in the program and
make payments to the Self-funded Workers’
Compensation Fund based on their usage of the program
to cover actuarial estimates of the amounts needed to pay
current-year claims. The claims liability of $7.0 million
reported in the fund at December 31, 2002 is based on
the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standard
Board Statement 10, which requires that a liability for
claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of
the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a
liability has been incurred at the date of the financial
statements, and the amount of the loss can be reasonably
estimated. This liability includes an amount for claims that
have been incurred but not reported. Because actual
claims liabilities depend on such complex factors as
inflation, changes in legal doctrines, and damage awards,
the process used in computing claims liability does not
necessarily result in an exact amount. Liabilities for
losses to be settled by fixed or reasonably determine-
able payments over a long period of time are reported at
their present value using an expected future investment
yield assumption of 5.80%.

Fund Balance Reservations and Designations: The
County reserves portions of fund balances that are legally
segregated for specific future uses or that do not
represent available, spendable resources and, therefore,
are not appropriable for expenditures. Designations of
fund balances are amounts that have been designated by
management for a specific future use, which are not
legally segregated. Undesignated fund balances are not
reserved nor designated and are appropriable in future
periods.

Prepaid Items: Payments made to vendors for services
that benefit future periods are recorded as prepaid items
in both government-wide and fund financial statements.A
current asset for the prepaid amount is recorded at the
time of purchase, and the expenditure is reported in the
year in which services are consumed.
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Note C - Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund
financial Statements

. Explanation of certain differences between the
governmental fund balance sheet and the government-wide
statement of net assets.

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a
reconcilement between fund balance - total governmental
funds, and net assets - governmental activities as reported
in the government-wide statement of net assets. One
element of that reconcilement explains that “long-term
liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore not reported in the funds.” Details of this
difference are as follows: (Amounts in 000's)

Bonds payable ................. $ 85,879
OWDA loans payable .. .......... 2,401
OPWC loans payable .. .......... 2,793
Capital leases payable . .......... 7,661

Landfill liability payable . .......... 12,255
Compensated absences .......... 17.821
Net adjustment to reduce

fund balance - fotal govern-

mental funds to arrive at net

assets - governmental funds. . .. ........ $128,810

Il. Explanation of certain differences between the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances and the government-wide
statement of activities.

The governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balance includes a
reconcilement between net changes in fund balances -
total governmental funds and changes in net assets of
governmental activities. One element of that
reconcilement explains that “Governmental funds re-
port capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of these assetsis
allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
deprecation expenses.” The details of the difference are
as follows: (Amounts in 000's)

Capitaloutlay ........... $32,022
Fixed asset additions in
excess of capital outlay . . . . 4,349
Depreciation expense . . . ... (23,423)
Net adjustment . ..... .... $12.948

Another element of that reconcilement states that “The
issuance of long-term debt provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of
the principal of long-term debt consumes the current
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net assets.” The
details of this difference are as follows: (Amounts in 000's)

Proceeds ofloans ........... $ 920

Proceedsofbonds .. ......... 2,840

Principal retirement . ......... {13,995)
Net adjustment . ........... ($10,235)

Note D - Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents, Segregated
Cash, Investments and Deposits

To improve cash management, cash received by the
County is pooled in a central bank account which is
managed by the County Treasurer. Amounts for all funds
including proprietary funds, are maintained in this account
or are temporarily used to purchase short term
investments.  Individual fund integrity is maintained
through the County’s records. Each fund’s interest in the
pooled bank accounts is presented as cash and cash
equivalents, and investments on the balance sheet.
Investments are limited to STAR Ohio, certificates of
deposit, U.S. Treasury Obligations and Mortgage-backed
Securities, and a revenue Bond anticipation note. These
investments are stated at fair value. Money market
investments that mature within one
year of acquisition and participating interest-earning
investment contracts that mature within one year of
acquisition are reported at amortized cost. The County's
investments are covered by Custodian Safekeeping
Agreements with all securities dealers of County owned
purchased securities, whereby such securities are held for
the County by a third party custodian.
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Investment income is recorded in the General and Self-
funded Health funds. Investment income in the General
fund includes earnings on all pooled investments.
investment income earned during 2002 totaled approxi-
mately $9.3 miliion.

The County uses separate bank accounts for resources
not deposited with the County Treasurer. These interest
bearing depository accounts are presented in the
Combined Balance Sheet as “Segregated Cash
Accounts.”

Legal Provisions: The County Treasurer is permitted
by Ohio law to deposit or invest County funds provided
that they mature or are redeemable within two years from
date of purchase. The Treasurer is permitted to invest or
deposit in the following classification of obligations:

1) Obligations of, or backed by the faith of, the United
States Government.

2) Obligations issued by any Federal agency.

3) Deposits in institutions eligible under Ohio law. All
deposits are collateralized with eligible securities, as
described by state statutes, which are pledged to a collateral
pool for each individual financial institution, in amounts equal
to at least 110% of the carrying value of all public deposits
held by each institution.

4) Obligations of the State.

5) Repurchase agreements with institutions eligible under
Ohio law not to exceed 30 days, where the institution agrees
unconditionally to repurchase any of the securities listed in
(1) or (2).

6) Commercial paper issued by any corporation
incorporated under the laws of the United States or a state if
both of the foliowing conditions apply. Two nationally
recognized rating agencies rank the commercial paper in
either of their two highest categories; the total amount

invested in commercial paper at any time does not exceed
five per cent of the county’s total average portfolio, as
determined and calculated by the investing authority.

7) Bankers acceptances, if the following conditions are
met: The acceptances mature in two hundred seventy days
or fewer from the date of settlement; the acceptances are
eligible for purchase by the federal reserve system; the total
amount invested in bankers acceptances at any time does
not exceed ten per cent of the county’s total average
portfolio, as determined and calculated by the investing
authority.

8) The State Treasurer's Investment pool (STAROhio).
tnvestment authority for the State Treasurer's Investment
pool is established by the State Legislature and reflected in
the Ohio Revised Code.

9) No-load money market mutual funds consisting
exclusively of obligations described in division (1) or (2) of
this section and repurchase agreements secured by such
obligations, provided that investments in securities described
in this division are made only through eligible institutions.

The Governmental Accounting Standard Board (GASB
Statement 3) has established credit risk categories for
deposits and investments.

« Category 1 - Investments that are insured or registered, or
securities held by the County or its agent in the County’s name.

Deposits that are insured or collateralized with securities held by
the County or its agent in the County’s name.

« Category 2 - Investments that are uninsured and unregistered,
with securities held by the counterparty’s trust department or
agent in the County’s name.



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2002

Note D - Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents,
Segregated Cash, Investments and Deposits

(continued)
Deposits  that are collateralized with securities held by the Deposits that are uncollateralized or collateralized with securities
pledging financial institution’s trust department or agentin the  nelg by the pledging financial institution, or by its trust department
County’s name. or agent but not in the County’s name.

« Category 3 - Investments that are uninsured or unregistered, o , )
with securities held by the counterparty, or by its trust Based on the above criteria, the County’s deposits and

department or agent but not in the County’s name. investments at December 31, 2002 are classified as follows:

Amount Available for
Deposit or Investment {Amounts in 000's)

Carrying amounts per
combined balance sheet:

Pooled..................... $ 251,687
Segregated ................. 6,729
Outstanding Checks .......... 12,688
Other reconciling items (net) . . .. (2,939)

Amount available for deposit
and investment (Bank balances
of deposits/fair value

of investments) . . ........... $ 268,165
Deposits: At year-end the County Risk Category Bank Fair
had the following deposits 1 2 3 Balance Value

eligible under Ohio law:

(Amounts in 000's})

FDIC insured deposits . .. ... ... $ 1,589 $ - $ - $ 1,589
Insured by the financial

institutions collateral poo! . .. .. - - 16,460 16,460
Money Market Account . ....... - - 9,968 9,968
Certificates of deposit ......... - 33,192 - 33,192
Total deposits . .. ........... $ 1,589 $ 33.192 $26,428 $61.209
Investments: At year-end
the County had the following
investments:
U.S. Treasury Notes .......... $ 16,243 $ - $ - $ 16,243
U.S. Treasury Bills ........... 901 - - 901
United States Agency Securities . 113,209 - - 113,209
Investment in the state treasurer’s
Investmentpool (1) .......... - - - 76,603
Total investments ........... $130,353 $ - $ - $206,956

™ The County’s investment in the State Treasurer’s investment program is not categorized because they are not evidenced by securities that exist in
physical or book entry form. The fair value of the position in the investment pool is the same as the value of the pool shares.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2002

Note D - Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents,
Segregated Cash, Investments and Deposits
(continued)

Based on the above criteria, the Discretely Presented
Component Units of the County have deposits and
investments classified as follows:

Amount Available for
Deposit or Investment {(Amounts in 000's)

Carrying amounts per
combined balance sheet:
Pooled..................... $10.284

Amount available for deposit
and investment (Bank balances
of deposits/fair value

ofinvestments) .. ........... $10.284
Deposits and investments: At year- Risk Category Bank Fair
end the discretely presented 1 2 3 Balance Value

component units had the following
deposits eligible under Ohio law:

(Amounts in 000's)

FDIC insured deposits . . ......... $372 $ - $ - $ 372
Insured by the financial

Institutions collateral pool .. ..... - - 3,994 3,994
Certificates of deposit ........... - 1,20 - 1,206
Total deposits . .. ............. 372 $1.206 $3.994 $5.572
Investments: at year-end the
discretely presented component
units had the following
investments:
US Treasury Notes . ............ $ 744 $ - $ - $ 744
United States Agency Securities . . . 1,188 - - 1,188
Money Market . ................ 2,338 - - 2,338
CorporateBonds ............... 398 - - 398
Mortgage Backed Securities . ... .. 44 - - 44
Totalinvestments ............. 4,712 $ - $ - 4.712




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2002

Note E - Interfund Receivables, Payables, and
Transfers

Due to / Due from other funds balances as of Decem-
ber 31, 2002 follow:

Payable Fund Receivable Fund Amounts in (000's)
General Central Supplies $ 11
Internal Service Funds Central Supplies 1
Children Services Board Central Supplies 2
Job and Family Services Central Supplies 2
Nonmajor Governmental Funds Central Supplies 5
General Vehicle Maintenance 14
Internal Service Funds Vehicle Maintenance 1
Children Services Board Vehicle Maintenance 2
Nonmajor Enterprise Fund Vehicle Maintenance 3
Nonmajor Governmental Funds Vehicle Maintenance 18
General County Telephone 50
Children Services Board County Telephone 15
Job and Family Services County Telephone 23
Nonmajor Governmental Funds County Telephone 15
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds County Telephone 7
General Centralized Drug Testing _20

$189

Due to / due from balances resulted from the routine lag are recorded in accounting system, and payments
between the dates interfund goods and services are between funds are made.

provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, transactions

Transfer To

Transfer Special Debt Capital Central
From Revenue Service  Projects Supply Total
General ................... $13,704 $9,061 $4,148 $ - $26,913
Water Supply System ........ - 95 - - 95
Capital Projects .. ........... - 153 - 189 342
Nonmajor governmental. . . .. .. - 374 - - 374
Total ................... $13.704 $9.683 4,148 5189 $27,724
Transfers are used to 1) move revenues from the fund the receipts to the debt service fund as debt service
required by statute or budget to collect them to the fund payments become due, and 3) use unrestricted revenues
required by statute or budget to expend them 2) move collected in the general fund to finance various programs
receipts restricted to debt service from the funds collecting accounted for in other funds.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2002

Note F - Capital Assets

Construction-in-progress: The County has active Capital asset activity for the County for the year ended
construction projects as of December 31, 2002 of $5,079 December 31, 2002, appears on following page:
thousand for a payroll / HR system, $3,645 thousand for

the Court of Appeals Building, $749 thousand for a Depreciation expense was charged to functions and
business continuance center, and $2,156 thousand in programs of the County as follows: (Amounts in 000's)

other miscellaneous projects. The estimated cost to
complete these projects is $10.8 million.

Governmental activities:

General government $ 4,794
Public Safety 3,613
Public Works 14,205
Health 591
Human Services 260
Recreation 86
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $23,549
Business-type activities:
Water $ 1,452
Wastewater Treatment 457
Sewer 1,459
Other 284
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 3,652

Activity for the discretely presented component units for
the year ended December 31, 2002 as follows:

Beginning Changes Ending
Balance in Assets Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated: {(Amounts in 000's)
Land $ 923 $ 15 $ 938
Construction in progress 163 40 203
Total capital assets, not being deprecieated 1,086 55 1,141
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings, structures and improvements 14,040 289 14,329
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 4,283 1,150 5.433
Total, capital assets being depreciated 18,323 1,439 19,762
Total accumulated depreciation (4,625) _(7549) _(5.379)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 13,698 685 _14.,383
Component units capital assets, net $14.784 $ 740 $15.524
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Note F - Capital Assets (continued)

Governmental activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings, structures, and improvements .
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Infrastructure

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings, structures and improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Infrastructure

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Governmental activities capital assets, n

Business-type ativities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings, structures and improvements
Land improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciated for:

Buildings, structures and improvements
Land improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Business-type activities capital assets, net

LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)
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DECEMBER 31, 2002
Beginning Ending
Balance Increase Decrease Balance

(Amounts in 000's)

............. $17,018 $4,283 $ - $21,301
............. 41,270 21.066 50,707 11,629
............. 58,288 25,349 50,707 32,930
............ 150,251 46,424 - 196,675
..................... 27,455 10,624 1,394 36,685
............. 280,717 5,037 - 285.754
............. $458.423 $62.085 $1.394 $519.114
............. $ 57,951 $4,382 $ - $62,333
............. 20,177 5,443 1,193 24,427
............. 172,716 13,724 - 186.440
............. 250,844 23,549 1,193 273.200
............ 207,579 38.536 201 245914
et........... $265,867 63,885 $50.908 278,844
............. $ 402 $ - $ - $ 402
............ 40 - 402
............ 23,287 - - 23,287
............. 110,112 4,729 - 114,841
............. 13.057 111 46 _13.122
............. 146,456 4,840 46 151.250
............ $ 5,064 $ 582 $ - $ 5,646
............. 39,483 2,840 - 42,323
............. 12.404 230 4 12.588
...................... 56,951 3.652 46 60.557
............ 89,505 1.188 - 90.693
........... $89,907 1.188 $ - 91,095




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2002

Note G - Notes Payable

All notes are backed by the full faith and credit of the
County and mature within one year. The notes are issued
in anticipation of long-term bonded financing, and the

County intends to refinance the notes until such bonds are
issued. All notes are in the capital projects fund. Notes
outstanding at December 31, 2002 follow: (Amounts in 000's)

Beginning Ending

Note Issue Rate Balance Issued Redeemed Balance
Sewer and Waterlines. .. ....... 3.00 $1,613 $ - $1,613 $ -
Sewer and Waterlines. ......... 3.00 3,127 - 3127 -
Baseball Stadium . ............ 5.00 6,000 - 6,000 -
Various purpose improvements. . 1.90 - 15,700 - 15,700
Total capital project notes . . . . .. 10,740 $15,700 10,740 15,700

Toledo Mud Hens Baseball Club, Inc. had available a
$500,000 line of credit with an interest rate at 2% above
the rate paid on certificates of deposit. The line of credit
expired on March 31, 2002 and has not been renewed by
the club. Preferred Properties, Inc. and Affiliates have a
note payable of $12 thousand with an interest rate of
8.58% due in July 2005, and a note payable of $23
thousand with an interest rate of 7.5% due in June 2006.
They also have various mortgages payable totaling $3,065
thousand secured by real estate with interest rates varying
from 0% to 9.00%. Preferred Properties, Inc. has available
a $250 thousand line of credit with an interest rate at 1.0%
over prime (5.75% at June 30, 2002). There were $115
thousand of outstanding borrowings at June 30.

Note H - Long-term Debt and Other Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and
proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are
reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type
statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts,
as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized
over the life of the bonds using the effective interest
method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable
bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are
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reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term
of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund
types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as
bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face
amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are
reported as other financing sources while discounts on
debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual
debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.

Long-term Bonds: All long-term debt issued for
governmental purposes of the County and special
assessment bonds are retired from the Debt Service Fund.
General Obligation bonds are secured by the County’s
ability to levy a voted or unvoted property tax within
limitations of Ohio Law.

The County issues general obligation bonds to provide
funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital
facilities. General obligation bonds have been issued for
governmental-type activities. The original amount of



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2002

Note H - Long-term Debt and Other Obligations
(continued)

general obligation bonds issued in prior years was $152
million. During the year, general obligation bonds totaling
$1.79 million were issued to currently refund and redeem
the 1992 Regional Jail Bonds on December 1, 2002.

Self-supporting bonds are secured by an unvoted
property tax levy (special assessments), however, each
appropriate bond indenture provides for principal and
interest to be paid from user charges.

The County issued $1.050 million of special assessment
bonds in 2002 to provide funds for the construction of
various sewers and water lines. These bonds will be
repaid from amounts levied against the property owners
benefited by this construction. In the event property
owners default on their special assessment obligations,
the County is obligated to meet the debt service
requirements from County funds. At December 31, 2002,
the County had $354 thousand set aside for the retirement
of this debt. These funds are included in pooled cash and
investments.

Under the Uniform Bond Act of the Ohio Revised Code,
and not taking into account the equity in the debt service
fund, the County has the capacity to issue approximately
$40.2 million of additional unvoted general obligation debt.

Lott Industries, Inc., a discretely presented component
unit of the County has bonds payable of $4.2 million that
mature on August 1, 2021, with a variable interest rate that
was 1.55% at December 31, 2002.

Nontax Revenue Bonds: In 2001, the County issued
$20 million of Nontax Revenue Bonds for a new baseball
stadium which the County owns and leases to the Toledo
Mud Hens Baseball Club, Inc. In 2001, the County also
issued $6 million of Nontax Revenue Notes for that project
which were prepaid and retired in April, 2002. The Nontax
Revenue Bonds do not represent or constitute a general
obligation debt or pledge of the faith or credit or taxing
power of the County. The Nontax Revenue Bonds are
special obligations of the County payable solely from the

Nontax Revenues. The County has covenanted to
appropriate in its annual appropriation measure for each
year, and to pay to the Trustee for the Nontax Revenue
Bonds by January 15, of such year, Nontax Revenues in
an amount sufficient to pay all bond service charges due
and payable on the Nontax Revenue Bonds during the
then current year.

On September 15, 2002, the County issued $2,840
thousand in bonds with an average interest rate of 2.5% to
retire bond anticipation notes of $1,050 thousand and
currently refund and redeem $1,790 thousand of
outstanding 1992 bonds for the Regional Jail Project with
an average interest rate of 5%. The net proceeds of
$1,759,500 (after payment of $30,500 issuance costs)
were used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those
securities matured on or before December 1, 2002, and
the proceeds were used to redeem all of the outstanding
1992 General Obligation Bonds on December 1, 2002. As
a result, the 1992 General Obligation Bonds are no longer
outstanding, and the liability for those bonds has been
removed from the combined balance sheet.

The County currently refunded and redeemed the 1992
General Obligation Bonds to reduce its total debt service
payments over the next five years by $140,814 and to
obtain an economic gain (difference between the present
values of the old and new debt service payment) of
$128,152.

Capital Lease Obligations: The County has a lease
agreement for a portion of the Government Center. The
lease is classified as a capital lease. The portion of the
Government Center leased by the County has been
recorded as land and building for $16.9 million.

The County has entered into certain other agreements to
lease equipment and other assets. Such agreements are,
in substance, lease purchases (capital leases) and are
classified as capital lease obligations in the financial
statements.
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Note H - Long-term Debt and Other Obligations (continued)

Long-term Debt: Long-term debt and other obligations of the County were as follows: (Amounts in 000's)

Maturity Balance Balance Amounts
Years Interest Date January 1, December 31, Due In
Issued Rate through 2002 Additions Deductions 2002 One Year
Bonds
General Obligation Bonds-
Unvoted
1986 County public
assistance puilding................... 8.000% 12/01/11 $ 2,200 $ - $ 220 $ 1,980 $ 220
1986 Convention center
land.....ccooiiniiine 6.500% 12/01/12 3,710 - 335 3,375 335
1988 Family Court Center
construction & Courthouse
renovation.........c.ccovcveevriiennnn, 7.375% 08/01/07 5,250 - 875 4,375 875
1992 Regional jail...................... 3.400%
6.650% 12/01/07 2,015 - 2,015 - -
1994 County building................. 4.000%
5.700% 12/01/04 4,305 - 1,355 2,950 1,435
1995 Correctional facilities......... 4.300%
6.800% 12/01/15 1,950 - 95 1,855 100
1995 Court services building....... 4.300%
6.800% 12/01/15 1,755 - 85 1,670 90
1996 Refunding...........cccoceeeennne 4.250%
5.375% 12/01/11 8,030 - 640 7,390 665
2001 Juvenile Justice Center....... 4.375%
5.000% 12/01/21 17,000 - 565 16,435 585
2002 Regional jail refunding........ 2.500%
2.750% 12/01/07 - 1,790 - 1,790 345
General Obligation Bonds-
voted
1996 Library improvement........... 4.300%
6.000% 12/01/05 7,855 - 2,675 5,180 2,310
1997 Library improvement........... 3.800%
5.300% 12/01/05 7,700 - 1,500 6,200 2,000
Total general obligation
bonds voted and unvoted...... 61,770 1,790 10,360 53,200 8,960
Speacial Assessment-
Governmental Commitment
(Self-Supporting)
1964 Sanitary sewer.................. 3.500% 12/01/04 $ 3 $ - $ 1 $ 2 $ 1
1974- 5.125%
1977 Sanitary sewer................ 7.625% 11/01/14 185 - 13 172 13
1981- 9.625%
1984 Sanitary sewer.............. 12.000% 12/01/04 113 - 48 65 30
1987 Sanitary sewer... . 7.500% 12/01/07 90 - 15 75 15
1988 Sanitary sewer.................. 7.500% 12/01/08 210 - 30 180 30



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2002

Note H - Long-tern Debt and Other Obligations (continued)

Maturity Balance Balance Amounts
Years Interest Date January 1, December 31, Due In
Issued Rate through 2002 Additions Deductions 2002 One Year
Bonds
Special Assessment-
Governmental Commitment
(Self-Supporting) (continued)
1989 Sanitary sewer................... 6.750%
7.000% 12/01/09 675 - 65 610 70
1990 Waterline..........cc.cccoveeen 6.800%
6.850% 12/01/10 245 - 20 225 20
1992 Briarfield Parkway............... 3.400%
6.200% 12/01/02 245 - 245 - -
1992 Sewers & waterlines........... 3.400%
6.650% 12/01/11 320 - 25 295 25
1992 Sewers & waterlines........... 3.400%
6.650% 12/01/12 665 - 45 620 45
1994 McCord
Road improvements................... 4.000%
5.700% 12/01/03 30 - 15 15 15
1994 Sewer & waterlines............ 4.000%
6.050% 12/01/13 680 - 40 640 40
1995 Sewers & waterlines........... 4.300%
6.800% 12/01/14 525 - 30 495 30
1996 Sewers & waterlines.......... 4.250%
6.500% 12/01/16 2,125 - 60 2,085 70
1997 Sewers & waterlines.......... 4.900%
5.450% 12/01/17 1,065 - 50 1,015 50
1998 Sewers & waterlines.......... 4.250%
5.000% 12/01/18 2,220 - 90 2,130 95
1999 Sewers & waterlines...... 4.000%
6.000% 12/01/19 510 - 20 490 20
2000 Sewers & wateriines.......... 5.200%
5.600% 12/01/20 1,525 - 50 1,475 55
2001 Sewers & waterlines.......... 4.100%
5.100% 12/01/21 1,585 - 45 1,540 55
2002 Sewers & waterlines.......... 2.500%
4.600% 12/01/22 - 1,050 - 1,050 30
Total special assessment
bonds- governmental com-
mitment-(self-supporting)............ 13,016 1,050 907 13,159 709
Non-Tax Revenue Bonds
2001 Baseball Stadium............. 6.375%
6.625% 12/01/21 20,000 - 480 19,520 515
Total bonds......c.oevmemreranae $94,786 $2,840 $11,747 $85,879 $10,184
Ohio Water Development
Authority (OWDA) Loans
Special Assessment-
Governmental Commitment
1983- 7.380%
1984 SEWErS......ccvvverieerreiene 7.670% 01/01/07 $ 1,230 $ - $ 211 $ 1,019 113
1991 SewWers.......ccvcvevreeeeennn. 6.160%
7.450% 07/01/11 1,136 - 86 1,050 45
1994 water........coovevvveereririennns 6.720% 07/01/19 343 - 11 332 6
Enterprise Funds
1984 Sewer system..............c... 6.240% 01/01/07 2,365 - 352 2,013 72
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Note H - Long-tern Debt and Other Obligations (continued)

Years
Issued

Enterprise Funds (continued)
1980-
1984 Wastewater treatment.......
1990 Water supply system.........
1991 Water supply system.........

1993 Water supply system..
1994 Sewer system..........
1994 Wastewater................c.o.
1995 Water supply system........
1997 Water supply system..
1997 Sanitary Engineer....
2001 Water supply system........
Total OWDA loans.........cccuuu..

Ohio Public Works
Commission Loans
Govemmental Commitment
1993 Road improvements..........
1994 Road improvements..........
1995 Road improvements..........
1997 Road improvements..........
1999 Road improvements..........
2000 Road improvements..........
2001 Road/improvements...
2002 Road improvements..........
Enterprise Funds........................
1994 Wastewater...
1994 Sewer system..

Total OPWC loans........cccovenneee

Other Obligations
Capital lease Obligations

Governmental...........cccoveveveenine,
Internal Service..........cc.ccevvenaen.

Accrued wages and benefits-
governmental.................o

Landfitl obligation.......................

Maturity Balance Balance Amounts

Interest Date January 1, December 31, Due In
Rate through 2002 Additions Deductions 2002 One Year
6.250%

11.190% 07/01/13 2,096 269 1,827 142
7.760% 01/01/10 344 33 311 18
7.450%

7.500% 07/01/11 604 48 556 26
6.160% 07/01/18 912 34 878 17
6.720% 07/01114 728 39 689 20
5.770% 07/01/15 9,084 463 8,621 238
6.350% 01/01/21 440 12 428 7
5.860% 07/01/17 1,538 64 1,474 33
5.860% 07/01117 1,423 59 1,364 30
5.390% 0t/01/21 1,232 39 1,193 20
$ 23,475 $ - $1,720 $21,755 $787

0.000% 07/01/04 $ 68 $ 27 $ 41 $ 14
0.000% 07/01/05 322 92 230 57
0.000% 07/01/06 171 38 133 19
0.000% 07/01/07 121 22 99 10
0.000% 07/01/10 360 44 316 22
0.000% 07/01/11 843 85 758 49
0.000% 01/01/11 357 37 42 352 24
0.000% 01/01/12 - 883 19 864 43
0.000% 01/01/16 213 14 199 7
0.000% 07/01/04 78 31 47 16
$ 2,533 $ 920 $ 414 $ 3,039 $ 261

$ 9,231 $ - $ 1,570 $ 7,661 $ 1,370

19 - 7 12 6

$ 9,250 $ - $ 1,677 $ 7,678 $ 1,376

$ 17,469 $ 2,529 $ 2177 $ 17,821 $ 3,000

$ 12,255 $ 362 $ - $ 12,617 $ 362
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Note H - Long-tern Debt and Other Obligations (continued)

A summary of the County's future long-term debt funding requirements
as of December 31, 2002 follows: (Amounts in 000's)

Bonds
Special Assessment-
General Obligation Government Commitment Non-Tax Revenue
Year of Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
Funding
$ 8,960 $ 2,869 $ 709 $ 722 $ 515 $ 129
8,255 2,379 739 675 550 1,258
6,970 1,946 708 634 590 1,223
3,435 1,557 833 595 635 1,186
3,515 1,365 845 550 680 1,145
11,520 4,469 4,280 2,040 4,195 5,013
5,820 2,036 3,655 920 5,915 3,439
2018-2022......oiiiiii 4,725 605 1,390 159 6,440 1,131
Totalooeieeeeee $ 53,200 $ 17,226 $ 13,159 $ 6,295 $ 19,520 $ 15,686
Loans
OWDA OPWC
Year of Principal Interest Principal Interest
Funding
$ 787 $ 688 $ 261 $ -
1,656 1,292 472 -
1,658 1,184 413 -
1,660 1,077 401 -
1,606 970 306 -
2008-2012.. 8,308 3,326 1,118 -
2013-2017.. 5,482 928 68 -
2018-2022.. 598 66 - -
Total. it $ 21,755 $ 9,531 $ 3,039 $ -
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DECEMBER 31, 2002
Note H - Long-term Debt and Other Obligations
(continued)
Operating Leases: At December 31, 2002, the County The County’s future minimum lease payments un-
had 9 operating leases for office space and equipment. der lease obligations which have been capitalized
Operating lease payments are recorded as expen- and operating leases as of December 31, 2002 are
ditures/expenses for the current period. as follows (Amounts in 000's):
Government Business type
activities activities Operating
Year Capital Leases Capital Leases Leases
2003 .. $1,915 $ 7 $ 20
2004 ... .. 1,915 6 16
2005 .. ... 1,915 - 4
2006 ... 1,914 - 2
2007 ..o 1,884 - -
2008-2009 ............ 1,054 = -
Total minimum
lease payments ........ 10,597 $13 $ 42
Less: amount representing
interest ............... 2.936 _1
Present value of future
minimum lease
payments .............. $ 7.661 $12
Accrued Wages and Benefits: Unpaid vested hours at Deferred Compensation: County employees have the
December 31, 2002 representing this liability for all option of participating in three state-wide deferred
governmental funds are as follows (Amounts in 000's): compensation plans, created in accordance with the
Internal Revenue Code Section 457. Under these plans,
Hours employees elect to have a portion of their pay de-
ferred until a future time. According to these plans, the
Vacation ........ 482 deferred compensation is not available to employees
Sick ........... 342 until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable

Compensation ... 43
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Note H - Long-term Debt and Other Obligations
(continued)

emergency. The deferred pay and any income earned
thereon is not subject to income tax until actually received
by the employee.

All amounts of compensation deferred under these
plans, all property and rights purchased with those
amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts,
property, or rights are to be held in trust for the exclusive
benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries.

Conduit Debt Obligations: From time to time, the
County has issued Industrial Revenue Bonds, Hospital
Facilities Bonds and Commercial Housing Revenue Bonds
to provide financial assistance to private, profit and non-
profit sector entities for the acquisition and construction of
industrial, hospital and commercial facilities deemed to be
in the public interest. The bonds are secured by the
property financed and are payable solely from payments
received on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon
repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired
facilities transfers to the private-sector entity served by the
bond issuance. Neither the County, the State nor any
political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for
repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not
reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial
statements.

As of December 31, 2002 there were 159 series of
Industrial, Hospital and Commercial Housing Revenue
Bonds outstanding. The aggregate principal amount
payable for the 17 series issued after January 1, 1995
was $301,463,154. The aggregate principal amount
payable for the 141 series issued and with bonds
outstanding issued prior to January 1, 1995, could not be
determined; however, their original issue amounts total
$1,350,587,000.

Note I - Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plan

All eligible employees of the County, participate in the
Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio (PERS),
a statewide cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan. County employees are not currently
covered under the Federal Social Security Act. The plan
provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of
living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members
and beneficiaries. Authority to establish and amend
benefits is provided by State statute under Chapter 145 of
the Ohio Revised Code.

Law enforcement officers in the County Sheriff's depart-
ment contribute 10.1% of their annual compensation and
the County contributes 16.7% of the same base. The
County is required to contribute 22.05% of annual
compensation for employees of the County engineer
based upon a contract with their respective union. All
other eligible County employees contribute 8.5% of their
annual compensation with the County contributing
13.55% of the same amount. The County’s contribution
to PERS for the years ending December 31, 2002, 2001,
and 2000, were $19.8 million, $19.2 million, and $14.9
million respectively, equal to the requested contribution for
each year. All contributions to PERS were made within
the required due dates. The Ohio Revised Code provides
statutory authority for employee and employer
contributions.

In prior years, teachers at the Board of Mental
Retardation contributed to STRS. There are no longer any
teachers on the staff of the County contributing to STRS.
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Note J - Other Post-Retirement Obligations

In addition to pension benefits, the County provides
post-retirement health care benefits to employees who
retire from the County under the PERS plan discussed in
Note I.

The Ohio Revised Code provides the statutory authority
requiring public employees to fund post-retirement health
care through their contributions to PERS. PERS provides
post-retirement health coverage to age and service
retirants with ten (10) or more years qualifying Ohio
service credit. Health care coverage for disability
recipients and to primary survivor recipients of such
retirants is available. The health care coverage
provided by the retirement system is considered an
Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB) as described in
GASB Statement No. 12. A portion of each employer’s
contribution to PERS is set aside for the funding of
post retirement health care. The Ohio Revised Code
provides statutory authority for employer contributions.
For local government employers, the rate was 13.55% of
covered payroll and 16.70% for law enforcement
employers, with 5.0% used to fund healthcare for regular
employees and law enforcement employees.

The following assumptions and calculations were based
on PER'S latest actuarial review performed as of
December 31, 2001.

An entry age normal actuarial cost method of valuation
is used in determining the present value of OPEB. The
differences between assumed and actual experience
(actuarial gains and losses) becomes part of unfunded
actuarial accrued liability.

All investments are carried at market value. For
actuarial valuation purposes, a smoothed market
approach is used. Under this approach, assets are
adjusted annually to reflect 25% of unrealized market
appreciation or depreciation on investment assets. The
investment assumption rate for 2001 was 8.0%.
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An annual increase of 4.0% annually, is the base portion
of the individual pay increase assumption. This assumes
no change in the number of active employees.
Additionally, annual pay increases, over and above the
4.0% base increase, were assumed to range from .50% to
6.3%. Health care costs were assumed to increase 4.0%
annually.

OPEBs are advance-funded on an actuarially
determined basis. The number of active contributing
participants was 402,041. The rates stated above are the
actuarially determined contribution requirements for
PERS. The employer contributions to fund post-
employment benefits in 2002 was $7.1 million. The
portion of employer contributions used to fund post-
employments benefits can be determined by multiplying
actual employer contributions times .3690 for local
government employers and .2994 for law enforcement
employers.

The actuarial value of the Retirement System’s net
assets available for OPEB was $11.6 billion at December
31, 2001 (the latest information available). The actuarially
accrued liability and the unfunded actuarial accrued
liability were $16.4 billion and $4.8 billion, respectively,

in December 2001, the Board of PERS adopted the
Health Care “Choices” Plan in its continuing effort to
respond to the rise in the cost of Health Care. The
Choices Plan will be offered to all persons newly hired
under OPERS after January 1, 2003, with no prior service
credit accumulated toward health care coverage.
Choices, as the name suggests, will incorporate a
cafeteria approach, offering a more broad range of health
care options. The Plan uses a graded scale from ten to
thirty years to calculate a monthly health care benefit.
This is in contrast to the ten- year “cliff” eligibility standard
for the present Plan.
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Note J - Other Post-Retirement Obligations
(continued)

The benefit recipient will be free to select the option that
best meets their needs. Recipients will fund health care
costs in excess of their monthly health care benefit. The
Plan will also offer a spending account feature, enabling
the benefit recipient to apply their allowance toward
specific medical expenses, much like a Medical Spending
Account.

The PERS issues a stand-alone financial report.
Interested parties may obtain a copy by making a written
request to:

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
277 EAST TOWN STREET

COLUMBUS, OHIO 43215-4642

PHONE: (614) 466-2085

Note K - Property Taxes, Sales Taxes, and Deferred
Revenues

Property taxes include amounts levied against real,
public utility and tangible personal (business) property.
The assessed value by property classification, upon which
taxes collected in 2002 were based is as follows:

{(Amounts in 000's)

Real property . . ................ $6,473,136
Public utility and tangible
personal property . . ............ 1,260,266
Total assessed property value . . . $7,733.402

In 2002, real property taxes were levied on January 2,
2002, on the assessed values as of January 1, 2001, the
lien date. Assessed values are established by the County
Auditor at 35% of appraised market value. A revaluation
of real property is required to be completed no less than
every six years, with a statistical update every third year.
The most recent revaluation was completed in 2001.

Tangible personal property tax is assessed on
equipment and inventory held by businesses. Tangible
property is assessed at 25% of true value (as defined). In
2002, each business was eligible to receive a $10
thousand exemption in assessed value which was
reimbursed by the State.

Real property taxes are payable annually or semi-
annually. In 2002, if paid annually, payment was due by
February 15th. If paid semi-annually, the first payment (at
least ¥z of amount billed) was due February 15th, with the
remainder due July 20th.

By July 2002, the final collection date, 95.9% of the total
current and delinquent property taxes billed in 2002 were
collected.

The County Auditor remits portions of the taxes collected
to all taxing districts when completing periodic settlements
of Real and Public Utility property taxes in February and
August and Tangible Personal Property taxes in June and
October for the first and second halves of the year,
respectively. The County accrues billed but uncollected
property taxes as receivables at their estimated net
realizable value.

The delinquent real property taxes outstanding and
available to the County within the first 60 days of 2003
were recorded as 2002 revenue, the remaining taxes
receivable are offset by a credit to deferred revenue.
Although total property taxes levied for the next fiscal
year are measurable, amounts to be received during
the available period are not subject to reasonable
estimation at December 31, 2002, and are not available
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Note K - Property Taxes, Sales Taxes, and Deferred
Revenue (continued)

for appropriation and use until 2003. The deferred
revenues are offset by these property tax receivables and
special assessment receivables related to future capital
service projects.

In 1970, the County Commissioners, by resolution,
imposed a .5% tax on all retail sales, including motor
vehicles, made in the County. In 1982, the County
commissioners increased the sales tax by .5% t0 1%. In
November, 1993, Lucas County voters approved a
permanent increase of .25% to 1.25% in the sales tax.
Vendor collections of th e tax are paid to the State

Treasurer by the twenty-third day of the month foliowing
coliection. The State Tax Commissioner certifies to the
State Auditor the amount of the tax to be returned to the
County. The Tax Commissioner's certification must be
made within forty-five (45) days after the end of each
month. The State Auditor then has five (5) days in which
to draw the warrant payable to the County.

Proceeds of the tax are credited entirely to the General
Fund. Amounts that have been collected by the State and
are to be received within 60 days of year end are accrued
as revenue, as measurable and available. Saies tax
revenue for 2002 amounted to $68.8 million.

Ohio law prohibits taxation of property from all
taxing authorities in excess of 10.00 mills of
assessed value without a vote of the people.
Presently, the County levies 2.00 mills of the 10.00

Voter
Authorized
Purpose Rate(a)

Senior services .. ....... A5
Metroparks . ........... 1.40
Community mental health . 1.50
Board of mental
retardation . ........... 5.00
Children services ....... 2.65
Port authority .......... .40
Library . . ... ... Ll 1.70
Zoo improvements ...... .95
Zoooperating .......... .70
911 Telephone system . . 70
Total ....... ... .. ... 15.45

(a) Doliars per $1,000 of assessed valuation.

are subject to change.

mill limit for the General Fund. An additional 15.45
mills have been levied for voted millage. A
summary of voted millage follows:
Rate
Levied for
Current Year Final
qulection Collection
Agriculturalf Commercial/ Year
Residential/(b) Industrial o
.361919 406807 2004
1.123773 1.265621 2008/2 of 2
1.078881 1.261252 2005/2009
3.935632 4.356714 continuous
2.403369 2.530019 2003/2006
0.273301 .355579 2004
1.418894 1.604015 2005/2007
682548 .858814 2005
503226 632811 2007
700000 .700000 2006
12.481543 13.971632

(b) Ohio law provides for a reduction of certain voted levies to offset inflation in the value of real property. The voted levies
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Note L - Reconciliation of Budget Basis to GAAP Basis

A reconciliation for the major governmental funds at
December 31, 2002 from the budget basis to a GAAP
basis for excess of revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures and other uses follows:
(Amounts in 000's).

Children Board of Job and
General Services Mental Family
Fund Board Retardation Services
BudgetBasis...................... $ 777 $2,367 $ 439 ($11,074)
Net adjustments for
revenue accruals . ................ (163) (474) - 1,195
Net adjustments for
expenditure accruals .. ............ 1,538 (104) 2,525 820
Net adjustment for
encumbrances .. ................. 1,579 1,047 2,234 668
Net adjustments for other
financing sources (uses) accruals . . . 2,179 - - (5)
GAAPBasis . ... 1,552 $2.836 5,198 ($8.396)

Note M - Amendments to Original Appropriations
Budget

Amendments beyond the object level must be approved
by the Board of County Commissioners. In 2002, the
original appropriation measure was increased for the
major funds by the Commissioners approximately as
follows: Debt Service, $5.2 million, and Capital Projects,
$5 million.

Note N - Contingencies

The County owns and operated a landfill site focated in
the western portion of the county. The site accepted solid
waste from a number of private and industrial waste
haulers from 1954 to its closure in 1976. A solid waste
transfer station was operated from May, 1980 through
July, 1991. This site is now closed and the County no
longer operates a landfill. State and federal laws require
the County to cleanup, monitor and maintain the site.
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Note N - Contingencies (continued)

The County engaged a consultant to complete a study
regarding the cleanup, monitoring and maintenance of the
site. This study will be subject to review by the Ohio
Environmental Protection Agency. The study estimates
approximately $12.6 million will be needed to enact the plan,
of which approximately $362 thousand of the costs are to be
incurred in the next year. The current liability of $362
thousand is included in accounts payable in the Capital
Projects Fund with the remaining $12.6 million recorded as
a long-term liability due in more than one year. Actual cost
may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or
changes in regulations. Funding is expected to be obtained
from the issuance of General Obligation notes or bonds,
and from the State Infrastructure Bond Fund. Other
potential sources of revenue include indemnification by
generators for response costs incurred.

The County is a defendant in a number of other claims and

lawsuits which may be classified as routine litigation. In
addition, the County is a defendant in numerous other
claims and lawsuits ranging from tort liability to civil rights
litigation. Management believes that any settlement related
to these claims and lawsuits will not have a material
adverse effect on the financial position of the County.

The County participates in a number of Federal and State
assisted grant programs. The major programs are through:
Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug Addiction; Community
Development Block Grant; Ohio Department of Human
Services; and Ohio Department of Mental Health. These
programs are subject to financial and compliance audits by
grantors or their representatives. Audits of certain
programs have been completed under guidance of OMB
Circular A-133 and are included in a separately issued
report. There were no material instances of noncompliance
or findings noted within these reports.

Note O - Joint Venture

Lucas County has entered into a contractual agreement
with the City of Toledo, Defiance County, Fuiton County,
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Henry County, and Williams County to form the Corrections
Commission of Northwest Ohio to operate a regional jail in
northwestern Ohio. Each entity is responsible for a portion
of the capital and operating budget as follows:

Cityof Toledo .......... 35.65%
Lucas County .......... 31.84%
Defiance County .. ...... 9.35%
Fulton County .......... 8.65%
Williams County ........ 8.65%
Henry County .......... 5.86%

100.00%

The Corrections Commission of Northwest Ohio is an 18
member board made up of the president of the Board of
County Commissioners, Sheriff, presiding judge of the Court
of Common Pleas for each County, the Mayor, Chief of
Police, and presiding Municipal Court Judge for The City of
Toledo. Each participating entity has an equal degree of
control over budgeting and financing.

All debt for the construction of the jail was incurred by the
participating governmental agencies, and are not liabilities
of the Corrections Commission of Northwest Ohio. Lucas
County has approximately $1.8 million of bonds outstanding
at year end for construction of the regional jail.

Complete financial statements of the Corrections
Commission of Northwest Ohio can be obtained from its
administrative office as follows:

CORRECTIONS COMMISSION OF NORTHWEST OHIO
03151 ROAD 24.25 RT. 1, BOX 100-A
STRYKER, OHIO 43557
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Note P - Risk Management

Self-Funded Insurance: The County is self-funded for
dental and health benefits. The dental program is
administered by Health Care Payers Coalition, which
provides claims review and processing services. Each
County fund is charged for its proportionate share of the
cost for covered employees. Payment of these benefits is
accounted for in an internal service fund. The County
records a liability for incurred but unreported claims at
year end based upon an actuarial estimate provided by
Benefits Comprehensive, Inc. The County also maintains
a Self- Funded Workers’ Compensation fund and a Risk
Retention fund to manage liability insurance County-wide.

The claims liability of $7.0 million reported in the
internal service funds at December 31, 2002, is based on
the requirements of GASB Statement No. 10 which
requires that a liability for unpaid claims costs, including
estimates of costs relating to incurred but not reported
claims, be reported (see table below). Changes in the
funds’ claims liability amounts for 2001 and 2002 were:

Note Q - Reporting Change

In compliance with an Ohio Auditor of State bulletin, the
fund “Family and Children’s Council” was reclassified from
a special revenue fund to an agency fund. This resulted
in a change in the beginning fund balance for the
Nonmajor Governmental funds of $300 thousand.

Nonmajor Governmental Funds as

previously reported at December 31, 2001 . .. .. $42,899
Reclassification of Family

and ChildrenCouncil. .. .................... 300
Nonmajor Governmental funds at

December 31,2001 asrestated ...... ....... $42.599

Note R - New Accounting Standard

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)

has issued GASB Statement No. 39, “Determining
Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units- An
Amendment of GASB Statement 14". This statement
amends Statement 14 to provide additional guidance to
determine whether certain organizations for which the
primary government is not financially accountable should
be reported as component units based on the nature and
significance of their relationship with the primary
government, The provisions of this statement are
effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2003. The
implementation of Statement 39 will have no significant
effect on the County’s financial statements.

Balance at Current
Beginning years
of Year Claims
2001.. $6,253 $23,040
2002.. $6,841 $23,303

Change in
Provision
for Workers Balance
Compensation Claim at End
Claims Payments  of Year
$381 $22,833 $6,841
$691 $23,813 $7,022
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Statements and Schedules

Construction on a new building to house the 6th district Court of Appeals. Lucas County is responsible for 50%
Court of Appeals began in the spring of 2002 at a cost of of the project cost. The County has issued bond
approximately $7 million dollars. The structure located at anticipation notes to cover construction cost and
the northwest corner of the Civic Center Mall in Toledo, anticipates converting these notes to long-term bonds in
is a partnership between Lucas County and 7 regional the fall of 2003.

counties that lie within the jurisdiction of the 6th District
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Expenditures:
General Government-
Legislative and executive
Training & Development
Personal Services........c.ocvvvciniiiiiinnen. $ 123 $ 122 $ 118 4
Materials and supplies..........c.ccoocvvieeeen 20 20 18 2
Charges and ServiCes.......c.cooeveeeeeenncn 6 6 6 -
Capital outlay and equipment................... 2 2 1 1
Department of Personnel- ,
Personal Services.......c.ooccovveninniinniinnes 718 713 679 34
Materials and supplies............ccccccvinninnnns 7 8 7 1
Charges and Services..........ccoovieenennnnn. 140 138 125 13
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 8 8 6 2
Commissioners-
Personal services........c.cccovvveneiiiiinnnnn 455 452 445 7
Materials and sUpplies......c.ccccevvininnienenn 13 13 8 5
Charges and Services..........ccoovevveiicnnnen, 60 60 38 22
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 3 3 1 2
Management and Budget-
Personal services...........c.covvvvvvivininnnn 436 431 408 23
Materials and supplies........cocoovvnevnans 8 7 8 (1)
Charges and services........cc.ccocvviriieninne 140 127 71 56
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 8 7 5 2
Auditor-
Personal ServiCes....ooovvimvvvieeivreriiieenenene 1,412 1,408 1,393 15
Materials and supplies....c.cc..cccccreieniinnn 91 89 76 13
Charges and Services..........cceuvviiiienies 259 274 256 18
Capital outlay and equipment................... 23 24 24 -
Auditor Personal Property-
Personal services.........cccooivviievnniiiiinnnis 426 418 412 6
Materials and supplies........c.ccoovcicinnins 12 14 11 3
Charges and Services.........ocoovvvveenieniannn. 16 27 24 3
Capital outlay and equipment................... 3 2 - 2
Auditor Real Property Evaluation-
Personal ServiCes............covcvvevvinniniinnn 792 788 770 18
Materials and supplies...........ccceecinen . 9 9 8 1
Charges and Services............cccocveeeeerinnnns 15 15 10 5
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 5 5 1 4



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL ~(continued)
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
General Government - continued
Legislative and executive - continued
Treasurer-
Personal services......cooovvivievnnivirinininnnnnnns 1,022 1,029 1,025 4
Materials and supplies.....c...cccccrvrerneenne. 25 26 26 -
Charges and services.........c.coeeeevnvvecens 200 191 185 6
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 11 11 10 1
Treasurer Personal Property-
Personal services.......c.coccceeieciiinnininnnns 204 209 205 4
Materials and supplies........cccocvvrivnienennss 2 2 2 -
Charges and services.........ccovverccenvencrnn, 10 10 8 2
Budget Commission-
Personal services........ccooceevveeiiiiiiicinnennns 88 88 88 -
Materials and supplies..........ccccoecvevennnns - - - -
Charges and services.........c.cocvviinneo. 2 2 - 2
Board of Revision-
Personal services.........cocccevvevieveiinnicenccn. 162 161 157 4
Materials and supplies........ccccccceviviinnnnn 9 10 6 4
Charges and services.............ccvvevevineenn. 2 1 - 1
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 4 4 2 2
Audit-
Charges and services............ccccvvvivennenen 185 185 172 13
Planning Commission-
Charges and services...........ccoceevverenennn. 370 370 370 -
Data Processing-
Personal services...........ccccveeveevevveiveenenn, 1,826 1,901 1,899 2
Materials and supplies.........cc.cccceernennen. 29 28 25 3
Charges and services............c.ccoceevvenennn. 387 633 605 28
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 413 292 287 5
Collect CT Costs-
Personal services.......ccooccvecvvivneniinineeennn - 17 - 17
Materials and supplieS.........cccooevieceinnneans - 3 - 3
Charges and services........c.occcecocnvnnnnnn. - 8 3 5

Capital outlay and equipment................... - - -
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GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)

Hotel Mote! Administration-
Personal services..................

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Materials and supplies.........c.....cccooooen
Charges and services............cccouveeveenenns
Capital outlay and equipment....................

County Administrator-
Personal services..................

Materials and supplies........ccccccevevnneeen...
Charges and services...........cc.ccocevvrenn..
Capital outlay and equipment....................

Support Services-
Personal services..................

Materials and supplies...........ccceuvvreeennn...
Charges and services..........c.ccooeeeeveennenn.
Capital outlay and equipment....................

Board of Elections-
Personal services..................

Materials and supplies.........ccccoceeevveinennns
Charges and services...........cccccceveervennnn..
Capital outlay and equipment....................

Capital Improvements-

Charges and services.......c..cceeeeeernrvnnenns

Capital outlay and equipment

Facilities-
Personal services..................

Materials and supplies...........c.coccverennen...

Charges and services............
Capital outlay and equipment

Recorder-
Personal services..................
Materials and supplies...........
Charges and services............
Capital outlay and equipment
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Variance:
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

51 50 50 0

2 2 1 1

4 4 3 1

5 5 - 5
582 600 596 4

8 8 6 2
55 34 19 15

3 3 2 1
374 372 360 12

8 8 7 1
7 11 7 4

4 6 4 2
1,183 1,373 1,341 32
116 297 291 6
693 1,163 961 202
13 13 13 -
697 452 144 308
182 162 161 1
4,270 3,491 3,466 25
295 298 296 2
8,094 7,901 7,577 324
95 79 79 -
744 757 706 51
43 34 30 4
49 40 37 3

5 5 5 -



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
General Government - continued
Legislative and executive - continued
Dept. of Public Service-
Personal services.........c.cvvevviiieicnenenen 52 49 21 28
Materials and supplies...........cccoonvniiinnn 3 3 - 3
Charges and Services..........coceevcevcnecenen 50 50 6 44
Capital outlay and equipment................... 5 5 4 1
Centralized Records Center-
Personal services..........ccccvveeviiinnnncne ’ 55 55 55 -
Materials and supplies......... e 1 1 1 -
Charges and services...........cccccocvicennenn 2 2 1 1
Capital outlay and equipment................... 8 9 9 -
Taxes-
Charges and services...........ccevvivinnnn 300 300 194 106
Insurance-
Personal Services...........cocevveecvereineinins 75 75 32 43
Charges and services..........cceevvevnniiinnnnn 951 1,126 1,107 19
Other-
Charges and Services..........ccccoveeiiiniiinnnnn 217 217 187 30
Total legislative and executive................ 29,462 29,431 27,783 1,648
Judicial
Prosecutor-
Personal services.......oocccccoeeevineivennennnn. 5,027 5,004 4,959 45
Materials and supplies........c.c.ccccocvvennenn 52 66 64 2
Charges and services..........ccccoevveviviinnnnn 132 127 116 11
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 10 2 2 -
Court Rehabilitation & Correction-
Personal services........cccccvvevveineneenceeneen 446 456 455 1
Materials and supplies.......c.c.cceveiienenn. 12 12 10 2
Charges and services...........cccovvnninnn 49 48 44 4
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 7 8 7 1
Court of Appeals-
Materials and supplies.........c.ccccoeenne. 47 55 39 16
Charges and services...........cccocevevvinnin. 175 167 150 17
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 11 11 7 4
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
General Government - continued Budgeted Amounts Positive
Judicial - continued Original Final Actual (Negative)

Common Pleas Court-

Personal services.......cccccevvveerneinnennnenen 2,805 2,847 2,815 32

Materials and supplies...........cccccovvereeeeen. 115 96 84 12

Charges and services..............ccoevvirnnnn, 389 332 244 88

Capital outlay and equipment.................... 47 60 57 3
Work Release-

Personal Services........ccccooovcvevevenennneenneen 1,809 1,783 1,769 14

Materials and supplies.......cccccccreeeenenneen 113 109 72 37

Charges and services.........cccceevvvvininn, 285 264 235 29

Capital outlay and equipment.................... 59 58 40 18
Jury Commission-

Personal services........c.ccccvovevevercccnenan. 78 80 80 -

Materials and supplies.........c....cccoeeeeeen. 21 21 17 4

Charges and services............ccocooevvenrnnn. 253 224 216 8

Capital outlay and equipment.................... 36 47 40 7
Adult Probation-

Personal Services.........ccoccvevevnecenvniennen 1,390 1,423 1,383 40

Materials and supplies........cccoccvevverenennne. 93 93 92 1

Charges and services.........c.ccocereereneen.. 36 35 27 8

Capital outlay and equipment................... 2 2 1 1
Pretrial Presentence Division-

Personal Services.........cccoeeeecicvvviereeencnns. 1,763 1,701 1,681 20

Materials and supplies.....c.c.ccccceevnreereenen 113 115 112 3

Charges and services...........c.ccccevvuuenunene. 46 37 34 3

Capital outlay and equipment.................... 12 14 12 2
Domestic Relations Court-

Personal ServiCes........covveverviinevcrenenenennes 2,356 2,391 2,391 -

Materials and supplies.........c.ccccvereneenenn 14 19 18

Charges and services.............cocoevveeennn, 170 179 168 11

Capital outlay and equipment.................... 30 9 7 2
Juvenile Court-

Personal services..........cccccoeeevvvvieeeennnan.. 6,933 6,977 6,972 5

Materials and supplies.........ccccccceeveeeenn. 254 276 274 2

Charges and Services.........ccccccevvvernnneennn. 637 562 538 24

Capital outlay and equipment.................... 123 93 87 6
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

(Amounts in 000's)

. Variance:
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
General Government - continued
Judicial - continued
Common Pleas Security-
Personal services.........ccccceevvevvevniieereenen.. 895 1,041 1,036 5
Materials and supplies..........cooevivninnnnn 2 3 3 -
Charges and services...........ccccceeervercneen. 20 16 15 1
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 4 4 3 1
Detention Home-
Personal services........ccccceeeveviveeceeeeeninnnn. 2,776 2,780 2,758 22
Materials and supplies............ccccccvnneennee 301 250 224 26
Charges and services...........cccoovcinneene. 381 369 349 20
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 24 47 40 7
Probate Court-
Personal Services.......ccovvvvvcvievierennnne 1,839 1,891 1,879 12
Materials and supplies.........cccccevvernnnrenen. 32 31 31 -
Charges and services............cccocevviininnn 127 96 90 6
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 10 10 -
Integrated Justice System-
Personal Services........coccevveveveiercinnennnn, 130 130 117 13
Materials and supplies...........cccceeennnecnns 2 2 2 -
Charges and services............ccevveiennnnnns 298 293 269 24
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 48 48 42 6
Clerk of Courts-
Personal services........ueveveueueverrennenienens 1,829 1,814 1,772 42
Materials and supplies....c.c.cccceveverereneenen 233 280 272 8
Charges and services...........cceevvvniininn 74 85 78 7
Capital outlay and equipment................... 36 28 26 2
Community Supervision-
Personal services...........cvvvvvenvniiiiiinennns 481 521 513 8
Materials and supplies..........cccovvnnerinennen 2 3 2 1
Charges and services...........occevevcenneen 113 108 98 10
Capital outlay and equipment................... 2 2 2 -
Public Defenders
Charges and services..........cocccvvvvvnnennnnnen 3,514 3,503 3,431 72
Municipal Courts-
Personal services.........ccoccccvvnnccrirenecnen 633 633 617 16
Charges and services...........cceceieiinennnn 104 100 87 13
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
General Government - continued
Judicial - continued
Law Library-
Personal ServiCes........oco.oovvviiiiiiniinenne 129 134 131 3
Other-
Charges and services..........ccoveeeneneiinen, 378 70 70 0
Total judicial..........cccooveeveciriccciciiiiinns 40,357 40,095 39,286 809
Public safety
Medical Corrections- :
Personal Services.......oooovvvviiivininiininn, 838 823 773 50
Materials and supplies........c.cooccnnninnnnnsn 62 46 3 43
Charges and services..........cccooeeeenrennnen. 575 560 550 10
Capital outlay and equipment................... 11 27 19 8
Coroner-
Personal Services........cccovevveeveinineiiiiinns 1,054 1,043 974 $69
Materials and supplies.........cccceveveineenn 8 11 7 4
Charges and services.........c.coceecninienen. 170 153 132 21
Capital outlay and equipment................... 1 1 1 -
Sheriff - New Class-
Charges and services............cceeiieiee 100 50 - 50
Sheriff - Corrections center-
Personal ServiCes.........ccoceevvvvvvvevievenennenns 14,347 14,999 14,942 57
Materials and supplies.........ccccccovviinnennn 235 259 242 17
Charges and services............ccoeevveervnen. 1,298 1,347 1,265 82
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 62 58 42 16
Sheriff - Law Enforcement-
Personal ServiCes..........ccoeeevvvvvvivenevennnnnne 4,106 4,836 4,809 27
Materials and supplies..........ccccceeviinnenn. 132 159 154 5
Charges and services..........cccocvvvieeeenne . 523 507 458 49
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 8 4 4 -
Sheriff - Administration
Personal services.......c..vvvvveveeieeeinrenneenne 1,850 1,812 1,780 32
Materials and supplies...........ccccccevvnnnns 41 41 33 8
Charges and services..........ccoovvveeneeennie. 397 421 374 47

Capital outlay and equipment................... 9 10 10 -
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Public safety - continued
Sheriff - 911 Call Takers-
Personal services.......c.ccocevvevnicrneiennnns 654 597 579 18
Materials and supplies.....c..cccccveeeeeeniin. 3 3 - 3
Charges and services.........c.ccoovevuvnrneneen. 10 12 12
Public Safety Contracts-
Personal services.........ccccovvveriviraninnnne., 854 522 478 44
Charges and services..........cccccceeenenenen. 11 12 11 1
Public Safety Court Security-
Personal serviCes........oovvvueeceeeceeeeeeeeeean. 4,053 3,720 3,714 6
Charges and services.........cccceecevvneneesn, 57 66 59 7
Incarceration Facility-
Charges and services..........cccoceecvreernnnn. . 3,651 3,857 3,824 33
Other-
Charges and services........c..cccvvveeeecen. s 600 600 600 -
Total public safety............cccccovvvvirnan... 35,620 36,556 35,849 707
Public works
Engineer-
Personal services..........ccocevvevenccnninnines 150 158 158 -
Materials and supplies...........ccoccvvvnnennns, 14 16 16 -
Charges and services...........cocoeeeenerannnn. 70 67 65 2
Capital outlay and equipment................... 5 - - -
Ditch Maintenance-
Personal services.........cccocevmvveinnnnenncs 6 6 - 6
Charges and Services...........cocovueceveernne.n, 65 65 23 42
Total public WOIKS.........cccccovvvvvevveennn, 310 312 262 50
Health
Health Services-
Charges and services...........c.ccoeeecereenn s 1,014 1,090 780 $310
Registration of Vital Statistics-
Charges and services............cocovveeveenn.n 9 9 - 9
Total health...........ccccooveevcvvicvvnniinannnn, 1,023 1,099 780 319
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Human services

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

(Amounts in 000's)

Veterans Service Commission-

Personal services...

Materials and supplies.........ccoovvnniiiinin
Charges and Services...........c.cocveninnnnenes
Capital outlay and equipment....................

Veterans Service-

Charges and Services..........ccoccocvenvevneeen.

Other-

Charges and Services..........coccovvvenenieens

Total human ServiCes........ccccceuerveevennn,

Conservation and recreation

Recreation-
Personal services...

Materials and supplies.......ccccovevviveiiinnnnn
Charges and Services.............coocvvevieennn.
Capital outlay and equipment....................

Agriculture-

Charges and Services...........coeeeeemiiennn.

Other-

Charges and Services..........cccovveeinriennnenns

Total conservation

Miscellaneous
Contingencies-

and recreation...........

Charges and services...........cccecvvivneiininns

Maumee Valley Hist. Society
Charges and ServiCes.......c..ooceureeruiaciennnrns

Other-

Charges and services.............ccevivenrieenne

Total miscellaneous.............cccccveevvenn..

Total expenditures

— 88 —

Variance:
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

372 369 356 13

9 9 8 1
1,075 1,075 1,021 54
15 15 14 1

25 25 24 1

- 149 149 -
1,496 1,642 1,572 70
659 654 595 59
140 135 82 53
517 500 421 79
117 117 24 93
373 378 378 0
61 61 61 -
1,867 1,845 1,561 284
988 301 - 301

- 15 15 -
804 534 463 71
1,792 850 478 372
$111,927 $111,830 $107,571 $ 4,259




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL
December 31, 2002

Special Revenue Funds- The Special Revenue funds
account for all specific financial resources (other than
expendable trusts, or major capital projects) that are legally
restricted for specified expenditure purposes. The following
are the Special Revenue funds which Lucas County
operates:

Community Mental Health- To account for revenues
received from a county-wide property tax levy, federal and
state grants, and reimbursements used for various county
mental health programs.

Real Estate Assessment- To account for state mandated
county-wide real estate reappraisals.

Motor Vehicle and Gas Tax- To account for monies
received by the County for State gasoline tax and vehicle
registration fees used for county road and bridge improve-
ments programs.

Emergency Medical Services- To account for
emergency medical care financed by a county-wide sales
tax.

Emergency Telephone System- To account for a
county-wide property tax levy used for emergency
telephone assistance

Zoo Operating- To account for a county-wide property
tax levy. Monies are distributed directly to the Toledo
Zoological Society.

Child Support Enforcement Agency- To account for
revenues from: fees, fines, federal and state grants and
other similar revenue sources, and to account for legally
restricted expenditures used for the collection and protec-
tion of support payments made and owed to parents and
children.

Capital Projects Funds- Capital Projects funds account
for financial resources to be used for the construction of
acquisition of major capital facilities (other than those
finances by proprietary funds and trust funds). The
following are the Capital funds which Lucas County
operates:

Other Special Revenue Funds- To account for revenues
from: fees, taxes, fines, federal and state grants, licenses
and other similar revenue sources, and to account for
legally restricted expenditures for specified purposes.
Summarized information on the financial activity and
balances of the following Special Revenue funds include:

Dog and Kennel

Hotel Lodging Tax

Community Development Grant
Emergency Management Agency
Marriage License

Coroner’s Lab Fund

Law Enforcement Drug Fund
Delinquent Real Estate Tax and Assessment Collection Fund
Tax Installment Payment Plan
Emergency Planning Fund
Indigent Guardianship

Drug & Alcohol Services Board
Community MR/RES Services
Senior Services

Economic Development

Indigent Drivers

Probation Service

Motor Vehicle Enforcement and Education
Building Regulations

Certificate of Title Administration
Recorder Equipment

Juvenile Treatment Center
Juvenile Felony Care

Adult Probation Grant
Correctional Treatment Facility
Common Pleas Civil Mediation
Sheriff's Policing

Workforce Development

When compared to combined Special Revenue fund
totals, other special revenue funds comprise less than 10%
in each of the following categories: assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenditures.

Permanent Zoo Improvements- To account for a
County-wide property tax levy used for renovation and
construction of buildings, facilities and infrastructure for the
Toledo Zoo.

— 89 —



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Community Real Motor Emergency Emergency
Mental Estate Vehicle and Medical Telephone
Health Assessment Gas Tax Services System
ASSETS
Pooled cash and cash equivalents ......................... $ 1,072 § 196 § 392 § 94 $ 669
Pooled investments .....................oc 7,832 2,260 4,516 1,089 4,925
Receivables (net of allowance for
uncollectables)
TAXES ..t 9,404 - - - 5516
ACCOUNES ...ceiiiiii e - 3 56 - -
LOANS ...ovii - - - - -
Due from other governments ................c.ccoeeeinn. 681 - 5,408 - 279
Inventory: materials and supplies .......................... - - 432 - -
Total @ssets .........cocoviiiiii $ 18,989 $ 2459 $ 10,804 § 1,183 § 11,389
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable ... $ 1,865 § 54 $ 347  $ 217§ 252
Accrued wages and benefits ... 84 164 416 87 33
Duetootherfunds ...............coocoi 1 3 - 11 1
Deferred revenue ...............ccooiiiiiiii 10,015 - 4,037 - 5,894
Total liabilities .................oco 11,965 221 4,800 315 6,180
Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances ... 1,785 238 2,652 221 584
Inventory ... - - 432 - -
Loansreceivable ..................... - - - - -
Unreserved undesignated ........................... 5,239 2,000 2,920 647 4,625
Total fund balances ...................cooiveininnns 7,024 2,238 6,004 868 5,209
Total liabilities and fund balances .................. $ 18,989 § 2459 $ 10,804 §$ 1,183 $ 11,389
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Capital Project

Other Total
Child Support Special Permanent Nonmajor
Zoo Enforcement Revenue Zoo Governmental
Operating Agency Funds Total Improvements Funds
$ 245  § 244§ 8569 § 11481  § 252§ 11,733
38 2,816 15,590 39,066 44 39,110
5,517 - 3,056 23,493 6,062 29,555
- 9N 477 627 - 627
- - 286 286 - 286
283 - 2,217 8,868 299 9,167
- - - 432 - 432
$ 6,083 § 3,151 & 30,195 § 84,2563 § 6,657 $ 90,910
$ -8 91§ 2434 § 5360 $ - 8 5,360
- 583 893 2,260 - 2,260
- 11 11 38 - 38
5,898 - 3,262 29,106 6,458 35,564
5,898 785 6,600 36,764 6,458 43,222
267 5,579 11,326 - 11,326
- - - 432 - 432
- - 286 286 - 286
185 2,099 17,730 35,445 199 36,644
185 2,366 23,695 47,489 199 47,688
$ 6,083 $ 3,151 $ 30,195 § 84,253 $ 6,657 $ 90,910
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Community Real Motor Emergency Emergency
Mental Estate Vehicle and Medical Telephone
Health Assessment Gas Tax Services System
REVENUES
TAXES. ..ot $ 9,143 $ - $ 88 $ - $ 5,364
Charges for services................ccoooet - 3,685 - - -
Fines and forfeits........................... - - 55 - -
Inergovemmental revenue ...................... 26,238 - 14,546 - -
Miscellaneous revenue........................... 1,051 35 286 136 33
Totalrevenues................coovi i, 36,432 3,670 14,975 136 5,397
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General govemment:
Legislative and executive.................... - 3,292 - - -
Judicial............... - - - - 42
Public safety..............occooeev - - - 9,026 4,348
Publicworks.............co.cooi - - 13,061 - -
Health...............cooviii 37,678 - - -
Human services..............ocoeveiiciinine - - - - -
Conservation and recreation.................. - - - - -
Miscellaneous................coocooiieii il - - - - -
Capital outlay..........cooooovieiiininnn. - - - - -
Total expenditures 37,678 3,292 13,061 9,026 4,390
Excess of revenues over (under)
expenditures............cooeeiiiiiiiiinennnn, (1,246) 378 1,914 (8,890) 1,007
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
OPWOC loan proceeds......................... - - 920 - -
Operating transfers in............................. - - - 8,709 -
Operating transfersout........................... - - (802) - -
Total other financing sources (uses)..... - - 618 8,709 -
Net change in fund balances............... (1,246) 378 2,632 (181) 1,007
Fund balance at beginning of year............. 8,270 1,860 3,472 1,049 4,202
Fund balance atend of year.................... $ 7,024 $ 2238 $ 6,004 $ 868 $ 5,209




Capital Projects

Other Total
Child Support Special Permanent Nonmajor
Zoo Enforcement Revenue Zoo Governmental
Operating Agency Funds Total Improvements Funds

$ 4,406 $ - 3 6,988 $ 25,989 $ 5,844 $ 31,833
- 954 7,369 11,9568 - 11,958
- - 88 143 - 143
- 9,630 26,581 76,895 - 76,895
2 56 14,340 15,939 3 15,942
4,408 10,540 55,366 130,924 5,847 136,771
- - 7,565 10,857 - 10,857
- 11,606 3,287 14,935 - 14,935
- - 9,187 22,561 - 22,561
- - 21 13,082 - 13,082
- - 14,735 562,418 - 52,413
- - 3,363 3,363 - 3,363
4,376 - 161 4,537 - 4,537
- - 15,488 15,488 15,488
. . " - 5,854 5,854
4,376 11,606 53,807 137,236 5,854 143,080

32 (1,066) 1,559 (6,312) (7) (6,319)
- - - 920 - 920
- - 2,148 10,857 - 10,857

- - (67) (369) - (369)
- - 2,081 11,408 - 11,408
32 (1,066) 3,640 5,096 7 5,089
163 3,432 19,955 42,393 206 42,599
$ 185 $ 2,366 § 23,595 $ 47,489 $ 199 $ 47,688




AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-

Revenues:

Intergovernmental revenue.

Miscellaneous revenue.......

Total revenue.................

Expenditures:
Current:
Health
Personal services............
Materials and supplies......
Charges and services.......

LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Capital outiay and equipment............................

Total expenditures...........

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures......

Fund balance at beginning of year.......................
Prior year encumbrances appropriated..................

Fund balance at end of year

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

............................... $ 8,717 $ 8,717 $ 9,160 $ 443
................................. 26,859 26,860 27,494 634
............................... 157 157 1,051 894
.............................. 35,733 35,734 37,705 1,971
............................... 1,090 1,084 1,037 47
.............................. 26 26 19 7
............................... 35,176 39,565 39,493 72
40 39 5 34
............................... 36,332 40,714 40,554 160
(599) (4,980) (2,849) 2,131

5,651 5,651 5,651 -

2,330 2,330 2,330 -
................................ $ 7,382 $ 3,001 $ 5,132 $ 2,131
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
REAL ESTATE ASSESSMENT - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000’s)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for services.............ccoooveviiiiiiiiiin e, $ 3,475 $ 3,475 $ 3,633 $ 158
Miscellaneous revenue...................cocoooiivonn.. 40 40 35 (5)
Total revenue...............cccceuvieiueieeeaiiisesieinnnn., 3,615 3,515 3,668 153
Expenditures:
Current:
Legislative and executive
Personal services..............coooeeviiiiiiiiiie i, 2,608 2,608 2,339 269
Materials and supplies..............c.ccn 55 56 43 13
Charges and services.............co...coooeevivienn, 1,261 1,207 896 311
Capital outlay and equipment............................ 410 462 423 39
Total expenditures...............c...ccoeeeeieieiininn... 4,334 4,333 3,701 632
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures....... (819) (818) (33) 785
Fund balance at beginning of year......................... 1,807 1,807 1,807 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................... 436 436 436 -
Fund balance atend of year................................. $ 1,424 $ 1,425 $ 2,210 $ 785




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
MOTOR VEHICLE & GAS TAX - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for ServiCes..........c.oovciiviiiieeineeiniannens $ 75 $ 75 $ 88 $ 13
Fines and forfeits..........ccocoiei i, 55 55 60 5
Intergovernmental revenue..................cccooon 16,590 16,590 14,118 (2,472)
Miscellaneous revenue............ccccoeveviinininnn. 215 215 245 30
Total revenuUe. .........ccovvvveeciiiriiciiiiiiniiaiaen, 16,935 16,935 14,511 (2,424)
Expenditures:
Current:
Public works
Personal Services..........cc.ovviiiiei i, 5,933 5,829 5,653 276
Materials and supplies..........ccocoviviviriieiiiiiiae. 937 1,013 932 81
Charges and Services .............co.covvviiviiniinnn s 13,357 13,406 9,845 3,561
Capital outlay and equipment..................ccoeeeeen 406 385 347 38
Total expenditures...............cccceevivniviiiiiaannn.. 20,633 20,633 16,677 3,956
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures...... (3,698) (3,698) (2,166) 1,632
Fund balance at beginning of year...................... 1,906 1,906 1,906 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................. 2,199 2,199 2,199 -
Fund balance atend of year................coocevininnns $ 407 $ 407 $ 1,939 $ 1,532
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:

Miscellaneous revenue................ccoeeievencennnns $ 43 $ 43 $ 136 $ 93

Total revenue..............ccccveiiviiineiiiniiiieaninn, 43 43 136 93

Expenditures:

Current:

Public safety
Personal ServiCes ..........cooeviviiiiiiiee i, 1,330 1,315 1,253 62
Materials and supplies ...........cccccocii i 465 535 470 65
Charges and Services ............ocoveeeirncnennnianen. 7,790 7,809 7,524 285
Capital outlay and equipment ........................ 345 271 157 114
Total expenditures................cccvviiiinneniiiiniin, 9,930 9,930 9,404 526
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures...... (9,887) (9,887) (9,268) 619

Other financing sources:

Operating transfers in..............coocovnn 8,709 8,709 8,709 -
Total other financing sources........................... 8,709 8,709 8,709 -
Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures............................... (1,178) (1,178) (559) 619

Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 615 615 615 -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated.................. 732 732 732 -

Fund balance atend of year................ccceevennn. $ 169 $ 169 $ 788 $ 619
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
EMERGENCY TELEPHONE SYSTEM - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:

TAXES..eeniie e e e $ 5,444 $ 5,444 $ 5,374 $ (70)

Miscellaneous revenue...................oo.cooviieennn. - - 33 33
Totalrevenue................cc.coeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinan, 5444 5,444 5,407 (37)

Expenditures:

Current:

Public safety
Personal services .............ooocooiviiiiiin i, 875 875 508 367
Materials and supplies ................cooooeeeieninnn. 27 32 17 15
Charges and services .......................ccoeevvnn. 6,684 6,679 4,360 2,319
Capital outlay and equipment ........................... 129 129 112 17
Total expenditures....................ccccocevueiiiinnin.., 7,715 7,715 4 997 2,718
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures...... (2,271) (2,271) 410 2,681

Other financing sources:

Operating transfers in...................ccove e, - - - -
Total other financing sources........................... - - - -
Excess of revenues and other financing sources

over (under) expenditures............................... (2,271) (2,271) 410 2,681

Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 2,021 2,021 2,021 -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated.................. 2,272 2,272 2,272 -

Fund balance atend of year............................... $ 2,022 $ 2,022 $ 4,703 $ 2681
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
ZOO OPERATING - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000’s)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {(Negative)
Revenues:
TAXES. .. e e $ 4,297 $ 4,297 $ 4,382 $ 85
Miscellaneous revenue...........................c. 50 50 2 (48)
Totalrevenue..................ccoooeieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiin, 4,347 4,347 4,384 37
Expenditures:
Current;
Conservation and recreation
Charges and Services .............ccceevvvieeinniiine, 4,290 4,380 4,376 4
Total expenditures..............c.ccocoviiiiiiiiiiiinil. 4,290 4,380 4,376 4
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures...... 57 (33) 8 41
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 33 33 33 -
Fund balance atend of year............................... $ 90 $ - $ 41 $ 41
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
CHILD SUPPORT ENFORCEMENT AGENCY - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for SerVICES..........eeieeriiiniriiieece e, $ - $ - $ 944 $ 944
Intergovernmental revenue.....................ooe 11,270 11,270 9,530 (1,740)
Miscellaneous revenue............coooeiiiiiiiiiiiiin, 60 60 57 (3)
Total rEVENUE......c.vevieeeieieieeeae 11,330 11,330 10,531 (799)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Judicial
Personal SErviCeS......ccvvviveieeiiiiiiirre e 10,187 10,187 8,902 1,285
Materials and supplies..............c.coccociiiiiinn 359 359 220 139
Charges and services ............cc.coooeeinniiiennnn, 3,172 3,172 2,657 515
Capital outlay and equipment.............................. 256 256 122 134
Total expenditures.................cccceviviiiiiiinnininnnn. 13,974 13,974 11,901 2,073
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... (2,644) (2,644) (1,370) 1,274
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 3,681 3,681 3,681
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.................. 301 301 301
Fund balance atend of year.................ccccooeeninn e $ 1,338 $ 1,338 $ 2,612 $ 1274
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
DOG AND KENNEL - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:

Charges for ServiCeS.......c...ovevveiiiiieeeiiieiineeinna $ 926 $ 926 $ 975 $ 49

Fines and forfeits...............ccoiiiiiiiiiiiii i, 65 65 54 (1)

Miscellaneous revenue................coceeviiinveniininn, 147 147 126 (21)
Total revenue.............c.ceeiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiaiin 1,138 1,138 1,155 17

Expenditures:

Current:

General government
Health

Personal Services..........ccocoovviiiiiiiiiiei i, 1,188 1,192 1,146 46

Materials and supplies..............cocoiviiiiii i, 107 137 129 8

Charges and Services ............coeeviiveineiiinnnnennnan, 182 176 161 15

Capital outlay and equipment...............coooeei. 17 9 9 -
Total expenditures..............ccccoeeivviiininninnnn... 1,494 1,514 1,445 69
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures...... (356) (376) (290) 86

Other financing sources:

Operating transfers in..............cccooviviiiinn. 319 319 319 -
Total other financing sources........................... 319 319 319 -
Excess of revenues and other financing sources

over (under) expenditures............................... (37) (57) 29 86

Fund balance at beginning of year........................ 257 257 257 -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated.................. 38 38 38 -

Fund balance atend of year................................ $ 258 $ 238 $ 324 $ 86
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
HOTEL LODGING TAX - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
TAXES.. oot 4,400 4,400 4,040 (360)
Totalrevenue................co.coeoeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiaiini. 4,400 4,400 4,040 (360)
Expenditures:
Current:
Miscellaneous
Charges and services..............ccccoeeveviiiiininn ... 4,000 4,000 3,708 292
Total expenditures....................ccccovuininieinnnn,., 4,000 4,000 3,708 292
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures...... 400 400 332 (68)
Fund balance at beginning of year........................ (332) (332) (332) -
Fund balance atend of year................................ $ 68 $ 68 $ - $ (68)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT GRANT - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue................................... $ 15,350 $ 15,350 $ 3,728 (11,622)
Totalrevenue....................ccoceeiiiiiiiiiiiini, 15,350 15,350 3,728 (11,622)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Legislative and executive
Personal services.............c..ccocoe L 86 265 165 100
Materials and supplies.........c.ccooooviiveeiiniininnnn, 1 1 - 1
Charges and services................ccccevieiiii i 2,080 2,635 1,501 1,134
Capital outlay and equipment............................ 93 208 150 58
Total legislative & executive............................... 2,260 3,109 1,816 1,293
Judicial
Personal services...............ooeeiiiiiiee e 425 825 473 352
Materials and supplies.........ccccoeiviiieeeiiiininninnn, 3 18 8 10
Charges and services...............cooceeiiiiininnn.n. 619 2,139 1,668 471
Capital outlay and equipment............................. 311 1,132 448 684
Totaljudicial.....................ccoocoiiiiiii : 1,358 4,114 2,597 1,517
Public safety
Personal services................c.ooi 67 270 229 4
Materials and supplies............ccocovvviieiiiiiinnnnnn, 1 2 1 1
Charges and services................ooceeeee e, 75 371 346 25
Capital outlay and equipment............................. 16 16 12 4
Total public safety............ccccccovvviiviiieiiiiiii, 159 659 588 71
Health
Charges and Services................oceeeeeciieneniiean. 8 8 8 -
Totalhealth..............c.ccoviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeien 8 8 8 -
Conservation & recreation
Charges and services................ccceeeve i, 503 663 253 410
Total conservation & recreation........................... 503 663 253 410
continued
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) '

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT GRANT - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
Public Works
Capital outlay and equipment...................ooeevnne 21 21 20 (1)
Total public WOrKS...........c.ccceciiiiiiiiiiiiiin 21 21 20 (1)
Miscellaneous
Charges and SErviCes...........c.veriiiviiiiiinnneeieen 1 9 8 (1)
Total miscellaneous.................ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnn 1 9 8 )
Total expenditures...............cooveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieinn, 4,310 8,583 5,290 3,293
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures............ 11,040 6,767 (1,562) (8,329)
Other financing (uses):
Operating transfers in............coocoovii - - 300 300
Operating transfersout................c (7,691) (7,691) - 7,691
Total other financing sources (uses) (7,691) (7,691) 300 7,991
Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and other
fiN@NCING USES.......covivviiiiiiii 3,349 (924) (1,262) (338)
Fund balance at beginning of year......................o 478 478 478
Prior year encumbrances appropriated....................... 1,276 1,276 1,276 -
Fund balance atend of year.................................... $ 5,103 $ 830 $ 492 $  (338)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue..................coooei $ 210 $ 210 $ 206 $ (4)
Miscellaneous revenue.............coeevvviiiieiniinnn.n. - - 12 12
Totalrevenue.................cccccevivuiiiiiiiiiiii 210 210 218 8
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety
Personal services...........ccoovvieeviiviiiniinicinnnn, 275 279 271 8
Materials and supplies.........co.cocviiiivninninne.n, 8 7 4 3
Charges and services.............cccovereeeerininnn.n. 134 262 232 30
Capital outlay and equipment......................... 10 25 16 9
Total expenditures.................cco.cooeeeeiiiiiin.. 427 573 523 50
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures. ... (217) (363) (305) 58
Other financing sources:

Operating transfers in...................coovcivieenennnn. 198 198 198 -
Total other financing sources.......................... 198 198 198 -
Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures.....................oe (19) (165) (107) 58

Fund balance at beginning of year...................... 145 145 145 -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated................ 20 20 20 -
Fund balance atend of year............................. $ 146 $ - $ 58 $ 58
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

CORONER'S LAB FUND - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for Services...........covvrviiiieeiiiin $ 300 $ 300 $ 443 $ 143
TOtal FOVENUE. ... ieiiieeiiiiiieiiee s 300 300 443 143
Expenditures:
Current:
Health
Materials and sUPPlIES......covvveveriiiiiiiininines 99 93 62 31
Charges and ServiCes............ccoarrrriinininiininiinns 248 255 244 11
Capital outlay and equipment...................ooeeeie 67 67 31 36
Total expenditures.............cccoovieevnniiincniiann, 414 415 337 78
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... (114) (115) 106 221
Fund balance at beginning of year...................... 608 608 608
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................ 37 37 37 -
Fund balance atend of year...............ccoveeinnns $ 531 $ 530 $ 751 $ 221
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
MARRIAGE LICENSE - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for Services..........ccoeviiiiiiniiieeeiinennennn.e $ 200 $ 200 $ 170 $ (30)
Tolalrevenue............cccoccccveiviiiiiniiiinninennnnn, 200 200 170 (30)
Expenditures:
Current:
Health
Charges and Services..........occeveviviconicinnennen 260 260 190 70
Total expendituresS...........ovceeevevrenivenvinannnnnn, 260 260 190 70
Excess of revenues over (under} expenditures..... (60) (60) (20) 40
Fund balance at beginning of year...................... 94 94 94 -
Fund balance atend of year..................ccocevvenee $ 34 $ 34 $ 74 $ 40
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
LAW ENFORCEMENT DRUG FUND - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Fines and forfeits..............ccooeviiiiniiiiiinin, $ 25 $ 25 $ - $ (25
Total revenuUe...........oooeeveneiiiiesiieeeiaceaes 25 25 - (25)
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety
Charges and ServiCes.............c.coeeiiiiiniinn 25 25 - 25
Total expenditures............ccocoociviiviiinniniinn. 25 25 - 25
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures....
Fund balance at beginning of year...................... 18 18 18
Fund balance atend of year..............c...c.ocie $ 18 $ 18 $ 18 $
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
DELINQUENT REAL ESTATE TAX AND ASSESSMENT
COLLECTION - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for Services..........cocoivvviiviieiiniiiiinnn. $ 850 $ 850 $ 1,264 $ 414
Miscellaneous revenue...................c.ocoovnnn 900 900 34 (559)
Totalrevenue..............ccooccoviiiiiiiiiiiniinni o, 1,750 1,750 1,605 (145)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Legisiative and executive
Personal services...........ccooccvviniiiiainieiniinn, 1,034 1,133 1,026 107
Materials and supplies............c.coooviiiiiin 58 45 34 11
Charges and services.........c...coocovvniiiiinnnn. 604 598 468 130
Capital outlay and equipment......................... 20 23 20 3
Total expenditures.............c.coviveeeeniiiiinnnnn, 1,716 1,799 1,548 251
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... 34 (49) 57 106
Fund balance at beginning of year...................... 751 751 751
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................ 18 18 18
Fund balance atend of year............................. $ 803 $ 720 $ 826 $ 106
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
TAX INSTALLMENT PAYMENT PLAN - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for SerVICeS......ovovvviiieiiiiinenecen $ 45 $ 45 $ 30 $ (15
Total revenUe. ...........ccoccoeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeaane 45 45 30 (15)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Legislative and executive
Materials and supplies........ccccovviviniiinnn 5 7 8 1
Charges and ServiCes.......oocoovevvvrnieneinainene 18 17 13 4
Capital outlay and equipment..................cco.o 6 5 2 3
Total expenditures............c.ccooevviiiieiiiieinens 29 29 21 8
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... 16 16 9 (7)
Fund balance at beginning of year...................... 205 205 205 -
Fund balance at end of year...............ccoeeeieeeee $ 221 $ 221 $ 214 $ (7).
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
EMERGENCY PLANNING FUND - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for ServiCes.........ccoeevvviiiineeeeeniinniiiinn, $ 40 $ 61 $ 62 $ 1
Miscellaneous revenue...........cooevviiviiiinienen 10 1 1
Total revVenue...........cc.covvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiniiienn, 50 62 63 1
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Public safety
Materiais and supplies........ccovovviiiiininn 1 3 1 2
Charges and ServiCes.......c...oeivviiiiiniiinaeniane, 99 97 48 49
Capital outlay and equipment......................... 5 5 3 2
Total expenditures.................cocoiviiveiiinnnnn, 105 105 52 53
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... (55) (43) 11 54
Fund balance at beginning of year...................... 35 35 35
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................ 9 9 9 -
Fund balance atend of year....................coin $ (11) $ 1 $ 55 $ 54
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Revenues:
Miscellaneous revenue.......

Total revenue..................

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Judicial
Charges and services......

Total expenditures..........

LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
INDIGENT GUARDIANSHIP FUND - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.....

Fund balance at beginning of year......................
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
Original Amounts (Negative)
.............................. $ 85 $ 85 $ 82 $ 3)
............................. 85 85 82 (3)
............................... 90 90 71 19
............................... 90 90 71 19
5) (5) 11 16
48 48 48 -
4 4 4 -
............................. $ 47 $ 47 3 63 $ 16

Fund balance at end of year
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICES BOARD - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue...................oo $ 8,524 $ 8,524 $ 8,068 $  (456)
Total revenue.............ccovveiiiii i 8,524 8,624 8,068 (456)
Expenditures:
Current:
Health
Personal services........ocveveveiiiiiiineenn, 503 493 493
Materials and supplies...........cooevvniiniiniiiee 11 10 10
Charges and Services..........ooooeveeieiiinei. 9,389 9,419 9,419 -
Capital outlay and equipment..............c.ooeii 31 13 12 1
Total expenditures.............c.coeeviiiiiiiinl, 9,934 9,935 9,934 1
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... (1,410) (1,411) (1,866) (455)
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 1,078 1,078 1,078
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................. 763 763 763 -
Fund balance at end of year..............ccc.coeevvennnn $ 431 $ 430 $ (25) $ (455)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
COMMUNITY MR/RES SERVICES - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue............cceeeeeeeeeeennniinn, $ 9,130 $ 9,130 $ 4,499 $ (4,631)
Tolal reVeNUE.......c.cceeeiciiiiiiieiiie i, 9,130 9,130 4,499 (4,631)
Expenditures:
Current:
Health
Charges and ServiCes............ccooeeiiiivinirinaennes 9,722 9,722 3,949 5,773
Total expenditures.............cooeeviviininiininnnn. 9,722 9,722 3,949 5,773
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... (592) (592) 550 1,142
Fund batance at beginning of year...................... 538 538 538
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................ 593 593 593 -
Fund balance atend of year...........c....ccoeeeeenniee $ 539 $ 539 $ 1,681 $ 1,142
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
SENIOR SERVICES - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
T AXES ettt $ 2,944 $ 2,944 $ 2,953 $ 9
Intergovernmental revenue..................cooee 68 68 1 (67)
Total revenue...........ccc.oceivieiiiiiiiiiiiiaiii, 3,012 3,012 2,954 (58)
Expenditures:
Current:
Human services
Charges and ServiCes..........coveeveererneenvenneennenn, 2,940 2,940 2,608 332
Total expenditureS...............ccooviiiiiiiiiinnnn... 2,940 2,940 2,608 332
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... 72 72 346 274
Fund balance at beginning of year...................... 21 21 21 -
Fund balance atend of year...............c.o.ccunn $ 93 $ 93 $ 367 $ 274
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue..............cooeevveiiniannnn.. $ 199 $ 199 150 $ (49
Total revenue.............cccouvieiiineiisiniiniiiiniaains 199 199 150 (49)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Legislative and executive
Personal Services..........c.vovveeviiieinenieneiinnnn. 333 442 380 62
Materials and supplies..............occooviiiieinn, 4 7 5 2
Charges and Services.........coocvvieeieeninncnnnnn, 1,308 2,370 1,722 648
Capital outlays and equipment........................ 3 1 - 1
Total expenditures 1,648 2,820 2,107 713
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... (1,449) (2,621) (1,957) 664
Other financing sources:

Operating transfersin..............o.ooonn, 1,331 1,331 1,331 -
Total other financing SouUrces........................... 1,331 1,331 1,331 -
Excess of revenues and other financing sources

over (under) expenditures and other uses......... (118) (1,290) (626) 664
Fund balance at beginning of year...................... 2,005 2,005 2,005 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................ 67 67 67 -
Fund balance atend of year................coccovvennnn. $ 1,954 $ 782 1,446 $ 664
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
INDIGENT DRIVERS FUND - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Fines and forfeits................ccoooiiiiiiinnnin $ 10 $ 10 $ 33 $ 23
Totalrevenue................cccccoiiiiiiiiiiniii i, 10 10 33 23
Expenditures:
Current:
Judicial
Charges and services.................ccoeeeeivinnnnnnn, 10 10 - 10
Total expenditures....................ccoooeiieiiii . 10 10 - 10
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... - - 33 33
Fund balance at beginning of year...................... 137 137 137 -
Fund balance atend ofyear............................. $ 137 $ 137 $ 170 $ 33
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
PROBATION SERVICE - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for SErVICeS .....coeeeeiviiinriiniiiiiiieeineens $ 120 $ 120 $ 123 $ 3
TOal FOVENUE  ...ccvvivieeiraiiieeciii s 120 120 123 3
Expenditures:
Current:
Legislative and executive
Personal services 53 53 19 34
Materials & supplies 16 16 - 16
Charges and ServiCes..........ocooevviviiiiniininninn 126 126 105 21
Capital outlay and equipment ........................ 97 97 8 89
Total expenditures..............ccocoviiiiiiiiniiininennn. 292 292 132 160
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures. .... (172) (172) 9) 163
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 302 302 302
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................. 53 53 53 -
Fund balance atend of year......................o. $ 183 $ 183 $ 346 $ 163
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
MV ENFORCEMENT AND EDUCATION - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for services..............occoo i $ 20 $ 20 $ 11 $ (9)
Totalrevenue............c.....cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 20 20 11 9)
Expenditures:
Current:
Judicial
Charges and services.............cocooco o 20 20 6 14
Total expenditures.................c..cocociviiiiiiinn. 20 20 6 14
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.. ... - - 5 5
Fund balance at beginning ofyear....................... 24 24 24 -
Fund balance atend ofyear............................. 3 24 $ 24 3 29 $ 5
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
BUILDING REGULATIONS - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for ServiCes.........ccooeviiiiinniiiiininniinnn $ 1,122 $ 1,222 $ 1,320 $ 98
Total reVENUE ... 1,122 1,222 1,320 98
Expenditures:
Current:
Legislative and executive
Personal ServiCes........cooevveiiiiveeiiecenen. 1,068 1,084 1,063 21
Materials and supplies........ccocoivviiianiniinn. 31 31 27
Charges and ServiCes...........cccovoviiiiiiiiininiinn 250 252 244 8
Capital outlay and equipment......................... 34 16 5 11
Total expenditures.............c.cocoviviiiiiiiiniiniinn, 1,383 1,383 1,339 44
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... (261) (161) (19) 142
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 1,180 1,180 1,180
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................. 9 9 9 -
Fund balance atend of year........................ $ 928 $ 1,028 $ 1,170 $ 142
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
CERTIFICATE OF TITLE ADMINISTRATION - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for ServiCes...........coeevieveisinnniineennnn, $ 1,400 $ 1,400 $ 1,532 $ 132
Total reVeNUE.........c.eevieiiieiiieei i 1,400 1,400 1,532 132
Expenditures:
Current:
Legislative and executive
Personal services..........c.ccocoviiiinii 1,445 1,446 1,353 93
Materials and supplies........c.coooviiiiniiiic 62 62 28 34
Charges and Services..........coocvceinenciinncnnnn. 401 401 146 255
Capital outlay and equipment......................... 31 31 19 12
Total expenditureS.........cocceveeiiiiiinicniiiniininn, 1,939 1,940 1,546 394
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... (539) (540) (14) 526
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 1,321 1,321 1,321
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................. 19 19 19 -
Fund balance at end of year.............cc..coooevunnee $ 801 $ 800 $ 1,326 $ 526
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
RECORDER EQUIPMENT - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for ServiCes. .......cooovciiirneeriiniiiinianianns $ 400 $ 400 $ 526 $ 126
Total revenue............cooveveeieviieiiiiiiiniiiainn. 400 400 526 126
Expenditures:
General government:
Legislative and executive
Materials and supplies..........c.ccoocviiiiieneneenn. 24 59 52 7
Charges and ServiCes..........ocovevvenreniriennnnnn 100 135 101 34
Capital outlay and equipment......................... 535 630 544 86
Total expenditures.............c.cceeveiiiiinininnn, 659 824 697 127
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... (259) (424) (171) 253
Fund batance at beginning of year....................... 1,021 1,021 1,021
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................. 40 40 40 -
Fund balance atend of year.................oocvvvennnn. $ 802 3 637 $ 890 $ 253
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
JUVENILE TREATMENT CENTER - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {(Negative)

Revenues:

Intergovernmental revenue............cccccovveeercnnennn. $ 1,028 $ 2,112 $ 2,068 $  (44)
Total revenue. .........c.c.ocoiveiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiniinin, 1,028 2,112 2,068 (44)

Expenditures:

Current:

Public safety
Personal ServiCes..........c.covvciiieiciecinnninenne. 1,936 1,863 1,825 38
Materials and supplies..........cccovvcii 123 189 167 32
Charges and services.............ccoceeiviiennnnn. 135 131 118 13
Capital outlay and equipment........................ 1 11 11 -
Total expenditures............c.ocoeeeiiniiiniinn. 2,195 2,194 2,111 83
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... (1,167) (82) (43) 39
Other financing sources:

Operating transfers in...............oconinnn - - - -
Total other financing SOUrces..............cc........... - - - -
Excess of revenues and other financing sources

over (under) expenditures................ccccccceo..... (1,167) (82) (43) 39
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 194 194 194 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................. 6 6 6 -
Fund balance atend of year................ccococeeenn $ (967) 3 118 $ 157 $ 39
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
. (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
JUVENILE FELONY CARE - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues: L
Intergovernmental revenue..............oo.eveveniennnnnnn. $ 1,391 $ 1,391 $ 2,079 $ 688
TOtal revenuUe. ..........c.c.ceiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiiiianinn, 1,391 1,391 2,079 688
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety
Personal services..........coooiiiiiiiiiiiiin 466 451 409 42
Materials and supplies..........coocoiiiiniii. 2 2 - 2
Charges and services..............cooveiiiinininn. 2,019 2,035 1,797 238
Capital outlay and equipment......................... - -
Total expenditures..............cccoeiviiiiiiiininnnnnn 2,487 2,488 2,206 282
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... (1,096) (1,097) (127) 970
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 1,375 1,375 1,375
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................. 47 47 47 -
Fund balance atend of year............................. 3 326 $ 325 $ 1,295 $ 870
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Revenues:

Intergovernmental revenue...........c...ccoeiiiininnnnnn.

Total revenue..................

Expenditures:
Current
General government
Judicial
Personal services...........
Materials and supplies.....

Charges and services......

LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
ADULT PROBATION GRANT - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Capital outlay and equipment.........................

Total expenditures............

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.....

Fund balance at beginning of year
Prior year encumbrances appropriated

Fund balance at end of year

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
$ 1,071 $ 1,071 $ 871 $  (200)
1,071 1,071 871 (200)
721 714 666 48
4 6 4 2
231 320 312 8
956 1,040 982 58
115 31 (111) (142)
42 42 42
79 79 79 -
$ 236 $ 152 $ 10 $ (142)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
CORRECTIONAL TREATMENT FACILITY - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue..................c.cooeninn $ 3,349 $ 3,350 $ 3,427 $ 77
Miscellaneous Revenue............ovoeveveiiiviiniennnnnn, $ -
Total reVenUe. ..ot 3,349 3,350 3,427 77
Expenditures:
Current
Public safety
Personal services.......c..ooovviiveieiciiinniannn. 2,605 2,695 2,571 124
Materials and supplies 219 320 288 32
Charges and services.............. 394 530 454 76
Capital outlay and equipment.................c.oen 9 233 232 1
Total expendituresS.............ccvveeiiriiieniniinnnn, 3,227 3,778 3,545 233
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... 122 (428) (118) 310
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 530 530 530
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................. 79 79 79 -
Fund balance atend of year............cooevvvneenneen $ 731 $ 181 $ 491 $ 310
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
COMMON PLEAS CIVIL MEDIATION - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue...................coeeeeeee, $ 116 $ 116 3 137  § 21
Totalrevenue..............cccevveeiiiiiiiiieiinninn, 116 116 137 21
Expenditures:
Current
Public safety
Personal services..........cooveeviieviniiicininn. ., 88 88 69 19
Materials and supplies..................coeoel 2 2 - 2
Charges and services..............cccceevvuninnnnn, 4 4 1 3
Capital outlay and equipment...................... 2 2 2
Total expenditures...............c.c.coeiiiivinnan..n. 96 96 72 24
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.. 20 20 65 45
Fund balance at beginning of year.................... 66 66 66 -
Fund balance atend of year.......................... $ 86 $ 86 $ 131 3 45
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
SHERRIF'S POLICING - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with|

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue...............o.coeeveein $ 1,020 $ 1,020 $ 638 § (382)
Total revenue..........c.coeuvveeceiiiiiiiniieininnn, 1,020 1,020 638 (382)
Expenditures:
Current
Public safety
Personal ServiCes.........coveveiiiiiniiiinnnn. 552 810 719 9
Materials and supplies..........c.c....ooooivinn. - - - -
Charges and services..............cooevveninnn, 175 8 1 7
Capital outlay and equipment..................... 107 20 5 15
Total expenditures.........c..cccoooiiiiiiiinininannn 834 838 725 113
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures. 186 182 (87) (269)
Fund balance at beginning of year................... (176) (176) (176)
Prior year encumbrances appropriated............. 14 14 14 -
Fund balance atend of year......................... $ 24 $ 20 $ (249) § (269)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget--
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue.................co.cceeuen.. $ 5,595 $ 5,594 $ 745 $ (4,849)
Miscellaneous Revenue..................c..oeevnene. - - 129 $ 129
Totalrevenue.....................cccoiiiiiiiiiinnn, 5,595 5,594 874 (4,720)
Expenditures:
Current
Public safety
Personal services...........ocovvevviiiincininnnn.nn, 334 334 271 63
Materials and supplies............ooceverivinnnennn., 11 14 13 1
Charges and Services..........occevvieveniiiinnn. 4,918 4,918 710 4,208
Capital outlay and equipment...................... 108 105 25 80
Total expenditures................c...c.cccvivenun.... 5,371 5,371 1,019 4,352
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.. 224 223 (145) (368)
Fund balance at beginning of year.................... (574) (574) (574)
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.............. 351 351 351 -
Fund balance atend of year.......................... $ 1 $ - $ (368) $ (368)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Revenues:
Special assessments. ...
intergovernmental revenue...........ccooceeviiennen
Miscellaneous revenue..........ccoeeevveeeeeenneeenene.

Total reVenUES.......ccccoveveviveeieseiivacsinirerennn e

Expenditures:
Current:
Capital outlay-

Debt service
Principal retirement............cccoiiniiienin
Interest and fiscal charges...........cccccceeennnen.

Total expenditures............ccceevcrevncrioenicnee .

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..

Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds of Notes........coocvieviniiiieniiiire e
Proceeds of bonds.........c.ocovviiinnieniciicccns
Operating transfers in.............cccoooviineiennnnen
Operating transfers (Out)........ccccoeniivcnininnnnns.

Total other financing sources (US€S)................
Excess of revenue and other financing sources

over (under) expenditures and other uses........

Fund balance at beginning of year......................
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................
Fund balance atend of year.......c....ccoovivvinnnnn,

Variance:
Budgeted Amounts Favorable

Original Final Actual {Unfavorable)

$ - - $ 433 $ 433
68,600 68,600 5,843 (62,757)
68,600 68,600 6,276 (62,324)

49,776 64,629 37,345 27,284

- 10,740 10,740 -

- 142 80 62

49,776 75,511 48,165 27,346
18,824 (6,911) (41,889) (34,978)

- - 15,700 15,700

- - 1,050 1,050

- - 4,149 4,149

(16,405) (1,942) (252) 1,690

(16,405) (1,942) 20,647 22,589
2,419 (8,853) (21,242) (12,389)
28,424 28,424 28,424 -
9,017 9,017 9,017 -
$ 39,860 28,588 $ 16,199 3 (12,389)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
PERMANENT ZOO IMPROVEMENT - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
I G TS $ 5,820 $ 5,820 $ 5,856 $ 36
Miscellaneous reVEeNUE..........cccevviveeerieeeiiiee e - - 2 2
Total revenUEeS.......c..cccoiveiieciiieere e 5,820 5,820 5,858 38
Expenditures:
Current:
Capital outlay- 5,820 5,855 5,855
Construction contracts...........coccevveveveiiencniiereieen 0
Total expenditlures...........oceeeeeeeieceiriineiireseenireein 5,820 5,855 5,855 0
Excess revenues over (under) expenditures................... 0 (35) 3 38
Fund balance at beginning of year..........c.cccccviiiiiinnn, 45 45 45 0
Fund balance (deficit) at end of year.........c..ccoovevieinnene $ 45 $ 10 $ 48 $ 38
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

BOND RETIREMENT-DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
TAXES.eeee ettt sre e srae e $ 5,347 $ 5347 $ 5,259 $ (88)
Special assessments...........coiviviiiieiinn 189 189 1,823 1,634
Miscellaneous revenue..............cocuveeeevveees.n 3,993 3,993 9,302 5,309
Total revenues............cccccvvvveiveecvinenennn. 9,529 9,529 16,384 6,855
Expenditures:
Current:
Debt Service-
Principal retirement.............cccccevveiiiiennnne 12,274 18,114 12,055 6,059
Interest and fiscal charges....................... 5,781 6,157 5,989 168
Total expenditures.........ccoeeeeeecvveivrcinnnesn. 18,055 24,271 18,044 6,227
Excess revenues over (under) expenditures.. (8,526) (14,742) (1,660) 13,082
Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds of notes........ccocccvveiiiiiiie - - - -
Proceeds of bonds........c.cccoeiceiiiiiiiieinen. - - 1,790 1,790
Operating transfers in..........oocooiieivieinninns 7,790 7,790 7,128 (662)
Operating transfers (Out)........cc.cccccceviivieeenennns (1,000) (326) 326
Total other financing sources (uses)............ 6,790 7,464 8,918 1,454
Excess of revenue and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and other uses. ... (1,736) (7,278) 7,258 14,536
Fund balance at beginning of year.................. 5,471 5,471 5,471 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated............ - - - -
Fund balance at end of year.................cc.c..... $ 3735 $ (1.807) $§ 12,729 $ 14,536
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
December 31, 2002

Enterprise Funds- Enterprise funds account for
operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises. The intent of Lucas
County is that the costs of providing services to the general
public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered
primarily through user charges. The following are the Enter-
prise funds which Lucas County operates:

Sanitary Engineer- To account for the administrative
costs of operating the water supply system, wastewater
treatment system, and sewer system.

Water Supply System- To account for the distribution of
treated water to individuals and commercial users of Lucas
County.

Wastewater Treatment- To account for wastewater
treatment services provided to the Sanitary Engineer, Cities
of Maumee and Sylvania, Village of Waterville, Sylvania
Township and other portions of Lucas County and portions
of Wood County.

Sewer System- To account for sanitary sewer services
provided to individuals and commercial users in Lucas
County and portions of Wood County.

Solid Waste- To account for the administration of solid
waste disposal county-wide.

Parking Facilities- To account for operation of parking
facilities.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM-ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Operations revenues:
Charges for Services.............cccocceeeiiiaain, $ 745 § 745 $ 826 3 81
Miscellaneous...........ccovvriivreiiiiiiinnnn 710 710 579 (131)
Total operating revenues...................... 1,455 1,455 1,405 (50)
Operating expenses:
Personal services........c.ocoeviiiiiinnnnn - - - -
Materials and supplies............c.c...ooooe 30 30 11 19
Contract services...........c.coooeiiiiiiinn 565 763 686 77
Capital outlay and equipment................ - - - -
Miscellaneous. .......cooeveveiiiiiiiiiens - - - -
Total operating expenss........................ 595 793 697 96
Operating income (10SS)................ooveee 860 662 708 46
Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Principal retirement.............................. (227) (245) (229) 16
Interest and fiscal charges................... (373) (345) (312) 33
Total nonoperating revenues (expense).... (600) (590) (541) 49
Income (loss) before operating transfers... 260 72 167 95
Transferin........ocooeiniiii - - (95) 95
Net income (I0SS)......ccoveveeerviiiiiian 260 72 72 -
Net assets at beginningof year.................. 552 552 552 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated......... 113 113 113 -
Net assets atend of year.......................... $§ 925 $§ 737 $ 737 § -
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
WASTEWATER TREATMENT-ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

(Amounts in 000's)

Operations revenues:

Charges for services..............................

Miscellaneous.........................ccocev
Total operating revenues......................
Operating expenses:
Personal services...............................
Materials and supplies........... TR
Contract services....................cocoeeini
Capital outlay and equipment................
Miscellaneous........................o.coo
Total operating expense......................
Operating income (108S).......................
Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Principal retirement............................
Interest and fiscal charges..................
Total nonoperating revenues (expense)..
Income (loss) before operating transfers..
Transferin........cocoooooiiiiii i,
Netincome (loss)..............coveeiiinn,
Net assets at beginning of year.................

Prior year encumbrances appropriated........
Net assetsatend of year.........................

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 4,892 $ 4,002 $ 4,506 $ 414
- 800 - (800)
4,892 4,892 4,506 (386)
1,141 1,141 1,080 61
429 446 423 23
1,047 1,876 1,519 357
85 41 31 10
2,702 3,504 3,053 451
2,190 1,388 1,453 65
(705) (750) (745) 5
{700) (660) (657) 3
(1,405) (1,410) (1,402) 8
785 (22) 51 73
785 (22) 51 73
2,498 2,498 2,498 -
173 173 173 -
$ 3,456 $ 2,649 $ 2,722 $ 73
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
SEWER SYSTEM-ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Operations revenues:
Charges for services..................c.oeeeeon. $ 375 $ 375 $ 632 § 257
Miscellaneous. ........ceeeeiiiiiiiiii s 1,131 1,131 1,142 11
Total operating revenues..................... 1,506 1,506 1,774 268
Operating expenses:
Personal ServiCes...........covveiiiineninn. - - - -
Materials and supplies........................ 10 10 6 4
Contract services.............cooovviiiiiininn 607 702 532 170
Capital outlay and equipment............... - - - -
Miscellaneous..............cooeviiiiiiinnnn, - 3 - 3
Total operating expense...................... 617 715 538 177
Operating income (10SS)...........ccocvevnen 889 791 1,236 445
Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Principal retirement............................ (1,033) (1,106) (422) 684
Interest and fiscal charges.................. (248) (206) (203) 3
Total nonoperating revenues (expense).. (1,281) (1,312) (625) 687
Income (loss) before operating transfers. (392) (521) 611 1,132
Transferin......covvveeeiiii - - - -
Net income (108S)......ccvvvevininiain, (392) (521) 611 1,132
Net assets at beginning of year................ 2,311 2,311 2,311 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated....... 62 62 62 -
Net assetsatendof year........................ $ 1,981 $ 1,852 $ 2,984 3 1,132
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Sanitary Solid Parking Total Other
Engineer Waste Facilities Enterprise Funds
ASSETS
Current assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents...................c..coeeennn $ 168 $ 88 $ 106 $ 362
Pooled investments..........cocovieeiiiiiiiiii 1,939 1,020 1,218 4177
Receivables (net of allowances for
uncollectables)
ACCOUNES. ..ottt 1,555 128 25 1,708
Total current @ssets......co.coooveiiiiciiiii i 3,662 1,236 1,349 6,247
Noncurrent assets-capital assets:
Land......ooooi 153 - - 153
Buildings, structures, and improvements............... 3,006 - - 3,006
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment.............................. 1,621 574 - 2,195
Less accumulated depreciation.............c.coocoeeiinn (2,194) (323) - (2,517)
Total @ssets.......ovvvviiiiieiii $§ 6,248 $ 1,487 $ 1,349 $ 9,084
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable............coooeiiviii i 44 80 - 124
Accrued wages and benefits................co 437 57 - 494
Due to other funds..............ccoooviii i, 1 9 - 10
Current portion of long-term debt............................. 30 - - 30
Total current liabilities................coovviviei . 512 146 - 658
Noncurrent liablities:
OWDA loans payable...........coooiiiiiiiiini e, 1,334 - - 1,334
Total noncurrent liabilities................oooviiiii, 1,334 - - 1,334
Total liabilities...........oooveiiiiiii 1,846 146 - 1,992
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt.......... 1,222 251 1,473
Unrestricted. ..o 3,180 1,090 1,349 5,619
Total net assets.......ooiiiii 4,402 1,341 1,349 7,092
Total liabilities and net assets..........................oo, $ 6,248 $ 1,487 $ 1,349 $ 9,084
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Sanitary Solid Parking
Engineer Waste Facilities Total
Operating revenues:
Charges for Services.........ccccoevviovvviicvanni.n. $ 4,216 $ 1,942 $ 373 $ 6,531
Miscellaneous..........c.ooccvviviiviiiniiiicniiinnnnn, 62 - - 62
Total operating revenues.................... 4,278 1,942 373 6,593
Operating expenses:
Personal services..........cooceeeeiievieniennnnnn, 2,868 494 - 3,362
Contract services.........ooovivvveveericnnnnnnn. 265 1,143 100 1,508
Materials and supplies.........cccccccevvvrnnnnn, 327 17 - 344
Miscellaneous...........ccoccvivivieivviiiiiee e - 6 - 6
Heat, light and power............cc.cccceinnn. 19 - - 19
Depreciation........ccccovvvviieiiceiiiiiiiinieenn, 189 94 - 283
Total operating expenses.................... 3,668 1,754 100 5,522
Operating income .............coceviveinineeeenne. 610 188 273 1,071
Nonoperating revenues (expenses): -
Interest and fiscal charges............c.......... (83) - - (83)
Increase innetassets................oevvveennnn. 527 188 273 988
Net assets at beginning of year............ 3,875 1,153 1,076 6,104
Net assetsatendof year....................oovevennnnn $ 4,402 $ 1,341 $ 1,349 $ 7,002
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Sanitary Solid Parking
Engineer Waste Facilities Total
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers...........c.covevvvviviireieienns $ 4,134 $ 2,036 $ 348 $ 6,518
Cash paid to suppliers.......c..cocvcviriciciieiiriceniecesee e (617) (1,156) (135) (1,908)
Cash paid to employees........c.covevvveccriniicnire e (2,861) (504) - (3,365)
Net cash provided by
operating activities........cccc.viiii 656 376 213 1,245
Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities:
Principal payments - OWDA loans.........cc.c.c....... (59) - - (59)
Purchase of fixed assets..........cc.ccooen i (95) - - (95)
Interest paid.......cccocovee i (83) - - (83)
Net cash used in capital and
related financing activities..........cc.cocecvniennnens (237) - (237)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales of investments.................... 625 90 469 1,184
Payments for investments.............ccecoeieenn (1,327) (574) (873) (2,774)
Net cash used in investing
ACHVIIES. ...t (702) (484) (404) (1,590)
Netincrease in cash...........coeevniviiniiniiininnnne (283) (108) (191) (582)
Cash and cash equivalents, January 1................. 451 196 297 944
Cash and cash equivalents, December 31............. $ 168 $ 88 $ 106 $ 362

— 139 —



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided
by Operating Activities

Sanitary Solid Parking
_Engineer Waste Facilities Total
Operating iINCOME ......ocerviirireieee e e $ 610 $ 188 $ 273 $ 1,071
Adjustments to reconcile operating
income to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation exXpense..........cccoooceciiiniie e 189 94 - 283
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Accounts receivable.............cci (144) 94 (25) (75)
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable..........ccvviiniii (6) 3 (35) (38)
Accrued wages and benefits............cc 7 (10) - (3)
Due to other funds...........ccoooii - 7 - 7
Total adjustments............ccooii 46 188 (60) 174
Net cash provided by
operating activities............cocoveveereneiiin $ 656 $ 376 $ 213 $ 1,245
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
SANITARY ENGINEER-ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Operations revenues:

Charges for services.............c.cocoviiiininn,
Miscellaneous.........c...ooevviiiiiiieinnnnn,

Total operating revenues........................

Operating expenses:

Personal services.............ccooveviiiiineinn..

Materials and supplies................ocoii,
Contract services...............cooeviiiinin,
Capital outlay and equipment.................

Miscellaneous...............c.c.o
Total operating expense........................

Operating income (1088).............cc..oo..l.

Non-operating revenues (expenses):

Principal retirement...............................
Interest and fiscal charges.....................

Total nonoperating revenues (expense)....
Income (loss) before operating transfers...
Transferin.......c.cccovviiiiiii
Net income (I0SS)........cocovvvininiiinne,
Net assets at beginning of year...................

Prior year encumbrances appropriated..........
Net assets atend of year...........................

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget-

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 3,320 § 3,395 $ 4,030 $ 635
120 45 106 61
3,440 3,440 4,136 696
2,737 2,943 2,861 82
450 472 420 52
607 476 382 94
171 131 120 11
3,965 4,022 3,783 239
(525) (582) 353 935
(56) (59) (59) -
(87) (83) (83) -
(143) (142) (142) -
(668) (724) 211 935
(668) (724) 211 935
1,515 1,515 1,515 -
172 172 172 -
$ 1,019 §& 963 $ 1,898 $ 935

— 141 —



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
SOLID WASTE-ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Operations revenues:
Charges for services.............c...ocoevenin. $ 1,922 $ 1,922 $ 2,037 $ 115
Miscellaneous. ..........c.coveiiiiviniiiniannn, - - - -

Total operating revenues...................... 1,922 1,922 2,037 115
Operating expenses:
Personal services..........c..occocviviiiinnnnn 609 604 505 99
Materials and supplies......................... 23 33 19 14
Contract services............ocoevviiiicinnnn. 1,378 1,352 1,282 70
Capital outlay and equipment................ 162 182 175 7
Miscellaneous............c.coevveiiniiiiiienn.. - - 6 (6)
Total operating expense....................... 2,172 2,171 1,987 184
Operating income (l0SS)............ccccevenen. (250) (249) 50 299

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Principal retirement............................. - - - -
Interest and fiscal charges................... - - - -

Total nonoperating revenues (expense).. - - - -

Income (loss) before operating transfers.. (250) (249) 50 299
Transferin.......ccoevii i - - - -

Net income (10SS)........coveeviiieninnnn.. (250) (249) 50 299
Net assets at beginning of year................. 308 308 308 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated........ 423 423 423 -
Net assets atend of year......................... $ 481 $ 482 $ 781 $ 299
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
PARKING FACILITIES-ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Operations revenues:
Charges for services.............o.co.ooeunen.. $ 290 $ 200 $ 347 $ 57
Miscellaneous.................oo - - - -

Total operating revenues..................... 290 290 347 57

Operating expenses:
Personal services..............occvcvveeiini. - - - -

Materials and supplies....................... 10 10 - 10
Contract Services............cooeviiveeninnn.n. 255 255 144 111
Capital outlay and equipment............... 10 10 - 10
Miscellaneous................ccoeeenininnn. - - - -

Total operating expense..................... 275 275 144 131
Operating income (10SS)..............c........ 15 15 203 188

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Principal retirement........................... - - - -
Interest and fiscal charges.................. - - - -

Total nonoperating revenues (expense).. - - - -

Income (loss) before operating transfers.. 15 15 203 188
Transferin.........cooooooiii i - - - -

Netincome (I0SS)........ccooveiiiiiiiiinn, 15 15 203 188
Net assets at beginning of year................. 1,107 1,107 1,107 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated........ 4 4 4 -
Net assets atend of year......................... $ 1,126 $ 1,126 $ 1,314 $ 188
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
December 31, 2002

Internal Service Funds- Internal Service funds account
for the financing of goods or services provided by one
department or agency to other departments or agencies of
the governmental unit, or to other governmental units on
a cost-reimbursement basis. The following are the
Internal Service funds which Lucas County operates:

Central Supplies- To account for supplies, mailing and
copying services provided to various County departments
and other governmental units. Users are billed for costs
incurred.

Vehicle Maintenance- To account for vehicle
maintenance services provided to various County
departments and other governmental units. Users are
billed for costs incurred.

County-City Telephone- To account for inter-
departmental charges for the use of the telephone system.
Users are billed for costs incurred.

Self-Funded Health Insurance - To account for claims
and administration of the health insurance program for
covered County employees and eligible dependents.
County departments are billed according to the
employee’s family or marital status.
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Self-Funded Dental Insurance- To account for claims
and administration of the dental insurance program for
covered County employees and eligible dependents.
County departments are billed according to the
employee’s family or marital status.

Centralized Drug Testing- To account for drug testing
charges incurred by the jail and other criminal justice
system departments.

Risk Retention Insurance- To account for claims and
administration of liability insurance for county
departments. The departments are billed based on the
cost of insurance policies.

Self-Funded Workers’ Compensation- To account for
claims and administration of workers’ compensation for
county departments. The departments are billed based on
their portion of total covered payroll and usage of the
program.



Combining Chart of Operating Revenues and
Expenses

Internal Service Funds

Self-Funded Health

Risk Retention Ins.

Self-Funded Workers Comp.

Self-Funded Dental

All Other Funds

Millions

¥ T T T T

0 5 10 15 20 25
Year Ended December 31,2002

B Total Operating Expenses M Total Operating Revenues I
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Self-
Vehicle County- Funded
Central Mainten- City Health
Supplies ance Telephone Insurance
Assets:
Current assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents..................... $ 7 $ 5 $ 46 3 801
Pooled investments..........c.ccccceeeenen. 81 53 534 9,235
Accounts receivable.... 1 3 3 5
Due from other funds............c.o....... 21 38 110 -
Inventory: materials and supplies.............ccc...... 96 21 - -
Total current assels..........ccoocvvvevevecvveieeneenan, 206 120 693 10,041
Noncurrent assets-capital assets
Land...ceee e - 83 - -
Buildings, structures and
HNPIOVEMENTS.....oiiniiiiienr e, - 30 - -
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 159 173 839 22
Less: accumulated depreciation....... (81) (184) (824) (17)
Total noncurent assets.............ccoeeceinnnnnn. 78 102 15 5
Total assets.......cccovveeeeeeceinieiaieannn. 284 222 708 10,046
Liabilities:
Current liabilities-
Accounts Payable...........c.occooviiiiiiiii 16 34 245 258
Accrued wages and benefits..........cc..ceeenenennen. 6 48 20 17
Due to other funds 1 - - 1
Claims payable-current............ccocoeeevvvvveiinnneennns - - - 1,175
Total current liabilities..............cccccvvevvvreeenns 23 82 265 1,451
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Claims payable-noncurrent..............cccoceevvveeenen. - - - -
Obligations under capital leases................ccc..... 12 - - -
Total noncurrent liabilities.................... 12 - - -
Total Habilities..........c.c.ccccovvecviviinnceicnniennnnn. 35 82 265 1,451
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt..... 65 102 15 5
Unrestricted. ......coeovvieriiincise e e eee e, 184 38 428 8,590
Total net assets........occeeevveevcninneniennnnn, $ 249 $ 140 $ 443 $ 8,595
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Self- Self-
Centralized Risk Funded Funded
Drug Retention Workers' Dental
Testing Insurance Comp. Insurance Total

$ 11 $ 685 $ 1,205 $ 60 2,820
126 7,895 13,892 694 32,510

- . - - 12

20 - - - 189

- - - - 117

157 8,580 15,097 754 35,648

- - - - 83

- - - - 30

- - 10 - 1,203
- - (10) - (1.116)

- - - - 200

157 8,580 15,097 754 35,848

6 42 5 46 652

30 34 25 - 180

- - - - 2

- - 2,072 294 3,541

36 76 2,102 340 4,375

- - 3,481 - 3,481

- - - - 12

- - 3,481 - 3,493

36 76 5,583 340 7,868

- - - - 187

121 8,504 9,514 414 27,793

$ 121 $ 8,504 $ 9,514 $ 414 27,980
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Self-
Vehicle County- Funded
Central Mainten- City Health
Supplies ance Telephone Insurance
Operating revenues:
Charges fOr SEIVICE........covev i $ 829 $ 592 $ 1,697 $ 23,431
MiSCEIANBOUS. ... ..ccuveerererircerceerreere et saressiesaseess - 18 - 82
Total operating revenues...........cccooveeieiiniesienneennns 829 610 1,697 23,513
Operating expenses:
Personal services.... 69 325 136 164
Contract services.........ccevenenns 62 59 1,607 430
Materials and supplies... 725 213 1 24
DEPreCiation........cooivvireriiciriieieee et 25 54 42 4
Miscellaneous. ... - - 7 -
Employee medical benefits...........c.cooovniniinneicnn - - - 19,818
Total operating @Xpenses..........c..ooveviviriiineennsiensons 881 651 1,793 20,440
Operating inCoOme (I08S)......cccoiiimiiricniiiniennccenne (52) (41) (96) 3,073
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
INTErest INCOME.....oeviiiiiiiiiicciccn e - - - 147
Interest and fiscal charges........ccccccveiiiiiines QD] - - -
Total nonoperating revenues
and (EXPENSES)..c..ccciiiiiiiiiiirt et 1) - - 147
Change in net assets .........ococvvmviiiiininin e, (53) (41) (96) 3,220
Operating transfers in 189 - - -
Net assets at
beginning Of Year.........coiviiii 113 181 539 5,375
Net assets at
end Of YEAT.....cciiiiiiri e $249 $140 $443 $8,595
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Self- Self-
Centralized Risk Funded Funded
Drug Retention Workers' Dental
Testing Insurance Comp. Insurance Total

$ 474 $ 2,041 $ 443 $ 2,100 $ 31,607
- - - - 100

474 2,041 443 2,100 31,707

263 204 154 - 1,315

23 238 62 49 2,530

99 5 4 - 1,071

- - - - 125

2 5 - - 14

- 787 1,215 1,993 23,8183

387 1,239 1,435 2,042 28,868

87 802 (992) 58 2,839

- - - - 147
- - - : ()

- - - - 146

87 802 (992) 58 2,985

- - - - 189

34 7,702 10,506 356 24,806

$121 $8,504 $9,514 $414 $27,980
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Self-
Vehicle County- Funded
Central Mainten- City Health
Supplies ance Telephone Insurance
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from CUSIOMEIS........cococecuverireererereeerenns $ 825 $ 602 $ 1,693 $ 23,508
Cash paid 1o suUppliers...........ocevvivimiin e (763) (262) (1,382) (20,881)
Cash paid to employees.........ccouvnivieeiciiciiiiin, (67) (332) (126) {160)
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities.............ccoovincvi (5) 8 185 2,467
Cash flows from non capital
financing activities:
Operating transfers in...............ccooviiiiin 189 - -
Net cash provided by non-capital
financing activities...........coci 189 - - -
Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities:
Purchase of capital assets.......cccoevieiiiiiiiiiieee, (90) (55) (7) -
Interest and fiscal Charges........cccvvvviiciiiiiinnneis (1) - - -
Proceeds of capital lease transaction..............cc....o.. (6) - - -
Net cash used in capital and
related financing activities.............ccccovnniienne, (97) (55) (7) -
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of investments..........c...cceeniinnnn - 107 75 2,034
Payments for investments...........ccvveeeiiiiiiiiine, (80) (83) (315) (5,832)
Interest received......coovv e - - - 147
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities....... (80) 24 (240) (3,651)
Net increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents............cccociiiniiniiiin e, 7 (23) (62) (1,184)
Cash and cash equivalents, January 1..........ccccoeeenin. 0 28 108 1,985
Cash and cash equivalents, December 31............... $ 7 $ 5 $ 46 $ 801
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Self- Self-
Centralized Risk Funded Funded
Drug Retention Workers' Dental
Testing Insurance Comp. Insurance Total

$ 478 $ 2,041 $ 443 $ 2,460 $ 32,050
(194) (1,577) (591) (2,071) (27,721)
(269) (185) (151) - {(1,290)
15 279 (299) 389 3,039
- - - - 189
- - - - 189
- - - - (152)
- - - - (1)
- : - - (6)
- - - - (159)
58 4,709 9,484 - 16,467
(95) (6,523) (12,098) (427) (25,453)
- - - - 147
(37) (1,814) (2,614) (427) (8,839)
(22) (1,535) (2,913) (38) (5,770)
33 2,220 4,118 98 8,590
$ 11 $ 685 $ 1,205 $ 60 $ 2,820
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS-(continued)

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

(Amounts in 000's)

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided
by (Used in) Operating Activities

Self-
Vehicle County- Funded
Central Mainten- City Health
Supplies ance Telephone Insurance
Operating INCOME (10S8)....ovvirrerrriinrireiiss e $ (52) $ (41) $ (96) $ 3,073
Adjustments to reconcile operating
income (loss) to net cash provided
by operating activities:
DePreciation EXPENSE. ....cov ittt 25 54 42 4
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:

ACCOUNES TECEIVADIE .vveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1 2) (2) (5)
Due from other funds ... (4) (8) 2) -
N2 (015 7O OO RO PP PR PP P PR VR PP PSP P PR REP S PSP 20 - - -
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:

ACCOUNS PAYADIE.....oovirirtitiiie i 3 1 231 (250)

Due to other funds ... 1 - - (359)

Accrued wages and benefits ... 1 (6) 12 4

Total AdJUSIMENES ...oovireiiiiieie e 47 49 281 (606)
Net cash provided by (used in)
OPErating ACHVIIES «..c.eiueiiiii $ (5 $ 8 3 185 $ 2467

Noncash capital and related financing activities:

Central Supplies fund had a capital lease obligation remaining of $12 thousand.
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Self- Self-

Centralized Risk Funded ) Funded
Drug Retention Workers' Dental
Testing Insurance Comp. Insurance Total

$ 87 $ 802 $ (992) $ 58 $ 2,839

- - - - 125

- - . - ®)

4 - - 360 350

- - - - 20

(70) (542) 690 (29) 44

- - - - (358)

(6) 19 3 - 27

(72) (523) 693 331 200

$ 15 $ 279 $ (299) $ 389 $ 3,039
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
CENTRAL SUPPLIES-INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Operations revenues:

Charges for services....................cooeeenin. $ 792 $ 792 $ 826 $ 34
Miscellaneous.........cccoeviiiiiiiiiiieienn. - - - -

Total operating revenues....................... 792 792 826 34
Operating expenses:

Personal Services..............coviivnviinennnn. 68 70 69 1

Materials and supplies..................oeei. 749 770 713 57

Contract Services.........coevvviviiiiiiinennn, 128 111 92 19

Capital outlay and equipment................. 8 2 2 -

Miscellaneous ... - - - -
Claim payments..............ccoeviiiiiennn - - - -
Employee medical benefits..................... - - - -

Total operating expense......................... 953 953 876 77

Operating income (10SS)...........cccceovnenen... (161) (161) (50) 111

Non-operating revenues:
Interestincome................cococvviiiniinnnn.. - - - -

Total nonoperating revenues (expense).... - - - -

Income (loss) before operating transfers... (161) (161) (50) 111
Operating transferin................... . 160 160 100 -

Changeinnetassets ..................cce...o... 1 1) 50 51
Net assets at beginning of year .................. (32) (32) (32) -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.......... 33 33 33 -
Net assets atend of year........................... $ - $ - $ 51 $ 51
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE-INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Operations revenues:
Charges for Services....................o....... $ 758 $ 758 $ 584 $ (174)
Miscellaneous.............cooovviiiin. 8 8 18 10
Total operating revenues..................... 766 766 602 (164)
Operating expenses: -
Personal services...........ccovvvenieininnn. 332 331 321 10
Materials and supplies........................ 238 188 179 9
Contract services..............ooeeeiivennn. 208 257 226 31
Capital outlay and equipment............... 14 15 15 -
Miscellaneous.............ccc.coeviviiiinnn. - - - -
Claim payments......c......cocoivviininnn - - - -
Employee medical benefits.................. - - - -
Total operating expense...................... 792 791 741 50
Operating income (l0ss)............c..ooceee. (26) (25) (139) (114)
Non-operating revenues:
Interest inComMe...........c..occevvviinine. - - - -
Total nonoperating revenues............... - - - -
Income (loss) before operating transfers.. (26) (25) (139) (114)
Operating transferin............................ - - - -
Changeinnetassets......................... (26) (25) (139) (114)
Net assets at beginning of year................ 35 35 35 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated....... 70 70 70 -
Net assets atend of year........................ $ 79 $ 80 $ (34 $ (114)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
COUNTY-CITY TELEPHONE-INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

(Amounts in 000's)

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget-

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Operations revenues:
Charges for services...............c........... $ 1,856 $ 1,856 $ 1,693 $ (163)
Miscellaneous...........coooeiiiiiiiiiiiinn. - - - -
Total operating revenues..................... 1,856 1,856 1,693 (163)
Operating expenses:
Personal services.................ccoeene. 127 127 124 3
Materials and supplies........................ 1 1 1 -
Contract services..............cooceeiiin.. 1,812 1,809 1,438 371
Capital outtay and equipment............... 1 4 3 1
Miscellaneous .............ccoceeiiinn. - 0
Claim payments............c.cociviiiiinnnn - - - -
Employee medical benefits.................. - - - -
Total operating expense...................... 1,941 1,941 1,566 375
Operating income (10SS)............ccovvvunne (85) (85) 127 212
Non-operating revenues:
Interest income...............c.ccvviviieiin., - - - -
Total nonoperating revenues............... - - - -
Income (loss) before operating transfers.. (85) (85) 127 212
Operating transferin............................ - - - -
Changeinnetassets.......................... (85) (85) 127 212
Net assets at beginning of year................ 305 305 305 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated....... 97 97 97 -
Net assetsatend of year ....................... $ 317 $ 317 $ 529 $ 212
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
SELF-FUNDED HEALTH INSURANCE-INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Operations revenues:
Charges for services...........ccoocovveiniinane. $24,701 $ 24,701 $ 23427 $ (1,274)
Miscellaneous...........oocoviiiiiniiinne 400 200 83 (117)
Total operating revenues...................... 25,101 24,901 23,510 (1,391)
Operating expenses:
Personal services...........ccoovviiiiniiin. 159 163 160 3
Materials and supplies......................... 22 22 20 2
Contract services..........cooovvniniiinnn, 888 940 894 46
Capital outlay and equipment................ - 7 7 -
Miscellaneous..........cccoeviiiiiininiinnan.. - - - -
Claim payments..........cooeviinenieeinnen. - - - -
Employee medical benefit.................... 28,661 28,661 28,395 266
Total operating expense....................... 29,730 29,793 29,476 317
Operating income (10SS).........covvvveviennen. (4,629) (4,892) (5,966) (1,074)
Non-operating revenues:
Interestincome......................ccoeiein. - 200 147 (53)
Total nonoperating revenues................ - 200 147 (53)
Income (loss) before operating transfers.. (4,629) (4,692) (5,819) (1,127)
Operating transferin.................cooooviiinn - - - -
Changeinnetassets.................oo et (4,629) (4,692) (5,819) (1,127)
Net assets at beginning of year................. 2,180 2,180 2,180 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated........ 5,241 5,241 5,241 -
Net assets atend ofyear......................... $ 2,792 $ 2,729 $ 1,602 $ (1,127)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

CENTRALIZED DRUG TESTING-INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

(Amounts in 000's)

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget-

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Operations revenues:
Charges for Services....................ccoeveee. $ 509 $ 509 $ 477 $ (32)
MisSCEllan oUS......cvveeieerieiieiaeiees - - - -
Total operating revenues...................... 509 509 477 (32)
Operating expenses:
Personal ServiCes..........c..cocvvveviiinneninn 277 277 269 8
Materials and supplies......................... 226 220 198 22
Contract ServiCes..........ooevviiiiiiniinnnn, 27 32 24 8
Capital outlay and equipment................. 4 4 - 4
Miscellaneous..........cc...ccoo - -
Claim payments...........oocooiviiiiniennnn - - - -
Employee medical benefit..................... - - - -
Total operating expense........................ 534 533 491 42
Operating income (108S)...........ccovvveennnn. (25) (24) (14) 10
Non-operating revenues:
Interest inCoOmMe...........cceeeevininiiiinannnn. - - - -
Total nonoperating revenues (expense)... - - - -
Income (loss) before operating transfers.. (25) (24) (14) 10
Operating transferin.................c.o.e - - - -
Change innet assets ................ccc.o.o.e. (25) (24) (14) 10
Net assets at beginning of year.................. 95 95 95 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated......... 27 27 27 -
Net assets atend of year.......................... $ 97 $ 98 $ 108 $ 10
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
RISK RETENTION INSURANCE-INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Operations revenues:
Charges for services.............ooceevevivnnnnen. $ 1,900 $ 1,900 $ 2,041 $ 141
Miscellaneous..............coociiic e, - - - -

Total operating revenues...................... 1,900 1,900 2,041 141
Operating expenses:

Personal services............cooevviniennn, 191 191 185 6

Materials and supplies......................... 8 8 6 2

Contract services...........cocoviveienniiiiinnn 958 958 844 114

Capital outlay and equipment................. 5 5 - 5

Miscellaneous ....................cc - -
Claim payments.......c.coooooiiiiiicniinnn, -
Employee medical benefit..................... 1,004 1,004 805 199

Total operating expense....................... 2,166 2,166 1,840 326
Operating income (10SS).........coccvevienen. (266) (266) 201 467

Non-operating revenues:
Interestincome...............cccocecviiiinn. - - - -

Total nonoperating revenues (expense)... - - - -

Income (loss) before operating transfers.. (266) (266) 201 467

Operating transferin..............ccooeeiinnnn. - - - -

Changeinnetassets.......................... (266) (266) 201 467
Net assets at beginning of year.................. 8,287 8,287 8,287 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated........ 13 13 13 -
Net assets atendof year.......................... $ 8,034 $ 8,034 $ 8,501 $ 467
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

SELF FUNDED WORKERS COMP.-INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Operations revenues:
Charges for services..............coocoinennn,
Miscellaneous ...,

Total operating revenues ......................

Operating expenses:
Personal services...........coooiviiiiiiiannnn.
Materials and supplies.........................
Contract services..............cooeviiiinni.
Capital outlay and equipment.................
Miscellaneous ............cocoiiiiiiiiiiiiinn.
Claim payment ..........coooiiiiiiiiiiiinen
Employee medical benefit ....................

Total operating expense...............c........

Operating income (10SS)..........cccovveeennen.

Non-operating revenues:
Interestincome............ccccevvviinieininnan,

Total nonoperating revenues.................

Income (loss) before operating transfers ..
Operating transferin..................co.
Changeinnetassets...................c.o...

Net assets at beginningof year ..................
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.........

Net assetsatend of year...........................

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 2,200 $ 2,200 $ 443 $ (1,757)
2,200 2,200 443 {1,757)
157 157 150 7
2 2 1 1
126 126 67 59
11 11 5 6
2,200 2,200 524 1,676
2,496 2,496 747 1,749
(296) (296) (304) (8)
(296) (296) (304) (8)
(296) (296) (304) (8)
15,388 15,388 15,388 -
7 7 7 -
$ 15,099 $ 15,099 $ 15,091 $ (8)

- 160 —



Operations revenues:
Charges for services....

Miscellaneous.............

LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
SELF-FUNDED DENTAL INSURANCE-INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

(Amounts in 000's)

Total operating revenues......................

Operating expenses:
Personal services......
Materials and supplies

Contract ServiCes........cooovviiiiiinnnins.

Capital outlay and equipment................

Miscellaneous ..........
Claim payment .........

Employee medical benefit ...................

Total operating expense.......................

Operating income (1088)..............oooooue.

Non-operating revenues:

Interest income.........

Total nonoperating revenues (expense)...

Income (loss) before operating transfers..

Operating transferin......

Change in net assets..

Net assets at beginningof year..................

Prior year encumbrances
Net assets at end of year

appropriated........

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget-

Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 2,235 $ 2,236 $ 2,099 $ (137)
2,235 2,236 2,099 (137)
84 84 83 1
2,324 2,324 2,294 30
2,408 2,408 2,377 31
(173) (172) (278) (106)
(173) (172) (278) (106)
(173) (172) (278) (106)

91 91 91 -

273 273 273 -
$ 191 $§ 192 $ 86 $ (106)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
AGENCY FUNDS
December 31, 2002

Agency Funds- Agency funds maintain assets held by
-Lucas County as an agent for individuals, private
organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds.
The following are the Agency funds which Lucas County
maintains:

Payroll Fund- To maintain and account for the
accumutation of payroll withholdings until payment is
remitted to third parties.

Real Estate Fund, General Personal Fund, Estate
Tax Fund and Hotel Lodging Tax Fund- These various
and separate funds maintain and account for the accu-
mulation and disbursement of taxes for: real property,
intangible property, estate tax and hotel lodging tax.

Local Government Fund- To maintain and account for
the accumulation and disbursement of state revenue
sharing monies.

Auto License Fund- To maintain and account for the
accumulation and disbursement of automobile license and
registration fee collections.

Gasoline Tax Fund- To maintain and account for the
accumulation and disbursement of gasoline tax collections.

Trailer Tax Fund- To maintain and account for the
accumulation and disbursement of mobile home tax
collections.

Clerk of Courts, Common Pleas Court, Common
Pleas Court-Probate, Child Support Enforcement
Agency, Juvenile Court, Sheriff, Children Services,
and Prosecutor: These various and separate funds
maintain and account for: court fees, alimonies, child
support, restitution, boarding home fees, donations, funds
held in escrow and other similar resources and uses.
These funds are held outside of the County treasury.

Subdivision Advance Fund- To maintain and account
for tax advance distributions to subdivisions within Lucas
County.

Undivided Interest Fund- To maintain and account for
the accumulation and disbursement of the County
investment earnings.

Tax Installment Payment Plan (T.I.P.P.) Fund- To
account for real estate taxes paid on an installment basis
until they can be applied to a current tax bill.

Family and Children Council - To process the
accounting transactions as the administrative agent of the
council.

Other Agency Funds- To maintain and account for
resources and uses for: taxes, research, deposits, licenses
and estate. Other Agency funds include:

Payment in Lieu of Taxes
Computer Legal Research
Grain Tax

Cigarette Licenses
Escheated Estates

Law Library

Coroner Escrow

Advance Fund

When compared to combined Agency funds, Other
Agency funds comprise less than 10% in assets and
liabilities.
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Payroll Fund

Payroll withholdings

Real Estate Fund

Unapportioned monies

General Personal Fund

Unapportioned monies

Segregated cash

Estate Tax Fund

Unapportioned monies

Hotel Lodging Tax Fund

Unapportioned monies

LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Beginning Ending

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,

2002 Additions Deductions 2002

Pooled cash and cash equivalents...... $ 301 $ 180,342 $ 180,639 4
............................ $ 301 $ 180,342 $ 180,639 4
Pooled cash and cash equivalents...... $ 14,520 $ 392,587 $ 391,165 15,942
........................ $ 14,520 $ 392,587 3 391,165 15,942
Pooled cash and cash equivalents...... $ 1,701 $ 83,883 $ 83,712 1,872
........................ $ 1,701 $ 83,883 $ 83,712 1,872
................................. $ 215 $ 154 $ 223 146
.............................................. $ 215 $ 154 $ 223 146
Pooled cash and cash equivalents...... $ 3,969 $ 12,342 $ 11,451 4,860
........................ $ 3,969 $ 12,342 $ 11,451 4,860
Pooled cash and cash equivalents...... $ 599 $ 3,675 $ 4,040 234
........................ $ 599 $ 3,675 $ 4,040 234
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES |
ALL AGENCY FUNDS-{continued)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

(Amounts in 000's)

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
2002 Additions Deductions 2002
Local Government Fund
Assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents...... $ 38 $ 37,925 37,963 -
Due from other governments............ - 15,582 - 15,582
Total assets.......cooveeveerinneinin. $ 38 $ 53,507 37,963 15,582
Liabilities:
Due to other governments................ $ - $ 11,498 - 11,498
Unapportioned monies..........ccccooeoenn. 38 42,009 37,963 4,084
Total Liabilities.........coveveveerinnns $ 38 $ 53,507 37,963 15,582
Auto License Fund
Assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents...... $ - $ 3,542 3,545 (3)
Liabilities:
Unapportioned monies...........cccc.c..... $ - $ 3,542 3,545 (3)
Gasoline Tax Fund
Assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents...... $ - $ 552 541 11
Liabilities:
Unapportioned monies.........c..cceerrurenee 3 - $ 552 541 11
Trailer Tax Fund
Assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents...... $ 182 $ 821 803 200
Liabilities:
Unapportioned monies.........cc.ccoeenine $ 182 $ 821 803 200
Subdivision Advance Fund
Assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents...... $ (311) $ 351,159 351,165 (317)
Liabilities:
Unapportioned monies............ccoevvias $ (311) $ 351,159 351,165 (317)
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Undivided Interest Fund

Unapportioned monies

Clerk of Courts

Segregated cash

Common Pleas Court

Segregated cash

Segregated cash

Segregated cash

Juvenile Court

Segregated cash

LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS-(continued)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Common Pleas Court-Probate Court

Child Support Enforcement Agency

Beginning Ending

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,

2002 Additions Deductions 2002

Pooled cash and cash equivalents...... $ 3 $ 10,262 $ 10,260 5
........................ $ 3 $ 10,262 $ 10,260 5
................................. $ 4,258 $ 52,333 $ 52,011 4,580
.............................................. 3 4,258 $ 52,333 $ 52,011 4,580
............................................. $ 41 $ 1,246 $ 1,245 42
.............................................. $ .M $ 1,246 $ 1,245 42
................................. $ 93 $ 1,231 $ 1,149 175
.............................................. $ 93 $ 1,231 $ 1,149 175
................................. $ 63 $ 2,528 $ 2,546 45
.............................................. 3 63 $ 2,528 $ 2,546 45
................................. $ 184 $ 699 $ 674 209
.............................................. $ 184 $ 699 $ 674 209
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS-(continued)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

(Amounts in 000's)

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
2002 Additions Deductions 2002
Sheriff
Assets:
Segregated cash........cecovvininiinnen $ 454 $ 8,530 8471 513
Liabitities:
DEPOSHS....ccvirrererierieriee e $ 454 $ 8,530 8,471 513
Children Services
Assets:
Segregated cash........cccvervrnciecnnenae $ 1,023 $ 352 356 1,019
Liabilities:
DEPOSIS....coveereeiiieierierierirsrrenrinerreraens $ 1,023 $ 352 356 1,019
T.1.P.P. Program
Assets:
Segregated cash.......cccoveevncrinnccnne $ 1,820 $ 6,162 7,982 -
Liabilities:
DEPOSItS....ovvereeeeiereeeererce e 3 1,820 $ 6,162 7,982 -
Family & Children Council
Assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents..... $ 370 $ 5,638 4,904 1,104
Due from other governments............ 58 262 - 320
TOtal ASSELS......covivivveieviseseaiaian e $ 428 $ 5,900 4,904 1,424
Liabilities:
Accounts payable........ceeeeeeniiincininann $ 112 $ 307 - 419
Accured wages & benefits............... 17 6 - 23
DEpPOSItS...evueeniineeiieeiieiveiienan, 299 5,587 4,904 982
Total Liabilities..........cccorvvvvrivcririnann. $ 428 $ 5,900 4,904 1,424
Other Agency Funds
Assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents...... $ 1,309 $ 1,260 2,470 99
Liabilities:
Deposits held due to others................ $ 8 $ 832 827 13
Unapportioned monies.........ccoceeveenens $ 1,301 $ 428 1,643 86
Total Liabilities...............cccovccevrnnnnne $ 1,309 $ 1,260 2,470 99
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Total

Assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents......
Segregated cash......cccccococniiniinn
Due from other governments............

Total ASSELS.........covvviiiiviiiviinnnnnn

Liabilities:
Unapportioned monies........................
Deposits
Payroll withholding
Accounts payable.......................
Accured wages & benefits...............
Due to other governments............

Total Liabilities..................c..cccveeeins

LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS-(continued)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

(Amounts in 000's)

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
2002 Additions Deductions 2002
$ 22,681 $ 1,083,988 $ 1,082,658 $ 24,011
8,151 73,235 74,657 6,729
58 15,844 - 15,902
$ 30,890 $ 1,173,067 $ 1,157,315 $ 46,642
$ 22,002 $ 901,260 $ 896,288 $ 26,974
8,458 79,654 80,388 7,724
301 180,342 180,639 4
112 307 - 419
17 6 - 23
- 11,498 - 11,498
$ 30,890 $ 1,173,067 $ 1,157,315 $ 46,642
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Statistical Section

In 2002 Mercy Health Partners opened St. Anne’s additional positions will be created. A list of the hospitals
Hospital, a new $60 million facility in west Toledo. Mercy in Lucas County including the number of beds available
Health Partners anticipates the retention of 300 employees can be found in statistical table 17 on page 197.
previously employed at Riverside Hospital, and 110
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General Governmental Expenditures by Function

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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TABLE 1
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION!
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)

Fiscal General Public . Public Human
Year Government Safety Works Health Services
1993 $ 48,406 $ 27,579 $ 11,314 $ 64,479 $ 61,431
1994 57,490 29,531 10,126 69,735 64,307
1995 60,219 36,927 11,803 72,089 67,414
1996 65,572 39,990 13,233 81,577 72,418
1997 70,359 45,701 14,898 82,081 75,706
1998 73,476 44,937 15,151 84,043 72,653
1999 . 79,293 46,504 17,153 81,167 82,275
2000 82,611 51,138 15,772 87,651 97,555
2001 86,109 57,947 14,679 88,096 117,364
2002 90,190 58,201 13,337 92,448 112,106

" Includes General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, and Capital Projects Funds. Refer to: "Combined Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances-All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Funds" in the Financial Section.

Source: Lucas County Auditor

GOVERNMENT - WIDE EXPENSES BY FUNCTION
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
(Amounts in 000's)

Fiscal General Public Public Human
Year Government Safety Works Health Services
2001 $ 102,167 $ 61,840 $ 29,134 $ 91,586 $ 123,391
2002 94,491 57,112 27,746 92,265 111,321

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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Conservation

and Capital Debt Fiscal
Recreation Miscellaneous Outlay Service Total Year
4,336 $ 2,118 $ 12,847 $ 8,404 $ 240914 1993
4,706 2,451 21,656 9,098 269,100 1994
4,856 3,024 9,530 10,705 276,567 1995
4,828 3,573 13,634 23,115 317,940 1996
4,950 3,694 29,351 14,674 341,414 1997
5,730 4,275 11,050 16,309 327,624 1998
6,131 4,462 12,562 16,090 345,637 1999
6,276 4,599 41,516 15,593 402,711 2000
7,631 13,833 48,311 17,821 451,791 2001
6,002 15,047 32,022 18,789 439,042 2002
Conservation Interest
and and Fiscal Fiscal
Recreation Miscellaneous Charges Total Year
7,794 $ 13,858 $ 6,975 $ 436,745 2001
6,052 15,831 6,810 411,628 2002
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TABLE 2
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES BY SOURCE!
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)

State

Charges Licenses Fines and Local
Fiscal Al for and and Government

Year Taxes Services Permits Forfeits Receipts
1993 110,250 19,894 60 561 6,322
1994 126,686 23,307 57 649 6,783
1995 123,809 23,068 50 583 7,258
1996 135,206 23,580 51 619 7,487
1997 141,051 25,182 53 693 7,852
1998 147,989 26,750 47 712 8,328
1999 157,224 22,641 44 808 8,815
2000 160,829 20,673 44 687 9,071
2001 164,396 24,608 34 666 9,064
2002 175,855 24,727 37 601 8,613

' Includes General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, and Capital Projects Funds. Refer to: "“Combined Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances-All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Funds" in the Financial Section

GOVERNMENT - WIDE REVENUES
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
(Amounts in 000's)

Program Revenues

Charges for
Services not

Charges Operating Capital Restricted to
Fiscal for Grants and Grants and Specific
Year Services Contributions Contributions Taxes Programs
2001 $25,022 $187,560 $5,467 $283,308 $286
2002 25,137 176,357 734 199,688 228

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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Depository

Other Inter- and

Governmental Investment Special Fiscal
Receipts Earnings Assessments Miscellaneous Total Year
93,153 4,265 1,624 12,896 249,025 1993

99,871 5,605 1,739 13,781 278,478 1994

106,201 8,196 1,356 15,749 286,270 1995
117,796 8,320 2,216 17,470 312,745 1996
124,563 9,871 1,801 23,741 334,807 1997
133,125 11,651 2,318 16,482 347,397 1998
144,563 7,527 2,122 18,912 362,656 1999
163,594 17,928 2,344 20,273 395,443 2000
185,689 13,525 2,581 43,382 443,945 2001
169,732 8,321 2,303 38,431 428,620 2002

General Revenue

Intergovernmental
Revenue not
Restricted to

Specific Investment Fiscal
Programs Earnings Misceilaneous Total Year
$1,726 $13,814 $43,382 $560,565 2001

1,254 8,468 38,586 450,452 2002
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Real General Governmental Expenditures and Revenues

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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TABLE 3
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES AND REVENUES
ADJUSTED FOR INFLATION'
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)
Total Total Total Total
Fiscal Nominal Nominal Average? Real Real Fiscal
Year Expenditures Revenues CPI-U Expenditures Revenues Year
1993 $240,914 $249,025 432.9 $101,007 $104,408 1993
1994 269,100 278,478 4440 110,004 113,837 1994
1995 276,567 286,270 456.5 109,960 113,818 1995
1996 317,940 312,745 469.9 122,805 120,799 1996
1997 341,414 334,807 480.8 128,882 126,388 1997
1998 327,624 347,397 488.3 121,777 129,127 1998
1999 345,637 362,656 499.0 125,718 131,908 1999
2000 402,711 395,443 515.8 141,706 139,148 2000
2001 451,791 443,945 530.4 154,600 151,916 2001
2002 439,042 428,620 538.4 148,005 144,492 2002

* Between 1993 and 2002 real expenditures increased by 46.5% or $47 million, while real revenues increased by 38.4% or $40.1 million
over the same period.

2 Average Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers. 1977 is the base year when the Average CPI-U was 181.5.

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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Tax Revenue by Source

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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TABLE 4
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)
General Tangible' Property County?
Fiscal Property Personal Transfer Sales Fiscal
Year Tax Tax Tax Tax Total Year
1993 $52,926 $9,915 $2,272 $45,137 $110,250 1993
1994 53,491 10,308 2,341 60,546 126,686 1994
1995 54,563 10,523 2,562 56,161 123,809 1995
1996 62,206 12,034 2,785 58,181 135,206 1996
1997 63,821 12,289 3,006 61,935 141,051 1997
1998 66,516 12,799 3,629 65,045 147,989 1998
1999 69,124 14,021 3,638 70,441 157,224 1999
2000 69,697 15,960 3,598 71,574 160,829 2000
2001 76,203 13,953 3,760 70,480 164,396 2001
2002 86,817 16,948 3,879 68,211 175,855 2002

* Tangible Personal Tax includes: personal property tax, mobile home tax and grain tax.

2 ncludes county sales tax and hotel lodging tax. 1994 sales tax increase includes sales tax accrual attributed to implementation

of GASB #22.

Source: tucas County Auditor
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TABLE 5
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS-REAL AND PUBLIC UTILITY!
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)

Current Taxes

Tax/Levy Current Current Collected as a Delinquent
Collection Taxes Taxes Percent of Taxes Taxes
Year Levied Collected levied-Current Collected

1992/1993 $59,771 $56,870 95.15% $2,045
1993/1994 60,952 57,852 94.91% 2,182
1994/1995 61,930 59,020 95.30% 2,422
1995/1996 68,897 66,619 96.69% 2,107
1996/1997 69,220 68,126 98.42% 2,268
1997/1998 73,217 72,021 98.37% 2,551
1998/1999 75,699 74,647 98.61% 2,467
1999/2000 78,647 77,499 98.54% 2,436
2000/2001 80,974 79,938 98.72% 1,846
2001/2002 90,273 88,991 98.58% 3,223

" Includes all tax rates levied county-wide for: General Fund, Senior Services, Community Mental Health, Board of Mental Retardation,
Children Services, Toledo-Lucas County Port Authority, Toledo Zoo, Toledo Lucas County Library and 9-1-1 Emergency Telephone System.
Refer to: "Table 8 - Property Tax Rates of All Overlapping Governments” in this section.

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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Millions
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Property Tax Levies and Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Delinquent Taxes

Total Collections

Collected as a Total as a Percent of Tax/Levy
Percent of Total Taxes Taxes Levied- Accumulated Collection
Taxes Collected Coliected Current Delinquencies Year

3.47% $58,915 98.57% $7,107 1992/1993
3.63% 60,034 98.49% 7,100 1993/1994
3.94% 61,442 99.21% 6,227 1994/1995
3.07% 68,726 99.75% 5,972 1995/1996
3.22% 70,394 101.70% 5,977 1996/1997
3.42% 74,572 101.85% 5,796 1997/1998
3.20% 77,114 101.87% 5,760 1998/1999
3.05% 79,935 101.64% 5,012 1999/2000
2.28% 81,784 101.00% 5,872 2000/2001
3.57% 92,214 102.20% 6,321 2001/2002
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TABLE 6
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY*
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)

Tax/Levy Real Property? Personal Property®
Collection Estimated Estimated
Year Assessed Actual Assessed Actual

1992/1993 $4,110,479 $11,744,226 $732,320 $2,929,280
1993/1994 4,180,059 11,943,026 750,332 3,001,328
1994/1995 4,441,482 12,689,949 764,626 3,058,504
1995/1996 4,481,813 12,805,180 801,851 3,207,404
1996/1997 4,550,925 13,002,643 841,559 3,366,236
1997/1998 5,014,699 14,327,711 862,362 3,449,448
1998/1999 5,100,496 14,572,846 869,274 3,477,096
1999/2000 5,198,999 14,854,283 934,788 3,739,152
2000/2001 6,388,628 18,253,223 935,000 3,740,000
2001/2002 6,466,039 18,474,397 931,139 3,879,746

' Exempt properties are not included in the estimated actual values or in assessed valuations.

# The estimated actual values for real estate property were derived by 35% of the assessed values of real estate property. Refer to "Note J-
Property Tax Revenues" in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

* The estimated actual values for personal property and public utility were derived from an average rate of the assessed values (the average
rate consists of varying rates for manufacturing equipment, inventory and other equipment) for the ten fiscal years presented.

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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Assessed Value of Taxable Property

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
1993 to 2002
[mReal Property @Personal Property MPublic Utilties |
Assessed Value
Public Utility* as a Percent Tax/Levy
Estimated Estimated of Estimated Collection
Assessed Actual Assessed Actual Actual Value Year
$551,401 $1,969,289 $5,394,200 $16,642,795 32.41% 1992/1993
552,586 1,973,518 5,482,977 16,917,872 32.41% 1993/1994
518,515 1,831,238 5,724,623 17,579,691 32.56% 1994/1995
494,129 1,764,746 5,777,793 17,777,330 32.50% 1995/1996
490,200 1,750,714 5,882,684 18,119,593 32.47% 1996/1997
483,823 1,727,940 6,364,073 19,516,528 32.61% 1997/1998
487,012 1,739,329 6,453,593 19,777,882 32.63% 1998/1999
453,059 1,812,236 6,586,846 20,405,671 32.28% 1999/2000
453,115 1,812,460 7,776,743 23,805,683 32.67% 2000/2001
320,729 1,282,916 7,717,907 23,637,059 32.65% 2001/2002
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Tax/Levy
Collection
Year

1992/1993
1993/1994
1994/1995
1995/1996
1996/1997
1997/1998
1998/1999
1999/2000
2000/2001
2001/2002

TABLE 7
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS'
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)

Current
Assessments
Coliected as
Current Current a Percent of
Assessment Assessments Assessment
Levies Collected Levies
$2,704 $2,487 91.97%
2,809 2,584 91.99%
2,810 2,630 93.59%
2,755 2,528 91.76%
2,864 2,729 95.29%
2,914 2,785 95.57%
3,125 2,891 92.51%
3,168 2,974 93.88%
3,762 3,550 94.36%
3,944 3,711 94.09%

* Assessment levies and collections include assessment districts outside the County entity.

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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Special Assessment Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Millions
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1997 1998
1993 to 2002

2000

LICurrent Levied ”Current Collected B Total Collected I

Delinquent ‘ Total
Assessments Collections

Collected as as a Percent

a Percent of Total of Current Tax/Levy
Assessment Assessments Assessment Accumulated Collection

Levies Collected Levies Delinquencies Year

6.80% $2,671 98.78% $466 1992/1993
9.54% 2,852 101.53% 433 1993/1994
9.22% 2,889 102.81% 362 1994/1995
6.24% 2,700 98.00% 362 1995/1996
9.85% 3,011 105.13% 246 1996/1997
5.90% 2,957 101.48% 209 1997/1998
4.90% 3,045 97.44% 291 1998/1999
7.32% 3,206 101.20% 268 1999/2000
4.84% 3,732 99.20% 316 2000/2001
6.31% 3,960 100.41% 327 2001/2002
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TABLE 8
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
PROPERTY TAX RATES-DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS®
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Per $1,000 of Assessed Valuation)

Taxable Year: 1992 1993 1994 1995
Collection Year: 1993 1994 1995 1996
Lucas County Entities:

General Fund........ccccooovvcieiiiiininene. $2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $2.00
Board of Mental Retardation............... 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50
Children Services Board...................... 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50
Community Mental Health................... 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50

Emergency Medical Service................ - - - -
Senior ServiCes.......occoevvvivineciieenniens 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25
9-1-1 Emergency Telephone System.. 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50
Zoo (improvements)........cceceviieennnn. 0.50 0.50 0.50 1.00
Z00 (operating)......ccoceevveriveinininnecineenns 0.70 0.70 0.70 0.70
Total Lucas County Entities............. 13.45 13.45 13.45 13.95

Other Entities:

Metroparks.........cccoviirinieniiveceniinen, 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Toledo-Lucas County Port
AULROTIEY ... 0.35 0.40 0.40 0.40
Toledo-Lucas County Library............. 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.85
Toledo Area Regional
Transportation Authority®................... 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50
Total RAtes.......cocooevveivciciiiiiiianin, $18.30 $18.35 $18.35 $19.70

' Property tax rates are determined by a combination of the county-wide tax rates and the applicable tax rates for the school district, towns
and municipality in which the property is located.

2 Tarta is not levied in every county taxing district.

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
$2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $2.00
4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 5.00
3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 2.65
1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50
0.25 0.25 0.25 0.45 0.45 0.45
0.70 0.70 0.70 0.70 0.70 0.70
0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95
0.70 0.70 0.70 0.70 0.70 0.70
14.10 14.10 14.10 14.30 14.30 13.95
1.00 1.00 1.40 1.40 1.40 1.40
0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40
1.85 1.85 1.85 1.85 1.70 1.70
2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50

$19.85 $19.85 $20.25 $20.45 $20.30 $19.95

continued
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TABLE 8
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
PROPERTY TAX RATES-DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS'-(continued)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Per $1,000 of Assessed Valuation)

Taxable Year: 1992 1993 1994 1995
Collection Year: 1993 1994 1995 1996
School Districts:
Anthony Wayne.........ccccoceeevcirvmecnnnne. $62.90 $62.90 $62.90 $66.80
EVErgreen.....covevveveevenennnericrencenens 39.70 39.70 39.70 42.90
MaUMEE......covvirrreeire e 57.40 57.40 57.40 59.60
O QON.....ccvieeieeerreee et rteesre e neeeene 42.30 42.30 45.80 45.80
OtSEUO..uveieereiriiiirereeree e s 52.50 51.80 51.80 52.60
Ottawa Hills.......cccevvveiiveiirreereeeeene 97.90 97.90 97.90 104.30
Springfield........ccove i 61.80 60.80 65.20 67.40
SWaANION......oeeeiieev e e 56.20 56.20 56.00 65.16
SyIVania......cccceveernciicii 62.30 62.30 62.30 63.90
TOlEdO. ..ot 58.60 57.80 57.70 57.80
Washington.......cccccevvvverivireenenceienens 52.10 56.80 56.80 56.80
Joint Vocational School Districts:
FOUr CoUNtY....cvveeeeer e 3.20 3.20 3.20 3.20
Penta County.......ccccovvniiiinineinnennn. 2.20 2.20 2.20 2.20
Townships:
Harding.......coecvveevieeiireeseceeiece e 3.30 3.30 3.30 3.30
Jerusalem..........ooveveieciiiiiinececene 9.75 9.75 9.75 9.75
MONCIOVA......eeeiviireiieereenirececiee e 4.90 4.90 5.20 5.20
Providence........cceeeevvvvcieeneeneeniieenees 6.45 6.45 6.45 6.45
Richfield.......coccoveeiiene e e 5.30 5.30 5.30 5.30
SPENCEL ..ot 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00
Springfield......c..oooeeeerieee 6.30 6.30 6.30 6.30
SWANTON......oeeeivieeeie e 5.40 4.70 4.90 5.20
SYIVANIA......oeeieerieecee e 16.40 16.40 16.40 16.40
Washington.......ccccveveeveer e e, 19.20 19.20 19.20 19.20
Waterville.......covvevceevcrireeieee e 9.30 9.30 9.30 9.30
Municipalities:
Village of Berkey.........ccccovvvceciinnenns 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
Village of Harbor View..............cooeenen. 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00
Village of Holland.........cccoveeevvcnnnecnn. 2.00 2.00 2.00 0.80
City of Maumee..........ccooeevevneecrinnennns 4.40 4.20 4.10 4.00
City of Oregon.......ceccveeevverenieniinnccnas 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50
Village of Ottawa Hills.................c....... 410 4.10 4.10 4.10
Village of Swanton..........cccceeveervineens 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
City of Sylvania........cccccveevcnniiiniiininen, 5.75 5.75 6.25 6.25
City of Toled0.....coevvirnecieiiiiieiineeene 4.40 4.40 4.40 4.40
Village of Waterville............cccceorirennee. 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50
Village of Whitehouse..........cc.cceeveeen. 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50

' Property tax rates are determined by a combination of the county-wide tax rates and the applicable tax rates for the school district, township
or municipality in which the property is located.

Source: Lucas County Auditor

continued
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1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001
1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
$66.80 $64.50 $64.50 $64.50 $63.70 $63.70
42.90 39.70 39.70 47.23 47.23 47.23
64.50 62.30 62.30 62.30 62.30 62.30
49.20 49.20 49.20 49.20 49.20 49.20
51.80 57.20 49.11 57.70 56.90 56.90
104.30 107.05 107.05 113.20 113.10 114.50
67.40 64.20 64.20 65.10 64.10 68.10
64.60 62.10 62.05 62.05 68.74 68.11
68.20 66.30 66.30 65.70 65.20 65.20
57.80 57.80 57.80 57.50 63.00 63.00
61.70 61.70 61.70 60.70 65.90 65.90
3.20 3.20 3.20 3.20 3.20 3.20
2.20 2.20 2.20 2.20 2.20 2.20
3.30 3.30 3.30 3.30 4.30 4.30
9.75 9.75 9.75 9.75 9.75 9.75
5.20 5.20 5.20 5.20 5.20 5.20
6.45 4.45 6.95 6.95 6.95 6.95
7.20 7.20 7.20 7.20 7.20 5.80
6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00
8.10 8.10 8.10 8.10 8.10 8.10
5.20 5.20 6.10 6.10 6.10 6.10
16.40 16.40 16.40 16.40 16.72 18.42
19.50 19.50 19.50 19.50 19.50 19.50
9.30 9.30 9.30 9.30 10.80 10.80
3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00
0.80 0.80 0.80 0.80 0.80 0.80
4.00 4.00 3.85 3.70 3.70 3.70
3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50
4.10 4.10 4.10 4.10 410 4.10
3.00 3.00 3.00 4.50 4.50 4.50
6.25 6.25 6.40 6.40 6.40 6.30
4.40 4.40 4.40 4.40 4.40 4.40
3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50
3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50
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TABLE 9
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
RATIO OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO
ASSESSED VALUE AND NET BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Dollar Amounts in 000's)

Less Debt (i)

Service
Fiscal Total(ii)(iii) Assessed’ Gross General(i) Fund
Year Population Values Bonded Debt Balance
1993 467,500 $5,394,200 $37.355 $857
1994 467,500 5,482,977 47,542 914
1995 457,100 5,724,623 49,250 810
1996 452,691 5,777,793 68,325 1,029
1997 452,400 5,882,684 75,500 7,372
1998 448,300 6,364,073 67,900 6,652
1999 447,300 6,453,593 60,060 5,986
2000 455,054 6,586,846 52,590 6,139
2001 454,500 7,776,743 61,770 10,542
2002 453,506 7,717,907 53,200 12,907

' Refer to: "Table 6 - Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property" in this section.

Source (i): Lucas County Auditor
Source (ii): Toledo Regional Growth Partnership
Source (iii): Sales Marketing Management 2001

TABLE 10
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE FOR GENERAL
BONDED DEBT TO TOTAL GENERAL EXPENDITURES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)

Total? Total’
General General General General
Fiscal’ Obligation Obligation Obligation Governmental
Year Principal Interest Debt Service Expenditures
1993 $1,870 $2,724 $4,594 $240,914
1994 1,905 2,599 4,504 269,100
1995 2,942 3,288 6,230 276,567
1996 14,845 3,688 18,433 317,940
1997 6,425 3,971 10,396 341,414
1998 7,600 4,203 11,803 327,624
1999 7,840 3,815 11,655 345,637
2000 7,470 3,436 10,906 402,711
2001 7.820 3,538 11,358 451,791
2002 8,345 4,907 13,252 439,042

' Refer to: "Table 1 - General Governmental Expenditures by Function" in this section.

# General obligation bonds reported in the Enterprise funds and special assessment debt with governmental commitment have been
excluded.

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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Ratio of

Net General Per Capita

Net General Bonded Debt to Net General Fiscal

Bonded Debt Assessed Value Bonded Debt Year

$36,498 0.677% 78.07 1993

46,628 0.850% 99.74 1994

48,440 0.846% 105.97 1995

67,296 1.165% 148.66 1996

68,128 1.158% 150.59 1997

61,248 0.962% 136.62 1998

54,070 0.838% 120.88 1999

46,451 0.705% 102.08 2000

51,228 0.659% 112.71 2001

40,293 0.522% ‘ 88.85 2002

Ratio of
Total Debt Service
to General

Governmental Fiscal
Expenditures Year
1.91% 1993
1.67% 1994
2.25% 1995
5.80% 1996
3.04% 1997
3.60% 1998
3.37% 1999
2.71% 2000
2.51% 2001
3.02% 2002
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TABLE 11
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED December 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

Direct legal debt limitation':

3.0% of the first $100,000 assessed valuation....................... $3,000
1.5% on excess of $100,000-not in excess of
$300,000....cc.uuiiiiiiieereee i e se e rre e s enrae s 3,000
2.5% on the amount in excess of $300,0002............c..ccoevee... 188,537
Total direct legal debt limitation...............cccccccovviiviiininnn. 194,537
Total of all county debt outstanding®............cccooevvrivrnnnn.. $82,059
Less:
Special assessment bonds and notes
(Self-SUPPOIING)....oeiiriieeier e e 16,657
Correctional facilities bonds (4)......cccoccc e 15,832
Total exempt debt...........ccccocciriveiiiiiiiincieieer e (32,489)
Total net indebtedness (voted and unvoted) subject
to direct debt Imitation..............ccc.ccoevvvivivivieeeiciinrinnaen 49,570
Direct legal debt Margin..............ccccocccvoeiciaiieienciinaieienn. $144,967
Unvoted debt limitation (subject to 1% of County
assessed valuation)..........ceeoiiii i e 78,415
Total net indebtedness (unvoted - subject to the 1%
legal debt limitation).........ccccoviiiiiii . (38,190)
Total unvoted legal debt margin..............ccccccoovveveeeveiinnn. $40,225

' Direct legal debt limitation is outlined by the Ohio Revised Code, codifications 133.02 and 133.05, not including available equity in debt service fund.
2 Referto: "Table 6 - Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property" in this section.

* Excludes Ohio Water Development Authority (OWDA) and Ohio Public Works Commission (OPWC) loans, and non-tax revenue bonds. Refer to: "Note G - Notes Pay
and to "Note H - Long-term Debt and Other Obligations" in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

4 Excluded by state statute.

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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TABLE 12

LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2002

(Amounts in 000's)

Percent Amount
Debt Applicable Applicable
Outstanding to County to County
Direct debt:
Lucas County’.....cccceevereennveecennen, $67,110 100.0% $67,110
Overlapping debt:
Municipalities:?
All cities and villages within
Lucas County......ccooceevecrvenernneenns 145,070 100.0% 145,070
Swanton Village.........cccocviinininnne 1,260 6.64% 84
School districts:?
All school districts
within Lucas County.......cc.ccocvuneeeen. 57,378 100.0% 57,378
Evergreen local........ccoccvennne. 13,837 28.5% 3,944
Anthony Wayne local.........cccouene 26,974 98.0% 26,435
Swanton local......ccccceevieeeeeriininne 17,672 36.2% 6,397
Overlapping debt.........ccoocevccinennnns 262,191 91.3% 239,308
Total direct and overlapping debt... $329,301 93.1% $306,418

' Excluding special assessment debt with governmental commitment, revenue bonds, general obligation bonds reported
in Enterprise funds and Regional Jail bonds.

2 The cities which are wholly iocated within the tegal boundaries of Lucas County are: Maumee, Oregon, Sylvania and Toledo.
The villages which are wholly located within the iegal boundaries of Lucas County are: Berkey, Harbor View,
Holland, Ottawa Hills, Waterville and Whitehouse.

2 The schoot districts which are wholly located within the lega! boundaries of Lucas County are: Maumee (CSD),
Ottawa Hills (LSD), Oregon(CSD), Springfield (LSD), Sylvania (CSD), Toledo (CSD) and Washington (LSD).

Chart of Direct and Overlapping Debt
as of December 31, 2002

W Cities and Villages
ELucas County

M Local School Districts

O Overiapping School District

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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TABLE 13
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
PROPERTY VALUES, BANK DEPOSITS AND CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Dollar Amounts in 000's)

Assessed Values of'

Real, Personal Total?
Fiscal and Utility Certified Valuation of? Permits
-Year Property(i) Bank Deposits (ii) Construction (iii) Issued (iii)
1993 $5,432,199 $3,124,897 $230,814 10,462
1994 5,482,977 2,768,305 251,899 10,073
1995 5,724,623 3,053,287 265,933 8,790
1996 5,777,793 3,810,869 347,064 11,524
1997 5,882,684 3,037,031 287,618 9,848
1998 6,360,884 5,302,858 163,312 7,484
1999 6,453,593 6,340,350 194,109 7,884
2000 6,586,846 2,413,149 201,872 7,527
2001 7,776,743 785,707 213,273 8,198
2002 7,717,907 167,588 239,518 8,529

1 Refer to: "Table 6-Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property" in this section.

2 Represents all privately owned new construction including residential and nonresidential structures, and residential and nonresidential
garage and carport additions, alterations and conversions.

Source (i): Lucas County Auditor

Source (ii): Data Services Department-Federal Reserve Bank of Cleveland.

Source (iii): Lucas County Building Regulation Department, City of Toledo Building Department, City of Oregon
Inspection Department, City of Maumee Division of Building and the Village of Whitehouse Building Department.
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TABLE 14

LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
TOP TEN PRIVATE SECTOR PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS

FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

(Amounts in 000's)

2002
2002 Assessed Total 2002
Assessed Personal Assessed
Real Estate Property Property
Firm Values Values Values
General Motors Hydra-Matic..........c.c.ccovvvveenennee. $8,535 $49,631 $58,166
Sun RefiNing....cccoeoiiiiiiiee e 5,350 38,295 43,645
BP Ol ettt e 6,798 32172 38,970
Chrysler/Daimler.......cceveveeiiieniirceeieveccieeeeene 6,961 27,012 33,973
Block Communications..........ccccevvverinieeeeenceenn, 1,377 23,041 24,418
General Mills. ... 3,256 21,062 24,318
Owens MlNOIS.........ccoevvrvverviereeeieiee e 19,335 4,609 23,944
Johns Manville.......c..civvviveiiiiciiienne, 3,679 18,820 22,499
MEHEI INC..veeeenii i 13,734 7,945 21,679
The ANdersoNnS..........cocoevviiie it 13,532 7,488 21,020
TOtAIS. ...t $82,557 $230,075 $312,632

' Refer to: "Table 6-Assessed and Estimated Actual Vaiue of Taxable Property" in this section.

Source: Lucas County Auditor

TABLE 15

LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

TOP FIVE PUBLIC UTILITY TAXPAYERS
FOR FISCAL YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002 AND DECEMBER 31, 2001

(Amounts in 000's)

2002 2001 2002 Percent of
Assessed Assessed Utilities Assessed
Public Public Value to Total
Utility Utility 2002 Assessed
Utility Values Values Value
Toledo EdISON. ... $123,120 $123,052 1.59%
Ohio Bell...ooiceriiiciieie e 63,345 63,888 0.82%
Columbia Gas......ccoeevvervverrireiireeee e 22,926 22,500 0.30%
Buckeye Telesystem.......coceeveeiirinieninecesinnne 23,184 11,593 0.30%
American Transmission System.........cccccueeeee. 30,004 31,657 0.39%
TOLAIS. ... $262,579 $252,690 3.40%

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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2002 Percent’
Firms Assessed Rank of Top Ten

Vaiue to Total Firms by Assessed
2002 Assessed Property Values
Property Values

0.75%
0.57%
0.51%
0.44%
0.32%
0.32%
0.31%
0.29%
0.28%
0.27%
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4.06%

2001 Percent of
Utilities Assessed
Value to Total
2001 Assessed
Value

1.58%
0.82%
0.29%
0.15%
0.41%

3.25%
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TABLE 16
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2002

POPULATION DENSITY

Census Square Population in Population
Year Miles Lucas County Density
1970 3433 483,551 1,408.5
1980 343.3 471,741 1,383.4
1990 341.0 462,361 - 1,355.9
2000 341.0 455,054 1,334.5

Source: Bureau of Census-United States Department of Commerce

EMPLOYMENT TRENDS

Ten Year Average Employment

County County Unemployment Rate

Year Employed Unemployed County Ohio U.S.

1993 212,500 15,600 6.8% 6.5% 6.8%
1994 215,800 13,300 5.8% 5.5% 6.1%
1995 214,400 11,500 5.0% 4.8% 5.6%
1996 215,700 11,500 51% 4.9% 5.4%
1997 218,300 11,900 5.2% 4.6% 4.9%
1998 218,000 12,700 5.5% 4.2% 4.5%
1999 222,000 12,100 5.2% 4.2% 4.2%
2000 219,000 11,200 4.9% 4.1% 4.0%
2001 220,500 11,500 5.0% 4.3% 4.8%
2002 215,400 15,900 6.9% 5.7% 5.8%

2002 Monthly Employment

County County Unemployment Rate
Month Employed Unemployed County Ohio U.S.
Jan. 214,300 17,100 7.4% 6.1% 6.3%
Feb. 214,900 15,600 6.8% 6.2% 6.1%
March 216,200 15,800 6.8% 6.1% 6.1%
April 216,700 15,400 6.6% 5.7% 5.7%
May 218,100 15,100 6.5% 5.6% 5.5%
June 216,300 16,900 7.3% 6.0% 6.0%
July 215,700 20,300 8.6% 5.9% 5.9%
Aug. 217,400 15,000 6.5% 5.3% 5.7%
Sept. 214,700 15,400 6.7% 5.4% 5.4%
Oct. 215,000 15,900 6.9% 5.2% 5.3%
Nov. 213,600 14,300 6.3% 5.2% 5.6%
Dec. 211,900 13,800 6.1% 52% 5.7%

Source: Ohio Bureau of Employment Services
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TABLE 17
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2002

HOSPITALS
Number
Name of Beds
Toledo HOSPItal........ccocciiireniiircr e e 794
St. Vincent Mercy Medical Center.........ccocccvveciniiicienecineninennns 573
St. Charles Mercy Hospital........ccccoecieiiriiecenee e rennns 390
Medical College of Ohi0......ccccccvvuiiiiiiireiirenreercreeceeeie e, 319
St. Lukes HOSPItal.......ccoveiiiiiiecciner e 316
Flower HOspitalk......ccocvrieiicciiir et nene e 274
Riverside Mercy Hospital........cccccovvvieeiiiinienncieneceeeevenn 256
St. Anne Mercy HOSpital.......c.coovveeeccieieriiie e 136
Bay Park Community Hospital...........ccoccrnvniiinniinccieinenns 82
Source: Lucas County Auditor
HIGHER EDUCATION INSTITUTIONS
2002/2003
Fall/Winter
Name of Institution Enrollment
University of TOledO.....c..cooveorivroiiiiiiicenrere e v 20,401
Lourdes ColEge.....ouuiriiiiieeieee et cee e 1,300
Medical College of Ohio........cccvvevrieriiciiiirniie e 1,006
Stautzenberger College of Business and Technology............ 680
University of Toledo-College of Law..........ccoveevncvenrnenr e 488
Davis College.. ..ottt 419
Total enroliment..............coccooooeviieiieeeeeiiireieieereesirevearnens 24,294

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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TABLE 17
LUCAS COUNTY
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS-(continued)
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Dollar Amounts in 000's)

NATIONAL AND INTERNATIONAL FIRM RANKINGS

Overall Overall Ohio 2002
Rank Rank Rank Gross Net Asset
Firm 2002 2001 2002 Sales Assets Rank
Dana Corporation............. 182 183 10 $10,283,000 $9,553,000 275
Owens-lllinois.......ccc........ 298 301 18 5,760,000 9,850,000 269
Owens-Corning ................ 338 349 22 4,872,000 6,832,000 314
INDUSTRIAL RANKINGS
2002
Number of 2002 2001
Firm Employees Industry Rank Rank
Dana Corporation............. 63,100 Motor Vehicle & Parts 9
Owens-lllinois......cccovvevenees n/a Building Materials, Glass n/a 7
Owens-Corning ................ 19,000 Building Materials, Glass 1
1Source: Fortune magazine, "The Largest 500 U.S. Industrial Companies,” April 4, 2003 Volume 147, No. 7
continued
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TABLE 17

LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS-(continued)
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2002
EMPLOYERS
Top Ten Private Employers
Number of

Employer Employees Primary Type of Product/Service
ProMedica Health Systems**............ 11,000 Medicine and health care
Merch Health Partners*..................... 6,825 Medicine and heaith care
General Motors/Power Train............. 4,092 Automatic transmissions
Daimler-Chrysler/Toledo Jeep.......... 3,800 Automatic manufacturing
Foodtown / Pharm ............cccece., 3,635 Retail grocery
ANdersons........ccoceeevvvvee e 3,500 Grain storage/processing and retail
Medicai College of Ohio................... 3,477 Medicine and health care
Kroger.....oovieiviieee e 2,087 Retail Grocery
UPS. e 2,004 Mail Service
Meijers....ccoov e, 1,956 Retail Service

Top ten total employed 42,376

Percent of total work force’ 19.67%

'Refer to: "Employment Trends-Ten Year Employment” within Table 16 of this Section.

*1997 Merger of Mercy, Riverside, St. Charles and St. Vincent Mercy Medical Centers.

**1998 Merger of Childrens Medical Center, Flower Hospital, Toledo Hosptial, Crestview Club Apt.

Goerlich Center, Caring Home Helath Serv. Lake Park, Golden Haven, Promedica Paramount & Promedica Phy. Support.
Source: Toledo Regional Growth Partnership

Top Five Public Employers

Number of

Employer Employees Primary Type of Product/Service
Toledo Public Schools............c.......... 5,200 Education (primary-secondary)
University of Toledo..........cccevveennne. 5,000 Education (advanced)
Lucas County........oeevvevneiieccnnennn, 4,132 Government services (various)
City of Toledo........ccoeveeveiiiiceen. 3,000 Government services (various)
State of Ohio....c.cccoveiiiiiiiee e, 2,259 Government services (various)

Total employed 19,591

Percent of total work force' 9.01%

'Refer to: "Employment Trends-Ten Year Employment" within Table 16 of this Section.

Source: Toledo Regional Growth Partnership
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88 Fast Broad Street
P.O. Box 1140

Auditor of State Columbus, Ohio 43216-1140
Telephone  614-466-4514
Betty Montgomery P 400.282.0370

Facsimile  614-466-4490

FINANCIAL CONDITION

LUCAS COUNTY

CLERK'S CERTIFICATION
This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office
of the Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and which is filed
in Columbus, Ohio.

desan Toubbitt

CLERK OF THE BUREAU

CERTIFIED
JULY 29, 2003
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